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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMEYE PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
B%L
A lipSiits B k]
AT R R a2 117 RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fh%) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
B Chunsen Land iy Chongging 1/12/2020 100.00% 22,250 93,280 - RICIO/CP
bksoe2 1 La Defense il Chongging 1102021 100.00% 85,023 76,520 249,135 RIC/CP
FiRR# Xichen Longfor Mansion B Chongging 30/6/2020 100.00% - 372,805 - RIC/CP
Jdiigi Peace Hill County B Chongging 300612021 100.00% - 57,384 - RICICP
WA Kt Times Paradise Walk B Chongging 31/12/2021 100.00% - - 71,206 RIC/CP
JUERSI Jasper Sky £l Chongging 301612021 70.00% 15,264 604,721 - RIC/CP
K Glory Villa il Chongging 311212020 50.00% 72,020 398,768 - RIC/CP
WILHR Longfor Ideal City £ Chongging 112/2023 100.00% 32,574 564,596 558,014 RIC/CP
BHENR Waterfront ity B Chongging 3111212021 100.00% - 551,470 158,280 RIC/OICP
HEt Ist Avenue B Chongging 1/6/2021 51.00% 86,154 92,609 - RIC/CP
il Chun Shan £l Chongging 301112020 60.00% - 403,743 7,21 RIC/CP
%28 Mountain Top Garden ~ E Chongging 31/12/2019 100.00% 16,788 119,089 - RICICP
FEILT Shunshan Fu £ Chongging 11612020 70.00% 5,649 263,401 123,330 RIC/CP
TEEF LTS Zhomushan [T Plot B Chongging 311312019 100.00% - 91,335 - RICP
b The New Era £ Chongging 30/6/2020 60.00% 26,701 263,869 - RIC/CP
b The Light Year iy Chongging 31/12/2020 100.00% - 262,733 - o
FHIT Jinglin Jiuxu £l Chongging 3111212022 51.00% - 218232 554,968 RICIOICP
R#E Changtan Mansion B Chongging 301612021 51.00% - 256,476 333466 RIC/CP
HERE R Longxing Fusheng 11 Plor - ¥ Chongqing 30/12/2026 51.00% - 135,944 192,148 RIC/O/CP
FILRH Chunjiang Heaven £ Chongging 3111012022 70.00% - 381,540 721,096 R/C/O/CP
¥ET Ascension to the Throne ¥ Chongging 311212021 70.00% - 71,721 393,606 RICIO/CP
R: i€ C ¥ 0: WAZE Cp: {5HY Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

% # Annual Report 2018  § [



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
BT
lipiiks B il
R R RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name Completion Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fhk) (FHk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EAML Fengiang Lake Plot Chongging 31112/2023 100.00% - - 748,078 RIC/CP
REft Kt Times Paradise Walk ~ (# Chengdu 111212022 100.00% 108,972 316,360 7,982 R/C/CP
1l Peace Hill County i Chengdu 1/12/2020 100.00% 13,08 125,211 159,484 RIC/CP
=TE Poetic Life A Chengdu 31/5/2019 50.00% 7354 105,189 - RIC/CP
LRER Huazhao Zichen e Chengdu 31/12/2019 49.00% 11,552 412713 - RIC/CP
TRIEE Xichen Longfor Mansion AL Chengdu 3011212019 100.00% 689 305,711 - RICICP
B Ting Lan Wan i) Chengdu 30062019 60.00% 11431 165,244 - RICICP
o Longfor Central 1A Chengdu 3111212020 80.00% - 424,887 - RIC/O/CP
XREE Tian Chen Longfor H# Chengdu 3111212019 51.00% - 140,190 - RIC/OICP
Mansion
I Timeless City 1A Chengdu 2017/2020 51.00% - 464716 - RICIOICP
A Chen Guang He Yue R Chengdu 1/5/2020 28.00% - 169,606 - RIC/CP
N Huaxin Avenue Plot A Chengdu 111212020 100.00% - - 141,265 RICP
THEELR Shiling Street Plot A Chengdu 301612021 100.00% - - 51,772 R
I pe Zhaojuesi Souch Plot (b Chengdu 1/12/2020 100.00% - - 64,862 RIC/O/CP
KUBESEAE  Dfeng Streec IMPlot — HL£ Chengdu 1122020 100.00% - - 85,359 RIC/CP
26l No. 26 Block b Beijing 315312019 20.00% 418 116,531 - RIC/CP
ke He Guang Chen Yue  3L% Beijing 3011012021 34.00% - 202,823 - RiC/CP
A¥E Bai Xin Zhuang 1 Beijing 3011212021 100.00% - - 161,806 RIC/CP
b Xt Xiyue Paradise Walk L3¢ Beijing 30/6/2020 50.00% - 134,221 - C/cp
Mm% He Tang Rui Zhu b Beijing 3011212020 25.00% - 195,118 - RICP
BRk% Guan Cheng Da Jia tx Beijing 3111202021 2000% - 207,528 114,764 RICP
R: fEE c M 0 WAE CP: (FHY; Others: At
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

I 6  Longfor Group Holdings Limited e &2 ¥ & [ 1% % & [ 2 7)
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
BT
A lipSiits B L
Ik THA R a2 117 RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fiik) (Fh%) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
g Qinglong Lake Plot Tx Beijing 31/12/2021 20.00% - - 388,789 RICP
SHRE Jin Yue He Zhu 1 Beijing 301612019 20.00% - 188,328 —  RIC/O/CP/Others
LTl Tanyu West Mount I Beijing 30152023 10.00% - - 393,544 RIC/CP
Bl Rui Yue Fu I Beijing 301412020 9.00% - 137,030 - RIOICP
ARSI Gaoliying I Plot tx Beijing 30112/2020 25.00% - - 106,275 RICP
g AlC Banyan Bay AIC fa Yantai 3111212022 100.00% 126,195 361,369 5,865,256 RIC/CP
HiiEED Banyan Bay B Ef Yantai 31/12/2022 100.00% - - 696,147 RIC/CP
X Longfor Mansion A Yantai 30/11/2020 100.00% - 59,229 - R/CP
b3 i Longfor Mansion i Shanghai 30/8/2019 51.00% - 115,335 - R/OICP
AR Kunxiu Lake Plot L Shanghai 3111212022 65.00% - 105,101 3,405 RIOICP
FILXE Chunjiang Mansion L Shanghai 10/612020 30.00% - 200,432 9,648 R/CP
F A Chianti fi% Xi'm 30152020 100.00% 3673 216,129 - RIC/CP
BREE Longfor Mansion % Xi'an 25/1112020 60.00% - 91,327 43361 RIC/CP
R Violet Castle Phase T~ Fi% Xi'an 3111212022 51.00% - 150,305 3,112 RIC/CP
AR Violet Castle Phase 1T~ T§% Xi'an 3111212021 40.80% - 158,339 102952 RIC/CP
FRLAF Jing Lin Tian Xu (i3 Xi'an 3111212020 49.61% - 23,725 127,286 RIC/CP
& Jiu Shu 45 Wuxi 31/12/2020 100.00% 7,694 17,069 108,636 RICICP
Jdilg Peace Hill County 3] Wuxi 25/412019 100.00% 3922 50,560 - RIC/CP
XRRE Tian Chen Longfor &5 Wuxi 31/12/2019 51.00% - 25,677 - RICICP
Mansion
i3y Pu Yue s Wuxi 10122019 55.00% - 65,492 - RICP
X8 Emerald Legend &5 Wusi 31/10/2020 100.00% - 66,892 1,600 RICP
R: i€ C ¥ 0: WAZE Cp: {5HY Others:  HiAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

&% Annual Report 2018 7 |
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHEME @)

PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

g%L
lipiiks B il
R R BT
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA

Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under

Project Name Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning

(Fhk) (Fhk) (FHik)

(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
K Longfor Mansion &5 Wi 311212020 100.00% - 203,586 - RICP
KRR Tian Chen Fu ] Wuxi 261512020 50.00% - 72,145 - RICICP
BRKE Li Hu Mansion 55 Wi 1/12/2020 100.00% - 86,119 - R/CICP
[ el Sunshine City Phase 1T~ &7 Changzhou 31/12/2021 100.00% 29,092 - 57,338 RIC/CP
JLl Original Courtyard N Changzhou 1/6/2021 100.00% 457 23443 66,058 R/C/CP
HIXKE Chunjiang Mansion N Changzhou 251212019 100.00% - 113,705 - R/CICP
L Qingjianhu Plot BN Suzhou 3011112019 100.00% - 59,581 - RIC/CP
SROPOIAU  Jisan Center Fast Plor  &RM Suzhou 203/2021 100.00% - 183,834 - RICP
EHP LA Jisan Center West Plot &6/ Suzhou 20/3/2021 100.00% - 277,241 - RICP
TR Shihu Bast Road Ploc —~~ BF/M Suzhou 11212021 49.00% - 140,983 - RICICP

Wi Fenggiao Street Ploc ~ BfJM Suzhou 111212020 30.00% - - 107,648 RICP/Others
e e Rose and Ginkgo Villa Il {7 Shenyang 3111212021 100.00% - - 297,367 RiC/CP
ARHEY Chianti i Shenyang 111212022 100.00% - 74,329 170,336 RIC/CP
53 Longfor Hometown i Shenyang 3111212021 100.00% 118 40,177 267,293 RiC/CP
[ifjES Xi Fu Longfor Mansion % Shenyang 111212019 100.00% 10,444 183,920 - RIC/CP
BB Chunjiang Central i Shenyang 1/10/2019 60.00% 133 56,612 - RIC/CP
KR Tian Chen Longfor &% Shenyang 111212021 100.00% 17,770 175,844 39,641 R/CICP
Mansion
X% Emerald Legend i1 Shenyang 31/12/2019 100.00% - 163,627 - R/CICP
E¥EG Ji Mei Wan Xiang id] Shenyang 3019/2020 34.00% - 178,424 - RIC/CP
FRILIF Shunshan Fu i Shenyang 301112021 100.00% - - 22573 RIC/CP
R fEE c W WnE CP: (FEY; Others: At
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

Longfor Group Holdings Limited e % 4 & & % i & [R A &
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
K%M BEAN
RERH lipSiits B k]
G ant] i) £ R a2 117 RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fh%) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
LS Dongling South il Shenyang 3111202021 50.00% - - 485,734 RIC/CP
Street Plot
SR White Sands River L Qingdao 31/12/2019 100.00% 333 87,586 - RIC/CP
BB Chunjiang Central L Qingdao 1/612020 25.10% 8,366 344,677 - RIC/CP
RRRE Jing Chen Longfor Mansion % £ Qingdao 30/1112019 51.00% - 168,243 - RICP
Rl Jasper Sky 6 Qingdao 3011212019 100.00% - 137853 - RIC/CP
B2 Legend of City L Qingdao 311212022 70.00% - 332,190 603,450 RIC/CP
FEII Shunshan Fu L] Qingdao 3111212021 62.61% - 58,576 307,787 RICICP
KéE Longfor Mansion L Qingdao 3011212020 100.00% - 151,385 3,960 RIC/CP
p:4 Emerald Legend GG Qingdao 3011212020 51.00% - 64,400 - RICP
A Shuanghe Road Plot & 65 Qingdzo 30112/2021 70.00% - - 255,245 RIC/CP
fcpse Du Hui Yi Jing M Hangzhou 11612019 26.00% - 165,747 - RIC/CP
HH Gui Yu Jiang Nan M Hangzhou 1712019 30.00% - 85,423 - RIC/CP
KRR T Bauhinia Paradise Walk i Hangzhou 1/1/2020 100.00% - 158,668 - Cicp
[i9R] Xi Xi Paradise Walk M Hangzhou 301512019 100.00% - 129,995 - cloicp
R Zhong Guo Fu | Hangzhou 30/6/2020 30.00% - 102,538 - RIC/CP
LU Bamboo Grove M Hangzhou 1/9/2023 50.00% - 323,533 —  RIC/O/CP/Others
BRI Jade Mansion iRl Hangzhou 1/12/2020 26.00% - 153,721 - RICP
e mE Du Hui Feng Hua M Hangzhou 281212020 40.00% - 108,802 - RIC/CP
VHRIR Pengbu Il Plot M Hangzhou 1162020 66.00% - 127,825 - RIC/CP
THHH Dinggiao Plot ]| Hangzhou 311212020 100.00% - 73,018 - RIC/CP
RESA Universicy Town Ploc B Hangzhou 30/6/2021 51.00% - 176,645 - RICP
R: i€ C ¥ 0: WAZE Cp: {5HY Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

# % Annual Report 2018 9 |



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHEME @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinucd)
B%L
lipiiks B il
R R BT
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fhk) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
P Wang Jiang Street Plot B Hangzhou 3111212021 16.00% - - 123,646 RICP
(s Paradise Seasons iz Yuxi 3111212022 100.00% - 46,934 670,644 RICICP
el Shunshan Fu PN} Dalian 3111212019 51.00% 49309 162,421 - RICICP
PR3 Emerald Legend K Dalian 1/7/2020 100.00% - 73,222 - RICICP
ZlRE Yun Feng Longfor K Dalian 3011112020 51.00% - 187,132 97,250 RIC/CP
Mansion
ERiay Chianti ik Ningbo 30/6/2022 100.00% - 106,858 6,970 RIC/CP
SERTEN Longfor Mansion E4d Ningbo 241112019 70.00% - 99,170 - RICP
RIERE Yun Feng Longfor E3id Ningbo 26/5/2019 51.00% - 112,864 - RICP
Mansion
R Xing Hai Land Phase I~ S} Ningbo 2811012019 100.00% - 306,024 - RIC/O/CP
R 1 Xing Hai Land Phase 1T~ & Ningbo 30152020 50.00% - 244,484 - RIC/CP
R Donggian Lake Plot 4l Ningbo 31/8/2020 51.00% - 156,525 - RICP
BB e s Luotuo Street Plot £t/ Ningbo 30/6/2021 100.00% - - 287473 RIC/CP
HILRE Chunjiang Land B Xiamen 3011212019 51.00% 6,384 52,730 - RICICP
FRREE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion &'} Xiamen 301112019 51.00% - 116,721 - R/CICP
TlRE Yun Feng Longfor L Xiamen 3111212020 49.00% - 233,978 - RIC/CP
Mansion
R Times Central B Xiamen 311212021 40.00% - 114,786 291,572 clo/cp
ES) Ascension to the Throne M Quanzhou 300612021 100.00% 17,027 527,610 17,127 RICICP
FUBR Chunjiang Central M Quanzhou 30132020 100.00% - 185,729 - RIC/CP
RREE Jing Chen Longfor R Changsha 25/11/2019 100.00% 55,795 183,227 - RIC/CP
Mansion
R fEE c W 0 WAE CP: (FEY; Others: At
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

Il 10  Longfor Group Holdings Limited o &8 #] % [ 42 & 4 [R A &
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
AEHE BEAN
RERH lipSiits B k]
G ant] i) £ R a2 117 RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fiik) (Fh%) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
KRl Tian Chen Longfor Rk Changsha 2511112019 50.00% - 194,202 - RICP
Mansion
HILHE Chun Jiang Central 2 Changsha 301212019 80.00% - 84,483 5,109 RICICP
HEm Xin Yi Central =2l Changsha 3011212022 34.00% - 390,872 96,353 RIC/OICP
TR e Constellation Rkl Changsha 2509/2020 51.00% - R 78,739 cloicp
R Yanghu New City Plot &) Changsha 10112020 49.00% - - 160,716 RICIO/CP
KIBk A28 Chashan Road A2Plot &1 Changsha 30/11/2022 51.00% - - 761,400 R/ICICP
V43 MingJing Tai i Ji'nan 30/9/2019 100.00% 3,098 73,027 - R/C/CP
ES 1V Zijun, Cheng it Jinan 15/12/2019 30.00% - 573,250 - RIC/CP
Shi Zhi Guang
BB Chunjiang Central g Jinan 3011212020 51.00% - 900,637 - RIC/CP
b Glory Villa i Ji'nan 25/1112019 100.00% - 93,503 - RIC/CP
LTSI Ao Dong No. 11 g Jinan 25/1112019 100.00% - 153,166 - C
CBD 13 CBDIPlot il Ji'nan 1/12/2022 10.00% - 173,888 - C
X% Emerald Legend it Jinan 3111012020 45.00% - 137,875 - RIC/CP
RRRE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion ¥ Jinan 3111012022 100.00% - 173,854 484031 RICICP
JLERI Jasper Sky it Jinan 1/4/2021 100.00% - 225,554 109,282 R/CICP
i Jiutang Mansion it Jinan 31/12/2021 20.00% - 356,491 - RIC/CP
it Chunjiang Land it Jinan 311012020 34.00% - 160,450 - RIC/CP
JlE] Ru Yuan i1 Ji'nan 30/11/2021 34.00% - 128,599 - RICP
EBAME Yun Lu Mansion it Ji'nan 31/1012020 34.00% - 129916 - RICP
INALET Park Xuefu i Jinan 3111212020 25.00% - 135,092 - RIC/CP
R: HE C: ¥ 0: WAZE Cp: (5HG Others:  HiAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

& #% Annual Report 2018 11 |



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
K%M g%
RERH lipiiks B il
i} £ R R BT
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fhk) (FHik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
RIGHIEA 1 Zhang Ma Tun Project I 7 Jinan 301612021 25.00% - 108,320 - RIC/CP
SEIT Shunshan Fu i Ji'nan 30/12/2020 35.00% - 94,902 - RIC/CP
i Hanyu Plot 11 it Jinan 30/6/2021 35.00% - - 155,203 RIC/CP
fZ4 Ao Yun Tai il Foshan 31/1/2020 51.00% - 62392 - RIC/CP
ZlRE Yun Feng Longfor M Guangzhou 30112021 50.00% 10,159 249,386 - RIC/CP
Mansion
X% Tian Yi A Guangzhou 3111212019 50.00% - 98,348 - RIC/CP
KR Glory Villa M Guangzhou 300612021 67.00% 345 388,822 35,229 RIC/CP
RILER Chunjiang Center PR Nanjing 31/12/2023 100.00% - 78512 4133 RICIOICP
FIBR Chunjiang Central WA Nanjing 301612021 51.00% 14,775 85,210 13,405 RIC/CP
HEHERS Xin Yi Commerical Mall R %% Nanjing 301612019 34.00% - 53,049 - R/C/CP
S Fairy Castle [l Nanjing 3011112019 100.00% - 60,374 - cicp
fesisitabin ) Jian Ye Science and PR Nanjing 30112/2020 100.00% - 161,737 - coicp
Technology Park Plot
HRERE Polaris Conseellacion B¢ Nanjing 31112/2022 100.00% - 121,113 - cicp
E4] Tang City [l Nanjing 3011012020 100.00% - 131257 - RIC/CP
HERL Pu Bin Road Plot WA Nanjing 2111212020 49.00% - - 302,386 RICP
L Hai Qiao Road Plot [l Nanjing 3011112020 35.00% - - 193,055 RIC/CP
BRI Tiexingiao Street Plot 4 Nanjing 31/12/2020 100.00% - - 192,729 RICP
¥R Zi Chen i Tianjin 2611112019 100.00% - 178,854 - RIC/CP
Rt 2E Sheng Shi Hua Fu it Tianjin 301812022 90.00% 1,858 65,374 315,399 RIC/OICP
ks Beitang Plot kit Tianjin 3009/2020 1250% - 25347 - RIC/CP
R i Cc ¥ 0. WA= Cp: {FHY Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

Il 12  Longfor Group Holdings Limited o &8 #1 % [ 12 & & [R A &
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEEME @)

PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

K%M BEAN
RERH lipSiits B k]
e anik] i) 5 R a2 117 RATHRE
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fh%) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
B Xirui Central PR Tianin 311102021 50.00% - 20,764 41307 RIC/CP/
Others
LB, Chunjiang Central Rt Whan 301112021 60.00% - 315672 510,081 RIC/O/CP
Rt Chunjiang Land R Whan 15/2/2022 10.00% - 793,076 113,94 RIC/O/CP
HE Xin Yi Central i Wuhan 111212019 52.00% - 09,047 - goic
S b Guanggu Sth Road I1 Plot 2% Wuhan 11512023 52.00% - 185,143 331,755 RICIO/CP
BRETE Gaobeidian Train New ~ IHE Baoding 31/12/2020 70.00% - 329,092 - RIC
HRIER Town Phase I Project
BRI Gaobeidian Train New ~ IR7E Baoding 30/9/2022 70.00% - - 21485 c
AR Town Phase III Project
PNGLE Tian Chen Longfor L Fuzhou 31/12/2019 36.00% - 225,79 - cicp
Mansion
RIS Yun Feng Longfor i Fuzhou 31/12/2019 60.00% - 142,162 - R/CP
Mansion
s Wang Jiang Tai B Hefei 3111212019 20.00% - 313877 - RICP
LER Zi Yun Fu AIE Hefei 31/12/2019 35.00% - 530336 - RIC/CP
BEX M Yaohai Paradise Walk A1 Hefei 3111212019 100.00% - 70,749 - cicp
BB Chunjiang Central Al Hefei 31152020 100.00% - 82,039 - RIOICP
IR Shanghai Road Plot Al Hefei 31/12/2021 100.00% - - 213,772 R/CIOICP
T Xin'anjiang Road Ploc 1 Hefei 3111212021 100.00% - - 410516 RIC/O/CP
HIEH Longjin Project = Shenzhen 301612020 100.00% - 100,389 - RICIO
R Kai Tak Plot ik Hong Kong 30/9/2021 50.00% - 54,416 - RIC/CP
WHRS Hu Cheng Da Jing i Zhuhai 1/12/2024 50.00% - 108,228 116,109 RIC/O/CP
X8 Mansion i Zhuhai 30/6/2020 100.00% - 52,124 - RIC/CP
R: i C ¥ 0: AR CP: {&HY Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
B%L
lipiiks B il
R R BT
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fhk) (FHik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
RIS Chunjiang Li Wan il Jiaxing 301012019 100.00% - 67,524 - RIC
FILXE Chunjiang Mansion R Jiaxing 3011012019 100.00% - 93,296 - RIC
XRE# Tian Chen Longfor 4 Jiaxing 20/6/2020 50.00% - 21,127 - RIC/CP
Mansion
KRENF Zi Chen Mansion AL Jiaxing 301612020 51.00% - 146997 - RIC
itz He Yue Ming Zhu 2] Kunming 3011112020 2650% - 158,397 - RIC/CP
2RO Fanya New Zone =4 Kunming 3011112022 34.00% - - 1,092,535 RIC/CP
Center Plot
FERR Chun Feng Nan An i Nantong 3011212020 40.00% - 600,002 32,999 RICICP
REHLR Chang Qing Road Ploc Rl Nantong 30112/2020 100.00% - - 65,725 RICP
XREE Tian Chen Longfor Y & Shijiazhuang 3011212020 55.00% - 141,732 214,17 R
Mansion
FRRE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion %% Guiyang 301612024 51.00% - 339,849 1,064,518 R/C/O/CP
KRE% Tian Chen Longfor B Zhengzhou 1/5/2020 100.00% - 165,333 - R/C/CP
Mansion
FILKE Chunjiang Mansion [ Nanchang 30/4/2020 65.00% - 152,523 - R
kAR Nanshui New District Plot Ganzhou 3011112020 36.00% - 228,300 - RIC/CP
PR3 Emerald Legend it Weihai 30/1112020 60.00% - 95,167 - RICP
R ok ) Guandu No.2 Plot fal Shaoxing 3011112020 51.00% - 216,202 - RIC/CP
HASEELA Nan Bai Xiang Street Plot {fi Wenzhou 11112020 70.00% - - 98,819 RIC/CP
SRRE Longfor Mansion Bl Changde 26/5/2020 100.00% - 192,059 201,741 RIC/CP
ERGHLR Huayang Village Plot (5% Dongguan 3011212020 100.00% - - 137,855 R
BHIER He Po Road Project [ Nanning 30/8/2020 34.00% - 92,024 - RIC/CP
R: fFE C ¥ 0: WA= Cp: (58 Others:  HiAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A%H BN
RERS A B ]
i) 473 R AR BT
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name B Completion Date the Project Unsold ~ Development Planning
(FH%) (k) (FIik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRI R North Paradise Walk ~— HfF Chongging CH% Opened 100% 146,262 - - C
BREBIR Fairy Castle £ Chongging % Opened 100% 29413 - - C
EEREBE Crystal Castle il Chongging 2% Opened 100% 33,600 - - C
ELioNG West Paradise Walk £ Chongging 2% Opened 51% 111,654 - - C
EEMOCOZNE  MOCO B Chongging EB% Opened 100% 29,104 - - C
G SR Time Paradise Walk il Chongging CH% Opened 100% 218,569 - - C
Phase [
FERHRAHIMIR  Time Paradise Walk iy Chongqing EFf% Opened 100% 257,113 - - C
Phase II Mark I
EERRREINE  TimePaadise Walk BB Chongging EHE Opened 100% 122,758 - - c
Phase 111
BRUBKEIH U City Phase [ i Chongging EIR% Opened 100% 31271 - - C
EFURKHIN U City Phase II £ Chongging ERE Opened 100% 164,609 - - C
ERRAENE Chunsen Starry Street Chongging CHE Opened 100% 54,018 - - C
ELESN | Hometown Paradise Walk Chongging EFf% Opened 100% 174,817 - - C
BRWILHE Longfor Ideal City il Chongging 11212022 100% - - 305,948 C
BRESURE Chongging Jinsha £ Chongging 31/12/2020 100% - 204,374 - C
Paradise Walk
BN RG] Chongqing Park B Chongging 1/9/2021 51% - - 190,092 C
Paradise Walk
ERHERLY Chongging Longxing ¥ Chongging 30/9/2021 51% - - 43,080 C
Phase [
FRHRIHN Chongging Longxing Chongging 3011212026 51% - - 131,040 C
Phase IT
R T G O WAE CP: {FHG Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

TEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
A%H BT
HAEE REHH okt Bt HEl
FRATAY il 43 RETH REMH REwK
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name Completion Date the Project Unsold ~ Development Planning
(FIk) (FIk) (FIik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BERRREIVE  TimePaadise Walk BB Chongging 301212023 100% - - 121,540 C
Phase IV
B IEH Chongging La il Chongging 1102021 100% - - 102,000 C
Defense Project
L N Chongging Lijia £ Chongging 31/12/2021 100% - - 88,693 C
Paradise Walk
W =T XM Three thousand . Chengdu EH% Opened 100% 38,043 - - C
Paradise Walk
ALK North Paradise Walk e Chengdu EF% Opened 100% 215,536 - - C
FLARR R T Time Paradise Walk i Chengdu B Opened 100% 61989 - - C
Phase I
gy R Jinnan Paradise Walk A Chengdu CHE Opened 100% 91,638 - - C
AP R Chengdu Xi Chen 1A Chengdu ER% Opened 49% 189,860 - - C
Paradise Walk
AR K Chengdu Binjiang i Chengdu 201212019 51% - 171,500 - C
Paradise Walk
A KA Chengdu Shangcheng 1A Chengdu 311512020 80% - 134,130 - C
Paradise Walk
WAKY R Chengdu Dafeng 1 Chengdu 30112/2020 100% - - 83,000 C
Paradise Walk
AR K 1 Time Paradise Walk i Chengdu 3019/2020 100% - 68,289 - C
Phase II
HARERNE Chengdu Wuhou i Chengdu 3011212020 100% - 33,202 - C

Starty Street

rmnRsE Summer Palace b Beijing 2% Opened 100% 6,320 - - C
Starry Street
ErRmx Changying Paradise Walk (7% Beijing 2% Opened 100% 300,192 - - C
R: [E c ¥ 0: WA=E CP: (FHil Others:  FiAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
A%H g%
REAS iR B ikl
G ani] i 473 R R FSER
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Project Unsold ~ Development Planning
(BAK B0 (B
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EEREX Beijing Da Xing tx Beijing ER% Opened 100% 203,134 - - C
Paradise Walk
LR Beijing Fangshan tx Beijing EIR% Opened 100% 119,964 - - C
Paradise Walk
LB Beijing Xiyue b Beijing 301612020 50% - 130,127 - C
Paradise Walk
S SN Beijing Chang'an b Beijing 30/5/2019 17% - 58,160 - C
Paradise Walk
IR N Honggiao Paradise Walk |- Shanghai EFf% Opened 100% 253,293 - - C
IR lIPN Baoshan Paradise Walk L Shanghai ER% Opened 100% 179,206 - - C
IR0 TPRE] Shanghai Minhang i Shanghai 301812019 51% - 196,534 - o
Paradise Walk
IRGEASRE] Shanghai Huajing i Shanghai 300712019 51% - 66,007 - C
Paradise Walk
iR E Shanghai Minhang L Shanghai 11312019 50% - 44,986 - C
Starry Street
FERERNE Shanghai Kunxiu i Shanghai 3111212022 65% - - 24437 C
Starty Street
[N Xi'an Daxing Starry Street 1% Xi'an ER% Opened 100% 93,266 - - C
gL b Xi'an Qujiang % Xi'an Cf% Opened 100% 78,499 - - C
Starty Street
HEERK Xi'an Chianti Hi% Xian 30/5/2020 100% - 108,129 - C
Paradise Walk
A SRE] Wuxi Splendor &5 Wuxi 3111212020 100% - - 40,000 C
Paradise Walk
HMHEE K Longcheng Paradise Walk 4 M Changzhou E% Opened 100% 155,862 - - C
Al Changzhou Yuanzhan % Changzhou 1/6/2021 100% - - 174,328 C
R T G O WAE CP: {FHG Others: {4l
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @)

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

K%M B%L
REAS i B il
i £23 T R FSEIR
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name Completion Date the Project Unsold ~ Development Planning
(Fhk) (Fik) (FHik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
HMEDKE S Jinsha Paradise HuM Hangzhou 2% Opened 100% 180,64 - - C
Walk Phase I
L NAINRERE Binjiang Paradise M Hangzhou ER% Opened 100% 158,067 - - C
Walk Phase I
RMEERE Hangzhou Xixi il Hangzhou 30/5/2019 100% - 226,852 - Clo
Paradise Walk
MR (5 Hangzhou Bauhinia M Hangzhou 301112020 100% - 130,386 - C
Paradise Walk
UMLK Hangzhou Jiangdong B Hangzhou 1/12/2020 50% - 148,595 - C
Paradise Walk
M T BXA Hangzhou Dinggiao B Hangzhou 31/12/2020 100% - 193,846 - C
Paradise Walk
LSRR Hangzhou Binjiang M Hangzhou 15/812019 100% - 49,793 - C/Others
Paradise Walk Phase II
BRI Xt Suzhou Shishan BN Suzhou EB% Opened 51% 197,466 - - C
Paradise Walk
BB X Suzhou Xujiang B Suzhou 1/122021 51% - 118,430 - C
Paradise Walk
BN MR Suzhou Star Lake M Suzhou 11412020 100% - 168926 - c
Paradise Walk
B K Suzhou Dongwu M Suzhou 111212020 49% - - 193,773 C/Others
Paradise Walk
BB K Suzhou Shishan Paradise ~ BEM Suzhou 111212020 51% - 100,661 - CI0/Others
Walk Phase IT
BMEEXE Xiamen Jimei B Xiamen 25/512020 49% - 97,311 - C
Paradise Walk
HIMAE X Xiamen Xiangan 1! Xiamen 3111212021 40% - - 117,979 C
Paradise Walk
R: FE C: ¥ b NS Cp: (5HG Others:  HAth
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
A%H g%
REAS iR B ikl
G ani] i 473 R R FSER
Overall Project Group's  Completed GFA
Expected Interest in Remaining GFA Under GFA Under
Project Name City Completion Date the Project Unsold ~ Development Planning
(R EK (B
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
R Kt Nanjing Longwan MR Nanjing 1112020 51% - 141,547 - C
Paradise Walk
HREAG K Nanjing Liuhe PR Nanjing 30112/2019 100% - 163,687 - C
Paradise Walk
[ESEIBRE] Nanjing Hexi LS Nanjing 30/12/2020 100% - 149,711 - C
Paradise Walk
BT R Nanjing Jiangbei M Nanjing 1/6/2020 100% - 240,384 - C
Paradise Walk
MRS (2R Nanjing Drum [ Nanjing 31/12/2025 100% - - 40972 C
Tower(Zi Chen)
BIREE Hefei Yaohai #lE Hefei 311212019 100% - 123,695 - C
Paradise Walk
REREXHE Tianjin Wuging i Tianjin 300612021 90% - - 118,006 C
Paradise Walk
R Changsha Yanghu R Changsha 30112/2019 34% - 156,115 - C
Paradise Walk
B X Ji'nan Olympic g Jinan 311012020 45% - 96,782 - C
Sports Paradise Walk
HEBMN R Qingdao Jiaozhou h Qingdao 11912022 70% - 117,000 - C
Paradise Walk
REEA K Wuhan Guanggu N3 Wuhan 1/5/2023 529 - - 171,182 C
Paradise Walk
EaiREELE Yantai Banyan Bay jike) Yantai 31/8/2021 100% - - 70,062 C
Paradise Walk
FEREMGFERE  Ningbo Roseand Ginkgo  #i Ningbo 221812018 100% 60,394 - - C
Coast Statry Street
ERRRMIE  Beijing Haidian I Beijing 3011112020 100% - 50,175 - 0
Environmental
Protection Science Park
R fEE C ik O WAE CP: {FHI Others: Al
Residential Commercial Office Car Park Others

% #% Annual Report 2018 19 |



I 20

0 e it
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I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review and outlook
of Longfor Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2018.

RESULTS
In 2018, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB200.64 billion,

representing a year-on-year growth of 28.5%. Revenue increased by 60.7%
year-on-year to RMB115.80 billion, of which rental income from investment
properties amounted to RMB4.09 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 57.7%. Excluding the effects, such as minority interests and valuation gains,
core net profit was RMB12.85 billion, representing an increase of 31.5% over
2017. Core net profit margin was 14.7%, core net profit margin attributable
to shareholders was 11.1% and the dividend payout ratio was 45% of core net

profit.

REVIEW OF 2018

The real estate industry in China was not easy for market participants during
2018. The total sales volumn of RMB15 trillion marked another breakthrough,
however, a market guided by the principle of “housing is for living” has caused
significant changes to fundamental drivers and logic, with the gap between
different cities and sectors expanding. The combined effect of price controls and
de-leveraging has cooled down overall buying sentiment. The Company strived
to seize the structural opportunities arising from differing city dynamics and
market segments, recording contracted sales of RMB200.6 billion during the

year, representing a year-on-year growth of 28.5%.

In addition to maintaining a cash collection ratio of more than 85%, the
Company has also leveraged on its outstanding financing capacity, to take
strategic initiatives to enhance our capital structure during a period of industry
consolidation. In the capital markets, we have accurately seized the window
of opportunity to complete favorable issuances of both domestic and overseas
bonds. As for bank loans, our strong credit track record provided us great
support in credit line and interest rate, thus we have secured headquarter level
credit line of over RMB200 billion, while our average funding cost for the
year remained very competitive at 4.55%. Sufficient capital provides a solid
foundation for us to invest and operate at our own pace, which is especially

valuable under the current market environment.
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Chairman’s Statement

There was a noticeable decline in primary market transactions, and the land
market has also receded somewhat after rapid expansion for the first half of the
year. For some cities, aborted land auctions were not uncommon. The Company
has adhered to its investment logic and principle, focusing on the synergistic
development of metropolitan area and city clusters. We have added 91 new
projects during the year and were particularly successful in top Tier-2 cities
such as Chongqing, Chengdu, Hangzhou and Qingdao. We have entered 11
new cities, including Nanchang, Zhengzhou, Guiyang and Dongguan, through
which we will strengthen our regional blueprint, generating momentum for our

mid to long term sales and profit growth.

In addition to property development, the other three core businesses of the

Group progressed as planned.

Leveraging on our understanding on demand for experiential consumption and
the innovative application of space, Longfor’s commercial property managed to
achieve an increase in rental income by 42% of RMB3.6 billion with same-store
growth of 17%, despite the overall sluggish retail consumption environment.
Projects that were newly opened during the year, namely Beijing Fangshan
Paradise Walk, Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk, Chengdu Xichen
Paradise Walk, are ideally located in important transportation nodes of cities,
with occupancy rate of nearly 100%, and such projects embraced our vision
under the brand “Paradise Walk”, connecting people with space and people with

services.

We focused on the continual expansion of “Champion Apartments” in high tier
cities, and it is designed to satisfy the younger population’s desire for quality
living and convenient services. As of the end of the year, over 50,000 rooms
were launched to the market, and “Champion Apartments” has become one of
the top 3 influential brands in the long-term rental apartment space in China.
We acted as a “leading role”, striving to practice the principle of balancing

house renting and sales and to enhance the housing supply structure.

We attached great importance to our social responsibilities along with business
development of the Group. During the year, the Group and its substantial
shareholders jointly established “Guangcai-Longfor Special Fund for Education
and Poverty Alleviation” via China Guangcai Program Foundation, with a
total committed donation of RMB300 million to support education in China.
We have recently jointly established “Longfor — Palace Culture Development
Fund” with the Palace Museum with a donation of RMB100 million, with
the aim to procure and protect our heritage and the promotion of traditional

culture.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2019

After the roller coaster ride in 2018, we believe the era of rampant growth for
developers is all but over. The differentiated policy approach across different
cities is here to stay and the need to go back to the basics and reinvent will be
the new playbook. Fortunately, Longfor has always remained vigilant against
speculation and being fickle, and instead focused on organic business capabilities
and being adaptive to customer’s changing needs and preferences, the very basics
of doing business. We believe this has allowed the Company to rationally assess

risks, and a reflection of our humble self and sense of responsibility.

The urbanization momentum in China is the fundamental fuel for the real estate
industry going forward. People’s pursuit for a better quality of life and space
is exactly why we are tirelessly adhering to professionalism, refinement and
differentiation. The urban evolution in China is thriving, and there is much
clarity in the synergies between industry growth and population clusters. The
emergence of the new middle class in Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities, and acceleration

of online and offline integration is clearly manifested.

The certainty of the long-term trend of our industry has offered us assurance
and a path to cope with the current volatility. As always, Longfor will strive
to maintain strong financial capabilities and remain disciplined with our
investments. We are customer focused, and will continue to develop high
quality space that will integrate with an accurate, intelligent and lively
experience. We believe our main businesses, based on the ‘Space as a Service’

principle, will command a premium over the long term.

2019 marks the tenth anniversary of Longfor’s listing on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. We were a new entrant to the capital markets a decade ago,
and has stayed sincere, humble and persistent by paying close attention to the
perspective and rules of the market and insisting on simplicity being the right
path to development. By keeping a good balance between the need to grow
and the need to be stable and consistent, Longfor has built up an increasingly
clear multi-dimensional business plan and aim to maintain its investment grade
credit rating and hundred billion market capitalization to reward investor’s

confidence with solid performance and dividends.

Looking forward to the next 10 years, Longfor will continue to progress in good
faith, making steady progress with a long-term vision. With a humble strategic
discipline, closed loop businesses supported by strong capital advantage, Longfor

will strive to prevail over business cycles and achieve a win-win for all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

TR REEYEBREETREEE RN In 2018, revenue from property development business of the Group was
RW1,087.2M8 70 W EHEMR61.2% - Y RMB108.72 billion, representing an increase of 61.2% as compared to last
EMAEETMBT 8177 BTk - Yy 3ER R year. The Group delivered 8.18 million square meters of property in gross floor

WA B R 332% 0 WEFEETH0.4% - — area (GFA) terms. The gross profit margin of the overall property development
F—/IF > BEEETEKRE AR 13296 7T business increased by 0.4% to 33.2% as compared to last year. Recognized
Sk e average selling price was RMB13,296 per square meter in 2018.

e AR Jems s E
Beijing Jing Lin Lognfor Mansion Beijing Jing Lin Lognfor Mansion

BUM P45 R A

Hangzhou xixi Paradise walk
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Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue of the Group in 2018

*  Amount excluding tax

BEH A SR

Revenue Total GFA
“R )\ “R —&F—)\4F B S o2
2018 2017 2018 2017
AR # T AR B H#ET Tk Frok
W City RMB million RMB million Sqm Sqm
BT Hangzhou 18,942 6,045 821,477 423,699
0 Chongging 14,811 12,270 1,376,273 1,283,966
JHD Chengdu 8,378 5,735 826,990 621,134
L33 Ningbo 7,748 172 453,297 22,224
i Shanghai 6,774 3,950 167,004 141,439
LTt Jinan 5,889 1,354 570,086 154,283
Jes Beijing 5,715 7,244 287,632 239,877
H Qingdao 5,592 3,025 579,977 343,882
3% Shenyang 4,915 1,832 566,487 272,748
JE 1 Xiamen 4,271 5,384 207,529 188,397
M Quanzhou 3,845 1,309 496,915 166,941
K Dalian 3,713 599 280,304 42,225
% Xi'an 3,661 3,172 367,516 382,635
K Tianjin 3,460 - 188,506 -
5] Wuxi 3,013 1,446 257,414 162,064
R Changsha 3,007 1,531 346,741 155,101
il Foshan 1,356 843 125,186 108,912
HM Changzhou 1,072 2,619 88,987 290,410
A Nanjing 827 5,709 42,312 214,877
R Yantai 704 818 79,878 88,637
JEM Guangzhou 596 - 15,115 -
i Wuhan 172 - 15,896 -
M Fuzhou 142 - 9,035 -
R Suzhou 101 1,970 4,553 113,224
i Kunming 9 16 1,523 2,001
e Shaoxing 6 419 452 83,700
st Total 108,719 67,462 8,177,085 5,502,376

CE-NE REBMAFHEEFE AR
2,006.4 170 > B L AEHIR 28.59% o HH M A5
51,2363 8T 7k > 8 EFEHR21.6% -
B AR N W 16,2200, F K > B AR
£5.7% i B =10 T8 HEw L
H I A I B A R A A A N IR 689.7 T
ANRHesso 28t~ ANR¥ 4724100 AR
2051 T R AR B 700800 > ARG ERS
W] 8 B0 34.4% > 27.9% ~ 23.5% ~ 10.7% &
3.5% °
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In 2018, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB200.64 billion,
representing an increase of 28.5% as compared to last year. The Group sold
12.36 million square meters in total GFA, representing an increase of 21.6%
as compared to last year. Average selling price of GFA sold was RMB16,229
per square meter, representing an increase of 5.7% as compared to last year.
Contracted sales from Pan Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, western China,
southern China and central China were RMBG68.97 billion, RMB55.92 billion,
RMB47.24 billion, RMB21.51 billion and RMB7.00 billion respectively,
accounting for 34.4%, 27.9%, 23.5%, 10.7% and 3.5% of the contracted sales
of the Group, respectively.



W B % o A

Management Discussion and Analysis

F T DE— ERLE [ I 5 B BT Table 2: Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2018
* APEH *  Amount including tax
Contracted sales Total GFA

“R )\ e —R2 )\ ZR—E
2018 2017 2018 2017
VY AEN Vi AR # e Frk Frrk
W City RMB million RMB million Sqm Sqm
Ei Chongqing 26,340 18,524 2,144,580 1,583,242
Jbx Beijing 22,746 17,455 542,351 509,094
it Jinan 18,072 11,801 1,266,599 981,702
M Hangzhou 16,110 23,176 635,699 957,062
JER Chengdu 12,834 13,657 962,362 1,157,708
Hh Qingdao 10,725 9,664 800,355 837,394
I Ningbo 9,408 5,389 525,972 304,189
L Shanghai 8,394 2,733 205,004 85,900
JE M Guangzhou 7,905 3,905 235,347 94,471
K3 Xi'an 6,700 4,542 479,899 408,970
G Hefei 6,325 3,594 415,496 257,020
SEM Quanzhou 6,101 3,008 633,348 360,667
& Shenyang 5,733 4,665 545,772 532,271
Rip Changsha 4,671 2,804 379,314 294,932
M Xiamen 4,441 8,312 239,681 292,553
i3 Wuxi 4,429 3,594 319,323 297,824
B Nanjing 3,957 4,114 227,768 150,078
K Dalian 3,718 3,064 206,131 205,797
A Jiaxing 2,961 - 188,977 -
A Yantai 2,634 1,012 252,170 113,373
K Tianjin 2,448 2,662 134,249 142,626
HEM Fuzhou 2,116 - 149,059 -
fRIE Baoding 2,006 - 144,124 -
e Changzhou 1,859 3,523 120,534 268,757
[xi Nantong 1,626 - 110,232 -
= Guiyang 1,204 - 106,254 -
(=) Nanchang 882 - 81,029 -
FEWE Wuhan 850 - 68,301 -
L] Suzhou 836 2,758 32,591 115,385
AR Shijiazhuang 786 - 54,180 -
ity Zhuhai 510 - 19,479 -
1Ly Foshan 441 1,399 55,325 114,823
L Zhengzhou 423 - 35,865 -
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s A ST R

Contracted Sales Total GFA
2R )\ B o i —F)\F B Sl Wi 3
2018 2017 2018 2017
AR W #oc AR W #or TIoK Tk
Wi City RMB million RMB million Sqm Sqm
s Changde 176 - 22,672 -
S| Kunming 164 7 15,785 1,259
JBIEF Weihai 106 - 6,116 -
e Shaoxing 6 720 863 99,683
st Total 200,643 156,082 12,363,306 10,166,780

RoE—NE+ZA=Z+—H AEFACES
HAGEN AR MEERL AR 5180
TAE A 1,174 B°F 05 K > By A 42 B R A O i

FIFFAE TG E 1 R S B ALl -

MERE

7 I — B BR R R B 1A W R B
Mo HATEMMBEMEEELNS 2=
KEMFI : — BB 0 KRS
AL B L A2 D AR B i i A T
WAL RBE R o BREGEAh W RB A
HHENREA B EE JCEAEILR - L
CEEI S BUM - R BB RERE R R
TR B S

CE N REEYEREEHA GBS
AN 409870 B EFHRS7.7% -
P T HA ARG A 87.8%¢
10.4% M 1.8% « #I1k —F— NE+-H=+—
H o> A OB 260 3 1R 2R A 296 & 07
K HEA7 AR A SR R 2 386 T 5 K ) >
WA RE 97.4% 5 THHE TS 3 BHR > B
WA A 50.19% - Hdh > BE=MA M A
MIHH B %L 70.2% - BE@E AT A KIE
H AR 87.4% °

# A EHATIRK A -
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As at December 31, 2018, the Group had sold but unrecognized contracted
sales of RMB195.1 billion (with an area of 11.74 million square meters), which
formed a solid basis for the Group's sustainable and stable growth in the core

net profit in the future.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a prudent property investment strategy. Currently,
investment properties of the Group are mainly shopping malls under three major
product series, namely Paradise Walk series, which are one-stop experiencing
shopping malls, Starry Street seties, which are community shopping malls, and
MOCO, which are mid to high-end household and lifestyle shopping centers.
In addition to the shopping malls, Champion Apartments, which provide new
generation with comprehensive rental services, have gradually commenced
operation in several Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,

Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Chongqing, and Chengdu.

In 2018, the rental income, net of tax, of the Group’s property investment
business was RMB4.09 billion®, representing an increase of 57.7% as compared
to last year. Shopping malls, Champion Apartments and others accounted
for 87.8%°, 10.4% and 1.8% of the total rental income respectively. As at
December 31, 2018, the Group has shopping malls of 2.96 million square
meters (3.86 million square meters in GFA with parking space included) which
have commenced operation with an occupancy rate of 97.4%. Over 53,000
apartments of Champion Apartments have commenced operation with the
occupancy rate of 50.1%. The occupancy rate of Champion Apartments which
have commenced operation for three months to six months (included sixth
month) was 70.2%, and which have commenced operation for more than six
months was 87.4%.

# excluding Chengdu Xichen Paradise Walk
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#= o DE - NERE WA T Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group in 2018
= *  Amount excluding tax
F3.1: HGY Table 3.1: Shopping malls*
“F)\E e S
2018 2017
s s A lA
R fAHA A i A RA A4 i HiR%
Rental Occupancy Rental Occupancy Change of
GFA income % of Rental rate income % of Rental rate rental income
Fik  AREFx ARHTT
Sqm RMB' 000 RMB' 000
BRIURRE 120,778 466,756 13.0% 97.8% 428,02 169% 99.3% 9.0%
Chongging North Paradise Walk
BRI 76031 160,760 4.5% 94.4% 161,908 6.4% 96.2% 0.7%
Chongqing West Paradise Walk
EERA R 160,168 330349 9.2% 98.5% 29497 110% 949% 182%
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase [
E1ElwRENE ] 154,460 200,580 5.6% 97.1% 160,700 63% 98.0% 248%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase II
ELGIwRIE] 73,774 73,079 20% 96.4% 61,328 24% 98.4% 19.2%
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase IIT
= TR f 38,043 37,072 10% 1000% 33,628 13% 1000% 10.8%
Chengdu Three Thousand Paradise Walk
TRt 215,536 151,626 42% 92.1% 129,679 5.1% 86.4% 16.9%
Chengdu North Paradise Walk
IR (R A 1 61,989 44,3555 1.2% 100.0% 35831 14% 100.0% 243%
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase [
ErREXE 21,086 374015 104% 99.0% 288,348 114% 88.0% 29.7%
Beijing Changying Paradise Walk
RLERVPR 151,135 219579 6.1% 99.3% 195,332 1.7% 99.4% 124%
Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk
WA AT 91,638 113,203 3.1% 100.0% 103,662 41% 100.0% 9.2%
Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk
ErRExE 144,565 180930 5.0% 98.3¢% 140,686 5.6% 99.3% 28.6%
Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk
IR 170,450 99,491 28% 90.3% 68,786 27% 83.4% 44.6%
Shanghai Honggiao Paradise Walk
BERURMKEY 15,516 14314 0.4% 99.2% 14,164 0.6% 95.8% 1.1%
Chonggqing U-City Paradise Walk Phase [
ERUMKHLY 96,411 81,146 23% 96.0% B0 0.9% 98.7% 247.9%
Chonggqing U-City Paradise Walk Phase II
HRRE R 93,152 84,565 23% 99.8% 42,087 1.7% 99.2% 1009%

Chongqing Hometown Paradise Walk

% #% Annual Report 2018 27 |
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“F)\E “FtR
2018 2017
s s fafA
R fafA (i1 % fafA (i1 ik HRE
Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy Change of
GFA income Rental rate income Rental rate rental income
Fik  ARETx ARHTT
Sqm RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RLNAINRER e 158,067 233,511 6.5% 99.5% 64,942 26% 98.6% 259.6%
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase [
L TIDR 197,466 214,898 6.0% 96.5% 63,446 25% 98.3% 28.7%
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk
3 (P 98,339 162,669 45% 98.7% 11877 0.5% 98.9% 1269.60
Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk
HM K 119328 30,583 0.8% 98.9% - - -
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk
AEIIDR 103,688 53073 15% 99.3% - - -
Beijing Fangshan Paradise Walk
TP KA 152,639 10,134 0.3% 100.0% - - -
Chengdu Xichen Paradise Walk
KNt 2714459 3,337,088 92.7% 97.3% 2307425 91.1% 95.3% 446%
Paradise Walk Subtotal
EEREN 16,161 21872 0.6% 98.4% 18929 0.7% 1000% 15.5%
Chongging Crystal Castle
EREARENE 54618 30,365 0.8% 91.5% 24536 10% 829% 3.8%
Chongging Chunsen Starty Street
BRI 9413 11936 0.3% 1000% 11,795 0.5% 99.8% 1.2%
Chongging Fairy Castle
ERERESE 6,320 2,637 0.7% 1000% 20,619 0.8% 1000% 146%
Beijing Summer Palace Starry Street
% RREYE 4401 50,178 14% 1000% 45,002 1.8% 99.9% 11.5%
Xi'an Daxing Starry Street
TS E 63,206 61,814 17% 1000% 54829 21% 99.5% 12.7%
Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street
R - 7871 0.8% N/A 14788 0.6% N/A 88.5%
Others
RGEE T 213,945 27,673 63% 97.6% 190498 7.5% 95.1% 19.5%
Starry Street Subtotal
BEEMOCO 29,104 35,494 1.0% 97.7% 34,583 1.4% 97.6% 2.6%
Chongging MOCO
RELE N 29,104 35,494 10% 97.1% 34,583 14% 97.6% 26%
MOCO Subtotal
CRFEA A5 2,957,508 3,600,255 100.0% 97.4% 2,532,506 100.0% 95.3% £.2%
Total for projects that had
commenced operation
e 20184F > A ES A AR 2144870 » 7] 1 ## In 2018, the total retail sales of shopping malls were RMB21.4 billion, representing an
R37% ; MERLF 4.6 AR > IR 45% - increase of 37% year-on-year. Total foot traffic was approximately 460 million, representing

an increase of 45% year-on-year.
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F3.2 0 kI Table 3.2: Champion Apartments and others
e SIS e Sl 2
2018 2017

HEHRA
iR Hif R HaEA % HR%
Rental Occupancy Rental Occupancy Change of
income rate income rate rental income

AR# T AR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
e TR 426,559 50.1% 40,188 46.0% 961 4%

Champion Apartments projects that

had commenced operation
HA O H 73,785 84.9% 20,545 87.0% 259.1%

Other projects that had commenced operation

SR L i B el R

Champion Apartment Hangzhou Champion Apartment Wuhan

4 # Annual Report 2018 29
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AEEH R ERERENESGH 20/ > SFtER
TR 7 209 BFJ7K

The Group has 21 shopping malls under construction with a total GFA of about

2.09 million square meters.

KW CE-RE R EREE TR

Table 4: Breakdown of the major investment properties under construction of

HEREW T the Group in 2019 to 2021

B A S A AR S 5 1

Estimated
Commencement of Planned
Operation GFA
Sqm
B RN Shanghai Minhang Starry Street 2019 4F 26,899
RN A R Nanjing Liuhe Paradise Walk 2019 4F 110,179
ERAT K Shanghai Minhang Paradise Walk 20194F 94,859
HLINE VLR A 11 1A Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase II 2019 4F 22,076
) [WATSRG] Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk 20194 98,320
iRiEE PR Shanghai Huajing Paradise Walk 20194F 42,253
B VE T K A Chengdu Binjiang Paradise Walk 2019 4F 140,000
O P K Ak Hangzhou Xixi Paradise Walk 20194F 130,042
JCHR b3 R A Chengdu Shangcheng Paradise Walk 2020 4F 120,000
P T HE I K A Nanjing Longwan Paradise Walk 20204F 114,470
B R LA R Nanjing Jiangbei Paradise Walk 20204F 143,000
[EERUNPRE] Nanjing Hexi Paradise Walk 2020 4F 112,216
UL PN Hangzhou Zijing Paradise Walk 20204F 83,000
EilE RPN Chongqing Jinsha Paradise Walk 20204F 204,374
BRI K Suzhou Xinghu Paradise Walk 20204 112,106
RIPFEW KA Changsha Yanghu Paradise Walk 20204F 99,988
BB R R Chengdu Wuhou Starry Street 20204F 31,469
JCHR IR AR A8 1130 Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase II 2020 4F 63,013
iR PN Xi'an Xiangti Paradise Walk 20204F 78,962
[ E SN | Suzhou Dongwu Paradise Walk 20204F 123,785
N YNEPN Chongqing Gongyuan Paradise Walk 2021 4F 138,034
HEEEE AR Projects under construction in total 2,089,045

BRGNS Bk - EREG N Due to the rental increase of shopping malls in operation, continuous
BB SR A B H 5 A%
F— NERBEEYETHEARYE 4970

TT o properties of the Group amounted to RMB4.70 billion in 2018.

investments in projects under construction and the development of long-term

rental apartments “Champion Apartments”, the valuation gain of investment

30 Longfor Group Holdings Limited &2 j# £ [# 4% J& 5 R A 7
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COST CONTROL

In 2018, the Group started business in several new cities. In order to support
the rapid development of our business, enhance headquarters functions and
reserve of talents in regional management teams, the Group's general and
administrative expenses to the total contracted sales increased by 0.6% to 2.7%
as compared to last year. Meanwhile, as the Group's marketing expenses were
increased to strengthen our brand influence, the selling expenses to the total

contracted sales increased by 0.4% to 1.6% as compared to last year.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

In 2018, the contribution of joint ventures was mainly from the Group’s
34.0%-owned Beijing Rose & Gingko Mansion. The attributable profit after tax

of the Group in joint ventures was RMB454 million.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

In 2018, the contribution of associates was mainly from the Group’s
25.1%-owned Qingdao Haijing. The attributable profit after tax of the Group

in associates was RMB189 million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses comprised PRC enterprise income tax and land appreciation
tax. In 2018, the enterprise income tax and the land appreciation tax of the
Group were RMB8.27 billion and RMB8.32 billion, respectively. The total

income tax expenses for the year amounted to RMB16.59 billion.

PROFITABILITY

In 2018, the Group’s core net profit margin (i.e. after excluding the effects of
valuation gains, the ratio of the core profit after tax to the revenue) was 14.7%,
while that of last year was 18.3%; and the core net profit margin attributable
to shareholders (i.e. after excluding the effects, such as minority interests and
valuation gains, the ratio of the core net profit attributable to shareholders to
the revenue) was 11.1%, while that of last year was 13.6%. The above is mainly
due to the increase of revenue during the current year and the combined effects
of expenses, share of results of joint ventures and associates and the changes of

income tax expenses.

& 3 Annual Report 2018
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LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT

As at December 31, 2018, the Group’s total land bank was 66.36 million square
meters or 45.59 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
land cost was RMB5S,218 per square meter, accounting for 32.2% of unit price
of current contracted sales. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank in Pan
Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, central China, southern China
and Hong Kong Region accounted for 34.0%, 30.5%, 20.7%, 8.8%, 5.9% and
0.1% of the total land bank, respectively.

In 2018, the Group has acquired new land bank with total GFA of 21.89
million square meters or 13.72 million square meters on an attributable basis.
Average cost of acquisition on an attributable basis was RMB5,297 per square
meter. In terms of regional breakdown, the area of western China, Yangtze River
Delta, Pan Bohai Rim, central China and southern China accounted for 35.9%,
24.9%, 22.7%, 12.3% and 4.2% of the total GFA of the newly acquired land
bank.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period”®, the Group has acquired new
land bank with total GFA of 2.58 million square meters or 1.80 million square
meters on an attributable basis. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank in
western China, southern China, central China, Pan Bohai Rim and Yangtze
River Delta accounted for 37.3%, 28.0%, 15.8%, 10.1% and 8.8% of the total
GFA of the land bank acquired subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
respectively.

Currently, there are 47 cities covered by the Group®. In addition to focusing on
the Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities, we also made appropriate investment in projects
located in city clusters within metropolitan circles. The project size was also
controlled at an appropriate level, which laid a well foundation for improving
the turnover cycle of the Group's properties available for sale.

#  As of February 28, 2019

MR
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise walk
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AL B ) T st IR I The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:
FH AR A T Table 5: Breakdown of land bank of the Group
iEn
b T Ak el £ 07 Fi Al sl
R Region Wil City Total GFA % of Total  Attributable GFA % of Total
Frk Tk
Sqm Sqm
bR Pan Bohai Rim Ix Beijing 2,944,641 44% 855,351 1.9%
(] Shenyang 2451410 37% 2,068,138 45%
# Qingdao 2811882 42% 1,818,116 40%
e Yantai 7,052,063 10.7% 7,052,063 15.5%
i Jinan 4,666,181 70% 2,483,704 5.4%
N Dalian 524,174 0.8% 305,241 0.7%
Kt Tianjin 1,050,093 1.6% 716,994 1.6%
R Baoding 783,966 12% 548,776 1.2%
AZEE Shijiazhuang 165,903 0.3% 91,246 0.2%
i Weihai 95,167 0.1% 57,100 0.1%
/it Subtotal 22,545,480 34.0% 15,996,729 35.1%
i Central China " Changsha 2,173,569 33% 1,118,416 24%
R Wuhan 2,734,119 4.2% 1,057,590 23%
2 Nanchang 152,523 0.2% 99,140 0.2%
O Zhengzhou 165,335 0.2% 165,335 0.4%
¥ Changde 393,800 0.6% 393,800 0.9%
#N Ganzhou 228,300 03% 82,188 0.2%
Nt Subtotal 5,847,646 8.8% 2,916,469 6.4%
g5 Western China Eil Chonggqing 10,658,142 16.2% 8,330,763 18.3%
FE Chengdu 4,199,521 6.3% 3,200,408 7.0%
% Xi'an 1,290,275 1.9% 815459 1.8%
1% Yuxi 737,578 1.1% 737,578 1.6%
g Guiyang 2,004,367 3.0% 1,022,227 2.2%
&M Kunming 1,333,498 2.0% 495,856 1.1%
Nt Subtotal 20,223,381 30.5% 14,602,291 32.0%
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20}
BLl i AT Fir Al el R Fi Al sl
HE Region Wl City Total GFA % of Total  Attributable GFA % of Total
Fik Fik
Sqm Sqm
REfRE Yangtze River Delta |1 Shanghai 1,176,778 1.8% 662,471 1.5%
iz Wuxi 979,947 15% 803,821 1.8%
BM Changzhou 434872 0.7% 434,872 1.0%
HiM Hangzhou 2,652,838 40% 1,665,994 3.6%
%) Ningbo 1,540,368 20% 1,056,375 23%
M Suzhou 1,422,767 21% 1,028,505 23%
[ Nanjing 2,297,345 35% 1,850,400 40%
A Hefei 1,853,126 2.8% 1,209,293 26%
R Jiaxing 534,044 0.8% 349,352 0.8%
i Nantong 753,391 1.1% 340,871 0.7%
i Wenzhou 98,819 0.1% 69,173 0.2%
gL Shaoxing 216,202 0.3% 110,263 0.2%
Nl Subtotal 13,761,597 20.7% 9,581,390 21.0%
HEHE Southern China i Xiamen 1,256,434 1.8% 573,816 1.3%
M Quanzhou 730,466 1.1% 730,466 1.5%
&M Guangzhou 775,304 12% 459,741 1.0%
i1l Foshan 62,392 0.1% 31,820 0.1%
R Shenzhen 113,354 0.2% 108,168 0.2%
M Fuzhou 367,957 0.6% 166,583 0.4%
i Zhuhai 391,776 0.6% 221,950 0.5%
& Dongguan 137,855 0.2% 137,855 0.3%
L3 Nanning 92,024 0.1% 31,288 0.1%
NGt Subtotal 3,927,562 5.9% 2,461,687 5.4%
bR Hong Kong Region ~ & Hong Kong 54,416 0.1% 27,208 0.1%
Nt Subtotal 54416 0.1% 27,008 0.1%
5t Total 66,360,082 100.0% 45,585,774 100.0%

Il 34  Longfor Group Holdings Limited » &8 #1 % [ 12 & & [R A &



_-- 5 0 R A AT

Management Discussion and Analysis

N ZENEL AN Table 6: Land acquisition in 2018
M
il JHH %7 i JEAY i 2 Ao e
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% LN SEN
% Sqgm Sgm
Bt s [ T P 34.0% 500,494 170,168
Pan Bohai Rim High-tech Zone Plot Ji'nan
S5 IH H i 25.0% 243,412 60,853
Zhangmatun Project Ji'nan
B IR i 35.0% 250,105 87,537
Hanyu Plot Ji'nan
BRI HE 62.6% 366,363 229,380
Shunshan Fu Qingda
Bk B 70.0% 1,052,640 736,848
Legend of City Qingdao
PN HE 100.0% 155,345 155,345
Longfor Mansion Qingdao
1B R HE 51.0% 30,297 15,451
Shique Beach B Plot Qingdao
£ 8 ¥ D i HE 51.0% 34,103 17,393
Shique Beach D Plot Qingdao
] B HE 70.0% 255,245 178,672
Shuanghe Road Plot Qingdao
R N 51.0% 223,818 114,147
Shunshan Fu Dalian
[ PN 51.0% 76,940 39,239
Longwangtang Street Project Dalian
HE R N 51.0% 207,442 105,795
Longwangtang Street II Plot Dalian
KEE N 100.0% 73,222 73,222
Emerald Legend Dalian
ESSE S i1 34.0% 178,424 60,664
Ji Mei Wan Xiang Shenyang
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£

A JHH A i JEAY i 2 EYe£ R ST

Attributable Attributable

Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA

% Tk Tk

% Sqgm Sgm

HALI R B T 100.0% 41,888 41,888
Dong Bei Da Ma Lu Plot Shenyang

LI i1 100.0% 212,573 212,573
Shunshan Fu Shenyang

R R i i1 50.0% 485,734 242,867
Dongling South Street Plot Shenyang

PN A 55.0% 165,903 91,246
Tianchen Longfor Mansion Shijiazhuang

Kih s 100.0% 59,229 59,229
Longfor Mansion Yantai

i B s 9.0% 163,837 14,744
Ruiyue Fu Beijing

FREE TR e 25.0% 106,275 26,569
Gaoliying II Plot Beijing

PN Rk 60.0% 95,167 57,100
Emerald Legend Weihai

Mt 4,978,456 2,790,930

Subtotal
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{5
H JHH £ i JEA HE 2 A BT
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% FIk FIk
% Sqgm Sgm
[ifi30h SEBELL T 3R Gl 100.0% 91,335 91,335
Western China Zhaomushan III Plot Chongqing
BILK S Gl 70.0% 1,102,636 771,845
Chunjiang Heaven Chongqing
FEBLWE RE 11 0 Gl 51.0% 502,812 256,434
Longxing Fusheng II Plot Chongqing
ESNN HE 70.0% 465,327 325,729
Ascension to the Throne Chongqing
M 9 T R Gl 100.0% 144,502 144,502
Fengxiang Lake I Plot Chongqing
PR 1 3R Gl 100.0% 306,820 306,820
Fengxiang Lake II Plot Chongqing
MR I 111 3t Gl 100.0% 296,756 296,756
Fengxiang Lake IIT Plot Chongqing
il S0 B 100.0% 46,668 46,668
Sapphire Peninsula Kunming
IS W 26.5% 158,597 42,028
He Yue Ming Zhu Kunming
BRI R B B9 100.0% 35,698 35,698
Huancheng South Road Plot Kunming
1z n i D M 34.0% 1,092,535 371,462
Fanya New Zone Plot Kunming
R 9% 51.0% 182,417 93,032
Violet Castle Phase I Xi'an
EVERIE Y % 40.8% 261,287 106,605
Violet Castle Phase IT Xi'an
JBak L % 1 3t (RS 49.6% 127,286 63,147
Fengcheng 7th Road I Plot Xi'an
RS- B 1 (RS 49.6% 223,725 110,990
Fengcheng 7th Road II Plot Xi'an
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eSS

M [ HHAW i) JRE A 2 Mg SR fe:& J1f

Attributable Attributable

Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA

% Tk Forok

% Sqgm Sgm

JEEER TR 100.0% 36,335 36,335
Sapphire Times Chengdu

KIN=#IEH JHHE 100.0% 8,255 8,255
Tianfu 3rd Street Project Chengdu

RE TR 100.0% 100,782 100,782
Starry Street Chengdu

K T b JAP 100.0% 168,359 168,359
Dafeng Street III Plot Chengdu

BHEHTE H JHCHR 100.0% 34,110 34,110
Ke Hua Road Project Chengdu

W B < g B B JHR 100.0% 75,507 75,507
Zhaojuesi South Road Plot Chengdu

TR AE I JHR 100.0% 251,772 251,772
Shiling Street Plot Chengdu

L IEPNE HA 100.0% 141,265 141,265
Huaxin Avenue Plot Chengdu

SR ] 51.0% 2,004,367 1,022,227
Jing Lin Longfor Mansion Guiyang

/Mt 7,859,153 4,901,663

Subtotal
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Region
R= Al

Yangtze River Delta

JH 4R

Project

REE R
University Town Plot
TR

Dinggiao Plot
R

Jade Mansion

e 2

Du Hui Feng Hua
TR

Pengbu II Plot

L EER
Wangjiang Street Plot
SEHH DI IR

Jisan Center East Plot
SRR LU P IR

Jisan Center West Plot
10 B
Laodong Road Plot
AR T
Fengqiao Street Plot
BB

Pu Yue

KEBE

Emerald Legend
PNz

Longfor Mansion
KRN

Tianchen Fu

) K

Li Lake Mansion
AR B o R
ETD Plot

i

City

B
Hangzhou
B
Hangzhou
B
Hangzhou
B
Hangzhou
B
Hangzhou
B
Hangzhou
RN
Suzhou
RN
Suzhou
RN
Suzhou
RN
Suzhou
Wuxi
Wuxi
Wuxi
Wuxi
Wuxi
P

Nantong

JEAR 2
Attributable
Interest

%

%

51.0%

100.0%

26.0%

40.0%

66.0%

16.0%

100.0%

100.0%

49.0%

30.0%

55.0%

100.0%

100.0%

50.0%

100.0%

40.0%

AT
Total GFA

FHR
Sqm

208,292

266,864

153,721

108,802

133,546

123,646

183,834

277,241

364,240

122,648

65,492

68,492

203,586

72,145

86,119

345,866
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M2
HEETHS
Attributable
GFA
FHK
Sqm

106,229

266,864

39,968

43,521

88,140

19,783

183,834

277,241

178,478

36,794

36,021

68,492

203,586

36,073

86,119

138,346
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£
Ml JHH A i JEAY i 2 A HEETHR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
# FHK Tk
% Sqgm Sgm
A7 ) 8 [ 11 R P 40.0% 342,000 136,800
ETD II Plot Nantong
R P 100.0% 65,725 65,725
Changging Road Plot Nantong
H LRI A 100.0% 101,353 101,353
Chunjiang Central Hefei
Nakicdiisiiny AL 100.0% 213,772 213,772
Shanghai Road Plot Hefei
WL A 100.0% 410,516 410,516
Tian Chen Longfor Mansion Wuxi
#HLIHA ity 51.0% 76,230 38,877
Huajing Project Shanghai
WS MR = 51.0% 156,525 79,828
Donggian Lake Plot Ningbo
BESeATE IR B 100.0% 287,473 287,473
Luotuo Street Plot Ningbo
B2 L RS 51.0% 216,202 110,263
Guandu No.2 Plot Shaoxing
WA B (0 35.0% 193,055 67,569
Haiqiao Road Plot Nanjing
TR A i 49.0% 302,386 148,169
Pubin Road Plot Nanjing
HOR A P 100.0% 192,729 192,729
Tiexingiao Street Plot Nanjing
[EISESHER i H 70.0% 98,819 69,173
Nanbaixiang Street Plot Wenzhou
it 5,441,319 3,731,736
Subtotal
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0
Hi JHH % i JEAV i 2 A S AR RS
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% SEN Frok
% Sgm Sqm
3 o [ BFILKE 1S 65.0% 152,523 99,140
Central China Chunjiang Mansion Nanchang
PN Ll 100.0% 165,335 165,335
Tian Chen Longfor Mansion Zhengzhou
A L B B 52.0% 694,080 360,922
Guanggu Sth Road II Plot Wuhan
L3idE 2 i 100.0% 393,800 393,800
Longfor Mansion Changde
i PIREYL 5303 51.0% 104,066 53,074
Constellation Changsha
PR R 3 49.0% 179,316 87,865
Yanghu New City Plot Changsha
Il A2 s R 51.0% 761,400 388,314
Chashan Road A2 Plot Changsha
Ja i 2 TH H =y 100.0% 23,432 23,432
Ouyada Project Changsha
P KB R 5 N 36.0% 228,300 82,188
Nanshui New District Plot Ganzhou
Nt 2,702,252 1,654,070
Subtotal
R b [ ORI it 50.0% 42,209 21,105
Southern China Lake City Zhuhai
W) il 50.0% 258,357 129,179
Hu Cheng Da Jing Zhuhai
PN Wil 100.0% 52,124 52,124
Mansion Zhuhai
FIEE M 60.0% 142,162 85,297
Yun Feng Longfor Mansion Fuzhou
HUL I FM 100.0% 185,729 185,729
Chunjiang Central Quanzhou
HER R R W5 100.0% 137,855 137,855
Huayang Village Plot Dongguan
YA k2 34.0% 92,024 31,288
Hepo Road Project Nanning
/It 910,460 642,577
Subtotal
Mgt 21,891,640 13,720,976
Total
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TAAHR A AR ¢ > A5 I R D 3 ok A Details of the land bank acquired by the Group subsequent to the end of the

mr reporting period” are as follows:
FL - WEL A Table 7: Land acquisition subsequent to the end of the reporting period”
R M
Ml JHH A 2y JEAV B 2 AT RS
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Expected GFA GFA
# FHK FHK
% Sqm Sgm
B R TRZ B LR IR 51.0% 145,100 74,001
Pan Bohai Rim Huai'an Road Plot Shijiazhuang
RAIIEH HE 95.0% 116,166 110,358
Weilaicheng Plot Qingdao
NGy 261,266 184,359
Subtotal
G [ BT A AR 100.0% 155,422 155,422
Western China Pitong Street Plot Chengdu
AIE JRAR 34.0% 155,000 52,700
Gongxing Street Plot Chengdu
M =HRIAEA JRHS 100.0% 12,743 12,743
Southern 3rd Ring Plot Chengdu
FAL— I 515 74.8% 638,554 477,638
Caihong First Road Plot Xianyang
/Nt 961,719 698,503
Subtotal
REfAR 7K AE fiR 51.0% 227,300 115,923
Yangtze River Delta Dongfang Road South Plot Suzhou
/It 227,300 115,923
Subtotal
il i HAER I Ewtd 50.0% 262,500 131,250
Central China Qingnian Road Plot Wuhan
L4 T R B 60.0% 144,200 86,520
Guanggu 5Sth Road IIT Plot Wuhan
INEE 406,700 217,770
Subtotal
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A RS
o [ HHAH Wi JREAL HE 2 e iy fe:& g
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Expected GFA GFA
# FHK FHK
% Sqgm Sgm
HERG T 7 s b3 M 100.0% 140,000 140,000
Southern China Ruijing Road Plot Zhangzhou
EAEPIRIAH il 100.0% 110,502 110,502
Ronghua Middle Road Plot Zhongshan
PN g M 100.0% 259,848 259,848
Yangxia Plot Fuzhou
P L &M 37.0% 209,900 77,663
Nantong Plot Fuzhou
/N 720,250 588,013
Subtotal
Mgt 2,577,235 1,804,568
Total
fOBIEZF - NEZH A * As of February 28, 2019
SR FINANCIAL POSITION

RoZF—/E+A=Z+—0 > AEHNE
AEER AR 1198270 A% M T A RE
RF R DM 2R AR B52.9% 0 T
Bam NR¥ 452,680  REFEME I RFR
FyBBB— (EHE Y HF) » Baa3 (B4l ) ~ BBB(H
B AAACK A BB« Al 5 s« #ith
i) EEEEEE AL > KRR A

a=d

TE °

0 RABEE Kb

FERY AR B A

AN EE TR EERE AR
A7 B H A R PR @

As of December 31, 2018, the Group's consolidated borrowings amounted to
RMB119.82 billion. The net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group was 52.9%. Cash in hand reached RMB45.26 billion. The
credit rating of the Group was BBB- by Standard & Poor, Baa3 by Moody's,
BBB by Fitch, and AAA by Dagong International*, CCXR* and Shanghai

Brilliance, with positive outlook from Standard & Poor and stable outlook from

others.

* The ratings of Dagong International and CCXR were reviewed on

Chongqing Longhu Development Co., Ltd., a major subsidiary of the

Company in Mainland China.
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AREEBEEL 79% UNREFHE - B 21%
DAAMEGHE o By e T 50 LR > A 48 [ Hh 1
FRAR AR AL Eo 3 8 DA — 7 H A E 2R g 40 o

ARG A B H AR 460.7 68 0 4% [H
5 4F ) A 3.06% £ 5.609% (51 F £ 330 1
)RS HERE RN B ARG E - BE
F—NETZHZT—H o [ R EF A
B 38% (—F—HFE+ A =+—H
Fi50%) °

A S T )P 34 i B2 RA By 4R R R 4559 0 3
BRAE PR 2 5 88 4 5 JR I A B A5 AR B LL
1l By 66% « — 4 MBI B 2 N R W 117,418
JC > M RAEH L 5 9.89% - Bl iE it (E T
BEbRU— R EIEE) 539

TR\ AR BRSO BT s 8 0
BREE > RENTR3.9% F45%2H M
RN T AL B AR B 4E 5 [/ > fE8E R
ThEs A AR so ik B A B HEA A K
AR ¥sofgon A &% > S F RN T 4.8%
F5.6% 2 > MRBBHAE -

W > RER T JUEZ AR R
st AR 2800 A Rl > S Al %A
3.99% £ 4.70% 2 [H > BARA T FAFE LA o

{8 B K37 BB ok
BWoFE-AE+ AZ+ 0 REELEF
R 27,010 % 20 AR B - H 8,274 % it
PI2EBE TR 3,525 4 JB T W SE B > 53 A
15,211 24 Ji it W 3645 B0 - A SR R B Y73
FEEF31.25% °

ASEE AR B R B TARRRRR Wi T
KT 18 7 EC T I o B P A R AR A
&~ B EAL R DURC Oy 2 FEBE A SR - Bl 7E
AL AR B Bl A £ > Bla AL
AR BT R - R SR R
JE AR > MR AR 7 W 2 W) Bl o R A
I3 LA BRI TR A6 TR 3R Ao R A2 L o
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Approximately 79% of the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in
RMB, while 21% were denominated in foreign currencies. The Group keeps
maintaining its borrowings in foreign currencies in a low proportion with a

certain amount of exchange rate swap so as to control the risk in exchange losses.

Approximately RMB46.07 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings were
with fixed interest rates ranging from 3.06% per annum to 5.60% per annum,
depending on the terms of the loans, and the other loans were quoted at floating
rates. As of December 31, 2018, the proportion of fixed interest debt was 38%
(December 31, 2017: 50%) of the total debt.

The Group’s average cost of borrowing was 4.55% per annum. The average
maturity period of loan was 5.88 years. The proportion of unsecured debt was
66%. The debt due within one year was RMB11.74 billion, accounting for 9.8%
of the total debt. Cash to short-term debt ratio (cash in hand divided by debt

due within one year) was 3.9.

In 2018, the Group successfully issued senior notes of US$800 million in the
international capital market, at a coupon rate ranging from 3.9% to 4.5%
per annum and terms ranging from five years and three months to ten years;
meanwhile, the Group successfully issued rental apartments special bonds of
RMBS billion and corporate bonds of RMB5 billion in the domestic capital
market, at a coupon rate ranging from 4.8% per annum to 5.6% per annum

with a term of five years.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in February 2019, the Group
successfully issued corporate bonds of RMB2.2 billion in the domestic capital
market, at a coupon rate ranging from 3.99% per annum to 4.70% per annum

with terms ranging from five to seven years.

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had 27,010 full-time employees in China.
Of these employees, 8,274 worked in the property development division, 3,525
in the property investment division, and 15,211 in the property management

division. Average age of our employees is 31.2 years old.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of
the employees consisted of base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards.
Cash bonus is a major part of senior employees’ cash compensation. The gross
amount of such bonus is determined from, amongst other things, the ranking of
the Group’s budget fulfillment ratio and loyalties of customers, which is then
assessed and allocated to individual subsidiaries according to the results of a

balanced scorecard and profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

In 2018, the government promulgated multiple tightened policies with strict
enforcement. Credit squeeze and de-leveraging was the main emphasis. While
the housing price stabilized with a notable decline in trading, and the size of
real estate industry recorded a new high, the real estate changed from “engine”
to “voltage regulator” in macro-economic development. In the new era with
the theme of “stabilization”, the competitions among enterprises are no longer
based on simply their scale and speed, and will be gradually changed into

comprehensive competitions in terms of product, service, operation and capital

The Group upheld the strategy of “Space as a Service”, with property
development, commercial property, long-term rental apartments and smart
services as the four core businesses. The Group aims at cultivating product
and service ability featuring multiple space and full life cycle and maintaining
multi-dimensional drive, and collaborative development. Meanwhile, the Group
preserves its main business and its strategic insights, and proactively embraces

changes, so as to achieve an enhancement in its operation capacity and efficiency.

In 2019, the Group has 207 key projects for sale currently on the market,
among which 71 are brand new projects and 106 are new phases or new products
of existing projects. The products will cater for different customer groups,
including first-time home buyers, upgraders and business operators, while the
proportion of different product types and features will be adjusted in response
to changes in demand from customers, thus enabling the Group to have precise

product positioning and to achieve our goals in such market.

The Group (including joint ventures and associates) has completed properties of
approximately 9.50 million square meters in GFA in 2018. The total GFA of
properties planned to complete construction in 2019 will reach approximately
15.00 million square meters, most of which will be completed in the second half

of the year. The current construction and sales progress are on track.

Regarding to the investment properties, Beijing Fangshan Paradise Walk,
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk and Chengdu Xichen Paradise Walk have
commenced operation in 2018, and Hangzhou Xixi Paradise Walk, Shanghai
Minhang Paradise Walk and Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk and more are expected
to commence operation in 2019, while as one of the core businesses, lots of
our long-term rental “Champion Apartments” has commenced operation in
Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Hangzhou,
Nanjing, Chongqing and Chengdu in 2018 as scheduled. The investment and
development of the above two core businesses will lay a solid foundation for

future growth of rental income from investment properties of the Group.

& 3 Annual Report 2018

45



B 46

W B & o3 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEMZ BT k2 T BT wR S > £ In the constantly changing market and diversifying competition landscape, the
P 4 % AR R ) A 7 B SR (R Group will continue to maintain a prudent and rational financial management
A ZYEMMEES - REFEH - Z2NA strategy in order to preserve our low-cost and multi-channel advantages in
fEKF o TEIH H SCEHERE - TME AN S 1E K funding and maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. In terms of investments, we
RO IOES TR ERE A - R will also control land cost and increase funding utilization rate through external
AR VE co-operations and acquisitions in the secondary market.

R
Guangzhou Tian Yi

BUMBR I HEERRRE
Hangzhou Jade Mansion Qingdao Jing Chen Longfor Mansion

BUM AR B

Hangzhou Chunjiang Mansion
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 54, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairperson of the Board of
the Company. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Investment Committee of the Company. Madam Wu is the founder of the
Group. She graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University (7§ Jt T
%€ K ) majoring in navigation engineering and obtained a Bachelor degree
in Engineering in 1984. Madam Wu serves as a member of the Standing
Committee of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (28 L5 ),
and consultant of the Real Estate Branch Chamber of the Chongqing General
Chamber of Commerce ( BT 487 €).

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 53, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and
a member of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Shao joined the
Group in 2006. He graduated from Renmin University of China (H1E AR K
) and obtained a Master degree in Economics in 1992. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Shao served as the deputy general manager of Hangyu Economic
Development Company (i 5 %8 17§ %% & 4 FL 22 7)) which is a subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Group (L H#PRIZELEH), and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang
Real Estate Development Limited (Av =2 i 81 5 b B B R A H )
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the general manager of Beijing Zhongjing
Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited s BH0 55 B AR A TRy

H]) and the director of the real estate development division of Beijing Hualian
Group (AU HEREE).

Mr. Zhao Yi, aged 42, was appointed as executive director of the Company on
March 18, 2015 and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and a member
of the Investment Committee. Mr. Zhao graduated from Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (47 M Bf #8 BL ¥ K &), majoring in international
accounting and obtained a bachelor degree in business administration. He is
a member of China Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 2006 and has served as the senior manager of Chongqing Longfor, the
financial controller of Chengdu Longfor, the head of the Financial Management
Centre and the general manager of the Ministry of Finance of the Group.

Before joining the Group, he served at Pan-China (Chongqing) Certified Public
Accountants ( E% i@@ﬁﬁﬁ%i’% i ).

Mr. Li Chaojiang, aged 50, was appointed as executive director of the Company
on November 23, 2016 and is the member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2011. He graduated from Yangzhou
Teachers College (M il 4 22 B ) majoring in Chinese Language & Literature
and obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li
worked for P & G (China) Company Limited (BB (HE) ARAF ), Ericsson
(China) Communications Company Limited (B (PR BEARAA)
and Zovie Real Estate Group Co, Limited ( rh B B0 b s A A PR A )
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 69, was appointed as independent
non-executive director and member of the Audit Committee of the Company
on November 1, 2009. He has been involved in Asian securities and property
investment markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a private investor
including having his own family business, Portwood Company Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Hysan Development Company
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?")). He is also the publisher and author of “The Churchouse Letter”.

In 2004, Mr. Churchouse set up an Asian real estate focused investment fund
under LIM Advisors. He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible
Officer until the end of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan
Stanley as a managing director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted
in a variety of roles including head of regional research, regional strategist and
head of regional property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts
degree and a Master of Social Sciences degree from the University of Waikato in
New Zealand.

Mzr. Chan Chi On, Derek, aged 55, was appointed as independent non-executive
director, chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is the chairman
of Halcyon Capital Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited, which is engaged
in corporate finance and securities business in Hong Kong respectively. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in
Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) and from the Hong Kong University
of Science & Technology with a Master degree in Business Administration. He
worked for the SEHK and has been executive director of Haitong International
Securities Group Limited (formerly Taifook Securities Group Limited) and
head of its corporate finance division for 16 years until end of 2012. He is
the independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset Management
Limited, China Conch Venture Holdings Limited and Tianli Holdings Group
Limited, which are listed on the SEHK.
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Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 56, was appointed as independent non-executive director,
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company on November 1, 2009. He obtained a Doctoral degree in Accounting
from the University of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is the founding dean and
professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in Beijing, China.
Currently, Mr. Xiang is the independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited, both are
listed on the SEHK.

In the last three years, Mr. Xiang had has directorships in the following listed
public companies, director of E-House (China) Holdings Limited (listed in the
United States of America (the “USA”)); independent non-executive director of
China Dongxiang (Group) Company Limited, HC International, Inc., Enerchina
Holdings Limited, and Peak Sport Products Company Limited (all of which are
listed on the SEHK).

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 48, was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is currently the chairman, Academic
Council of Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his Doctor of Philosophy in
International Business and Strategy from University of Illinois at Urbana-
Champaign, USA in 1998 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
Fudan University (1 B K ) in 1991. Mr. Zeng was the professor of Strategy
at Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, Beijing China and a faculty
member at INSEAD, France.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Wang Guangjian, aged 48, is the senior vice president of the Group and

also serves as the CEO of the Long-term Rental Apartment business and the
Chairman of Longfor Smart Service Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in
2000 and served as general manager of Chengdu Longfor. He obtained a Master
degree in Management from Chongqing University, majoring in Architectural

Economy Management in 2000.

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 46, is the vice president of the Group and also serves
as the General Manager of the Research and Design Department. Mr. Song
joined the Group as the General Manager of the Beijing Company in 2011. He
obtained a PhD in Engineering from Tsinghua University in 2001, majoring
in Architecture. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Song was a visiting scholar at

Massachusetts Institute of Technology of the United States of America.
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Mr. Su Xizhen, aged 44 is the vice president of the Group and also serves as
the General Manager of the Operation Department. He obtained a Masters
in Management from Chongqing University in 2001, majoring in Project

Management.

Mr. Hu Ruoxiang, aged 42, is the vice president of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s Brand & Marketing Department and Customer
Research Department. Mr. Hu joined the Group in 2015 and has served as the
general manager of Xiamen Longfor. He graduated from Tianjin University (X
H K& ) with a Bachelor degree in Architectural Engineering in 1999. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Hu worked for China Overseas Property Group Co., Ltd

( rhf b 52 A BR/A B ) and Gemdale Group (S HIEEE).

Ms. Shen Ying, aged 44, is the general manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Group. Ms. Shen joined the Group in 2016. She graduated
from Shanghai University (£ ¥ K %) and obrtained a Bachelor degree in
Economics in 1998 majoring in international finance. Ms. Shen obtained her
MBA at Boston College in 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Shen worked
for Hewlett-Packard (HP) and General Electric (GE).

Ms. Li Nan, aged 52 is the vice president of the Group and General Manager of
the Commercial Properties Department of the Group. Ms. Li joined the Group
in 2015. She graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
(FEHBHEL KB ) and obtained a Bachelor degree in Engineering in 1989. In
2001, Ms. Li graduated from Wuhan University (R K 2 and obtained
a Master degree in Business Administration. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Li worked for Capital Commercial Real Estate Management Consultation
(Shanghai) Company Limited (VR A e P A (7)), Wuhan New
People’s Paradise Company Limited (I 2 # B A% 44 [& A FR /A §]), Wuhan
Yum China Holdings, Inc (RFEEBERARAF) and Pidemco Land (H
S E ).
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Report of the Directors

The Board of directors (the “Board”) hereby present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the property development, commercial properties, long-term rental

apartments and smart service.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of

the Group on page 121.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and performance highlights of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 49(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended December 31,
2018 are set out in note 52 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environment policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
in the section headed “Environmental Policies” and “Compliance with Laws
and Regulations” of this Report of the Directors. An analysis of the Group's key

performance indicators are as follows:

Performance Highlights

RN R
R )\4 Sl oto2 Year-on-Year
2018 2017 Growth
aRHNE Contracted sales
Bl 858 A (AR 1ET) Contracted sales (RMB billion) 200.64 156.08 28.5%
AR EREEmR (P K)  Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 12,363,306 10,166,780 21.6%
EEMBER Key financial information
(ANREA-f8) (RMB'billion)
N Revenue 115.80 72.08 60.7%
BH Gross profit 39.53 24.44 61.8%
i JE T S SR 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 16.24 12.60 28.9%
A% LI R (U 70 8 Core net profit (Excluding effects,
R4~ FEAL G such as minority interests and
E3 2 valuation gains) 12.85 9.77 31.5%
B g i Key financial ratios
Sk Gross profit margin 34.1% 33.9%
TRAEARA - AR Earnings per share (basic), RMB 2.78 2.17
TREAZLEA > NRW¥IT Core earnings per share (basic), RMB 2.20 1.68
FARBRALLE  F£K Net debt-to-equity ratio,
at the end of year 52.9% 47.7%
S ERA 2 Average cost of borrowing, per annum 4.55% 4.50%

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &2 j# £ [# 4% J& 5 R A 7
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Report of the Directors

DIVIDEND
The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.69 per share

for the year ended December 31, 2018 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, June 26, 2019.
The proposed final dividend shall be paid on Wednesday, July 10, 2019 after
approval by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). The proposed final dividend shall be
declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in
Hong Kong dollars will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of
RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the
period from Monday, May 27, 2019 to Tuesday, May 28, 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders of the
Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend policy to achieve
such goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s results
of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future
prospects, as well as statutory, regulatory and debt covenant restrictions on the
payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on proposed
dividend with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given

period.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, May
23, 2019 to Tuesday, May 28, 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine
the identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on Tuesday, May 28, 2019, all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, May 22, 2019.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, June 24,
2019 to Wednesday, June 26, 2019 (both days inclusive) during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road

East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, June 21, 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at December 31, 2018, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB 458,779,000.
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Report of the Directors

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB49,056,000 (2017: approximately RMB22, 540,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five years financial summary of the Group is set out on page 352 of this

annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2018, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.26% of the total revenue
in the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than

0.40% of the Group's revenue in the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 5.00% of the total purchases
in the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than

9.60% of the Group's purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their
associates nor any shareholder of the Company which owns more than 5% of the

Company’s share capital had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2018 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and

contractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEE

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly importance.
The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path and
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. In addition,
the Group has also adopted share option scheme and share award scheme to
recognize and reward the contribution of the employees to the growth and

development of the Group.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairperson)

Mz. Shao Mingxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Yi

Mr. Li Chaojiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

M:r. Xiang Bing

Mzr. Zeng Ming

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Madam Wu
Yajun, Mr. Li Chaojiang and Mr. Zeng Ming shall retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by them
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said

persons.

In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain

legal actions against the Directors.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 are set out in

note 45 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, either directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2018, save as disclosed under the section headed
“Compliance with Non-competition Undertakings by the Controlling
Shareholders and the Directors”, none of the directors of the Company are
considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted for the year ended December 31, 2018.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the
Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is
a party that would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS
BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND THE
DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated November 1,
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (“Junson Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”),
Silverland Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”)
and Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent
and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson
Development and Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to
compete with the Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson
Development, Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company
to procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any
property business or investment or management in the People’s Republic of
China that they or any of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is
offered or presented to them by a third party, be first referred to the Company

in accordance with the terms of the non-competition deed.

On January 29, 2013, Mr. Cai notified the Company that he intended to
participate in the development and investment of a project site in Chengdu for
his personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity A”). In accordance
with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Mr. Cai has provided necessary
information on the New Opportunity A, including without limitation,
details and nature of the project site, its geographical location and amount of
proposed investment to the independent board committee of the Company
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent
Board Committee”). A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was
held on February 5, 2013. Having taken into account, among other things,
the Company’s current investment strategy, the nature of the project, the
development and architectural constraints of the project site, growth and
earning potentials of the New Opportunity A, the independent non-executive
Directors have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the Company

and the Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity A.
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On June 7, 2016, Madam Wu notified the Company that she intended to
participate in the development and investment of a medical project site in
Chongqing for her personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity B”).
In accordance with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Madam Wu has
provided necessary information on the New Opportunity B, including without
limitation, details and nature of the project site, its geographical location
and amount of proposed investment to the Independent Board Committee.
A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was held on June 7, 2016.
Having taken into account, among other things, the Company’s current
investment strategy, the relevant expertise and experience in medical and
healthcare area, the cooperation with a medical/healthcare institution, growth
and earning potentials of the New Opportunity B, the independent non-
executive Directors have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the

Company and the Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity B.

In March 2019, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors in respect of their
respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at December
31, 2018. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
declaration and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Directors has complied with their respective non-competition

undertakings during the year ended December 31, 2018.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On April 29, 2015, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a
S-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$3,180,000,000,
USD155,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 (the “Facility”) was made available to

the Company on the terms and conditions stated therein.

On December 22, 2016, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant
to which a 3-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to
RMB3,000,000,000 (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.
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It is provided in the Facility Agreements, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if the following shareholders of the Company, the Wu Family
Trust, the Cai Family Trust, Charm Talent and Junson Development cease to
collectively maintain (directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the entire
beneficial shareholding interest in the Company. If an event of default under
the Facility Agreements occurs, the lending bank or the agent acting for the
lending banks may, and shall if so directed by two-thirds of the lending banks,
terminate the Facility and/or declare that all or part of the loans made under
the Facility together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or

outstanding under the Facility Agreements be immediately due and payable.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be

disclosed by the Company under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

De minimis Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2018, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain Directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 46 (c) and (d) “Related party transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Such transactions constituted de minimis
connected transactions of the Company which were exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as above, the other related party transactions which were carried out by
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2018, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

following details:

J2110,000,000 B A5 A0 B MEAE > SRS 0R

(1)

EH

i

Name

AR
Shao Mingxiao

fal3

Zhao Yi
ZHIL

Li Chaojiang

Frederick Peter

Churchouse

7
%

Chan Chi On, Derek

I

AN

Xiang Bing

B

Zeng Ming

i

Capacity

R0E 2N

Beneficial Owner

65 N

Beneficial Owner

HHHE A

Beneficial Owner

65 N

Beneficial Owner

Efa A

Beneficial Owner

Rt DN

Beneficial Owner

HHHE A

Beneficial Owner

(1) Directors

Tk (e )
A Exercise price
Date of grant (HKS)
(1)
(Note 1)
ZEERAZTAN 8.28
September 28, 2011
ZE WA 9.37
November 4, 2014
“E-WET—HIH 9.37
November 4, 2014
ZE WA 9.37
November 4, 2014
ZEENFFZAZTER 8.44
December 23, 2009
ZEENAZTAR 8.28
September 28, 2011
ZEFNETZAZTER 8.44
December 23, 2009
“E—HANZHAR 8.28
September 28, 2011
ZEFNETZAZTEH 8.44
December 23, 2009
“EERAAZTAR 8.28
September 28, 2011
SEERACTAR 8.28

September 28, 2011

ZE N
—A—H
AT

Outstanding at
January 1, 2018

30,000,000

4,400,000

1,650,000

1,650,000

150,000

400,000

200,000

400,000

50,000

400,000

240,000

R
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AR Py
frfEs
W%
Number of share
options exercised
during the year
(Hit2)
(Note2)

(6,352,000)

(150,000

(400,000)

(200,000

(50,000)

(400,000)

The Company'’s share option scheme was adopted on November 1, 2009.

On December 23, 2009, January 17, 2011, September 28, 2011 and November
4, 2014, the Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000
shares, 46,000,000 shares, 150,000,000 shares and 110,000,000 shares under

the Option Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company, with the

“FNE
+ZAZ1—H
WA
Outstanding at
December 31,
2018

23,648,000

4,400,000

1,650,000

1,650,000

400,000

240,000

& 3 Annual Report 2018

61



62

=T

Report of the Directors

(2)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited e % 4 & & % i & [R A &

= (2)  Employees
AR RS
“E-NE frHER a1 “E-NE
~A—H T BRESE  FZHZETH
g WA Number of share  Number of share WAL
RHAN I (%) Outstanding at  options exercised  options cancelled Outstanding at
Date of grant Capacity Exercise price (HK$)  January 1, 2018 during the year during the year December 31, 2018
(Wit 1) (Mt 2)
(Note 1) (Noe 3)
ZE - TLH EafHA 12528 10,495,000 (5,238,000 - 3,257,000
January 17, 2011 Beneficial Owner
“EERACEAR REEAA 8.28 32,073,500 (7,161,000) - 24,912,500
September 28, 2011 Beneficial Owner
“E-mER-ANE O HREEAA 937 67,085,000 (10,916,000) (7,425,000 48,744,000
November 4, 2014 Beneficial Owner
Mk - Notes:
1 PN EENET A S EHIER 1 As for the share option granted on December 23, 2009, the closing price of the

JRCRE > 5 IR ME T — H IR0y A 5 W M 58
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25% °
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Ho+ABRE-F A - +LtEs
VORI > AT LA BB 10% > 30%
30% M 30% ©

shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$8.26. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 23
December 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 to 22 December 2019.

As for the share option granted on January 17, 2011, the closing price of the shares
on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$12.88. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 17 January
2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 to 16 January 2021.

As for the share option granted on September 28, 2011, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$8.17. The exercisable period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr.
Shao Mingxiao is from September 28, 2017 to September 27, 2021. The remaining
options are exercisable in 4 tranches from 28 September 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
to 27 September 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30% and 30%

respectively.
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As for the share option granted on November 4, 2014, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$9.37. The options are exercisable in 5 tranches from 4 November 2015,
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 to 3 November 2024, the exercisable percentage is 10%,
15%, 20%, 25% and 30% respectively.

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates on which

the option were exercised was HK$ 22.9567.

A summary of the principal terms of the Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)

is set out as follow:

@

(ii)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants (defined
in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted Options under the
Scheme to subscribe for shares with the opportunity to acquire
share interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the benefit

of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service providers
of any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the

“Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

Initially the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme or any other
option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the
Scheme. The lapsed share options are excluded when calculating
the 10% limit.

A total number of 309,301,500 shares, representing 5.21% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report, are

available for issue under the Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to each
Participant in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant of the Options shall not exceed 1% of the total number of

shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must

expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the grant.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per share under the Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK for the five SEHK
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of a share on the date of grant.



(viii) sl 30 R 49
FIEEMERE 2~ LE+ A
=t—H o WE > SERER B
AT A B A HE > (HL BT A I P 1 5%
HABAIAT(E - SRR A
R e

VR P P A S it

RRERA S BT R RG> il
FEABAMBHEBEANAE T AAFA#SE
GHR_F-WETAZHAHTRAEH )
A A R R A R T A R D Y
B)) o BRIFEE R G R AL - SR
A ERA H I R R AR o IR ME AL > A
KNFEBAL B TR (TMERE)) » RREZFEAATR
i85 AR 2 BB WA R A A28 R 4R
R CBITIA T S 2 =2 e - A RAR RE
AR EE B THA > 225 R RD R
MEEER TAIL -

MM EE —F— A NFEFZA=1+—H
IEZFEAC RS b A LA 98,651,340 B ik
o (AR AFR A A B BT A 1.819% -
H 121,502,840 M e ik —F — N4+ A
Zt—HIEFEEREA > RE (SRS ER)
Fts% 438,973,035 7C »

mEAHERE —F - FE+Z=+—HI

Z25t87,385,000 B ey L2 T AE B L > B4
2517117500 R ERFEEER T -

R

Report of the Directors

(viii) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid until October 31, 2019 after which
no further Options will be granted under the Scheme but in
respect of all Options which remain exercisable on such date, the

provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

To ensure long-term competitiveness of the Group, and encourage employees
for their sustained input and effectiveness, the Board of the Company resolved
to adopt a restricted share award scheme (the “Award Scheme”) on October 28,
2014 (the “Adoption Date”). Unless sooner terminated by the Board, the Award
Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption Date and shall continue in full force
and effect for a term of 8 years. According to the Award Scheme, the Company
has established a trust for the employees (the “Trust”), trustee can purchased
shares up to 3% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption
Date from the market out of cash contributed by the Group and be held in trust
for the relevant selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant

selected employees.

From the Adoption Date to December 31, 2018, the Company had through the
trustee purchased total 98,651,340 shares from the market, representing 1.81%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date, 21,502,840
shares of which were purchased in the year ended December 31, 2018 at an

aggregate consideration of HK$ 438,973,035 (including transaction costs).

From the Adoption Date to December 31, 2018,there were accumulated
87,385,000 Shares were granted to Selected Employees and there were

accumulated 7,117,500 shares vested to Selected Employees.
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B2 b % DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

HHEEEETHRANBZRER Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

NZFE—NEFTZH=Z+—H EEFREAN As at December 31, 2018, the interests of the directors and chief executive of
j Igﬁﬂ[ N B ALY B R HE AT A AR T 2 the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
76 R Ir RO B R0 (198 27 B B 4] 1) and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
%XVjﬁ BEAT AR R R 7 B B R 9156 352 1k and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were
SE R BT B s R required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
/\"%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\j [T W T A8 i ) 7 25 | ikl the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”)
AT B R0 1) BBk 1 LT 8T N ST 8 pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
738 oy WO AR HE ST ) ([RE SRS I 1) R 6 A 4 W) Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
T W W 28 T 22 Ay~ FE T P M AR i 2 the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

AR :
s Ay w AR (4P ) Interest in the Company (long position)
PR AR FRER
ZhEts BEAE 4 1
sigiliye {3 Interest in ~ Approximate %
ERA B/ RSP Number of underlying of interest in
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares shares the Company
(M7t 3)
(Note 3)
DG A 2 R (B 1) 2,609,148,201 - 43.936%
Wu Yajun Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
(L g0t/ ZEUN 13,618,690 28,048,000 0.702%
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner
fartZa A (FfE2) 7,400,000 - 0.125%
Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
it ik HRa A 204,398 1,650,000 0.031%
Zhao Yi Beneficial Owner
fartZa A (fisE2) 3,700,000 - 0.062%
Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
B JogE 2PN 639,134 1,650,000 0.039%
Li Chaojiang Beneficial Owner
fartZam A (fieE2) 2,300,000 - 0.039%
Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
LEREE JogE; ZEUN 445,000 - 0.007%
Frederick Peter Churchouse Beneficial Owner
B % Eaa A - 400,000 0.007%
Chan Chi On, Derek Beneficial Owner
05 Jog ok 2PN 160,000 240,000 0.007%
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner
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Notes:

1 These 2,609,148,201 Shares are held by Charm Talent International Limited (“Charm
Talent”). The entire issued share capital of Charm Talent is indirectly wholly-owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International Trustee”) as the trustee of the
XTH Trust. Madam Wu Yajun ("madam Wu") has received an undertaking from Madam
Cai Xinyi (“Madam Cai”), the settlor of the XTH Trust, pursuant to which Madam Cai
has undertaken to procure Charm Talent to exercise the voting rights of the Shares held by
Charm Talent in accordance with Madam Wu's instructions. As Madam Wu is entitled to
control the exercise of the voting power of the Shares held by Charm Talent, Madam Wu is
taken to be interested in the 2,609,148,201 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO. Madam Wu does not have personal interest in the Shares.

2 Such number of shares are held on trust by Dragon Dynasty Asset Limited (“Dragon
Dynasty”). The entire issued share capital of Dragon Dynasty is wholly-owned by HSBC
Trustee (HK) Limited (“HSBC (HK) Trustee”) as the trustee of the Dragon Dynasty Share
Award Trust. The Dragon Dynasty Share Award Trust was set up on October 28, 2014 with
HSBC (HK) Trustee acting as the trustee thereof. The beneficiary objects of the Dragon
Dynasty Share Award Trust are certain selected employees and directors of the Group as

participants of the Restricted Share Award Schemes adopted by the Company.

3 The relevant directors was granted options to subscribe for such number of shares under the

Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register which
were required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.
Other than the Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 1 November 2009,
none of Directors or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had been
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company

or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at December 31, 2018, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in
the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

ARG RS (5P ) Interest in the Company (long position)
B ZF—)\4E
T+ZH=Z+—H
A w RS
WBEAE 43 e
of interest
9 5 H in the Company
JBe 3R bk 44 B WS Number of As at
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares  December 31, 2018
HSBC International Trustee ZREN (e~ 2 K3) 4,154,175,105 69.954%
Trustee (Notes 1, 2 and 3)
Charm Talent HROHEA A (k1) 2,609,148,201 43.936%
Registered owner (Note 1)
Bt SREMEFERIIEA (FEE) 2,609,148,201 43.936%
Madam Cai Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
Silver Sea SRR 2 Mg (e 1) 2,609,148,201 43.936%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
5% ZREAR SR (Bi3E 2) 1,544,941,904 26.016%
Cai Kui Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2)
Junson Development International BROHEA N (MG 2) 1,544,941,904 26.016%
Limited (“Junson Development”) Registered owner (Note 2)
Silverland Assets Limited S 2 A (FEE 2) 1,544,941,904 26.016%
(“Silverland”) Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2)
Jumbomax Investments Limited ZAENE E 2 R A (BT 4) 350,130,000 5.896%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
SotIE SR 2 A (B 4) 350,130,000 5.896%
Woo Kwong Ching, Peter Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
NS T {2 W45 (Bt 5k 4) 350,130,000 5.896%

Pao Pui Yung, Bessie

Interest of spouse (Note 4)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &2 j# £ [# 4% J& 5 R A 7
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Report of the Directors

According to the information provided by Silver Sea, these 2,609,148,201 shares are held
by Charm Talent. The entire issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver
Sea, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee as the trustee of the XTH Trust. The XTH Trust is a discretionary trust set up
by Madam Cai, the daughter of Madam W, as settlor with HSBC International Trustee
as trustee on October 22, 2018. Madam Cai as founder of the XTH Trust is taken to be
interested in the 2,609,148,201 shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

According to the information provided by Silverland, these 1,544,941,904 shares are held
by Junson Development. The entire issued share capital of Junson Development is wholly
owned by Silverland, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by
HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is
a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai as settlor and HSBC International Trustee as trustee
on June 11, 2008. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust is taken to be interested in the
1,544,941,904 shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interest filing submitted (dated December 27, 2018), these
85,000 shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee of several other trusts

which are independent third parties of XTH Trust and Cai Family Trust.

According to the latest disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated January 8, 2016),
these 350,130,000 shares represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments
Limited through a number of its wholly owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching, Peter
is interested in these 350,130,000 shares through the interest of corporation controlled by
him while Ms. Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is interested in these 350,130,000 shares through the

interest of spouse.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme purchased on
the SEHK a total of 21,502,840 shares at a total consideration of approximately
HK$438,973,035 pursuant to the terms of the trust deed under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme. Other than the aforesaid, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations concerning overall
environmental protection, impact to the environment, noise pollution and

environmental protection for development projects.

We place high emphasis on complying with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. We require our own staff and construction contractors to comply
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to the quality of construction
including environmental, labour, social and safety regulations, as well as our

own standards and specifications.

We believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable

environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the

applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the directors confirm
that the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under

the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Schemes” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were

entered into during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Group Holdings Limited
Wu Yajun

Chairperson

Hong Kong, March 25, 2019

# # Annual Report 2018

71



72

1856 iR ol

Corporate Governance Report

ARREFERARERE —F—/E+ A
=t —HIEEZREFIR]RS -

e 3igiREl]

ARFMBAFENERLHEHDERE - Bh
T IR K HE ) A SE A IR B At T A A 4 3
B A S T U A AR R R T R
E

AR ARE—HRT - BN SEsy
TR0 S0 S k- L S 36 0 S FU (TS B BT e
SPRRREE o MEDATT f BERR ST -

RAAE LI > A B R % S VR OCE AL Tk
BRI RZ Z B G > EFNEY - ZIET
fFMEEGER A E L L HREETTAT -
TR S R 5 A AL & 2 v 3% R O 1Y
FORAREE R G R HEH GO ABR
AR (B AR ECRE ~ Rk X KB > WY A S
ERELERHNE > GEFERFNERGIR
FHBAL - ERERL hEFEEHAR
HEHEAWHIRLZEGELT G AR RE
B -

BeABOR

REAAFREBEEN > AFEHRGR L &
BB h#E R e TR AR AR N ERRY
R RZZBEE R AARREIN - &
HEMARRARTHERG AT RS
HHPOR -

fies O 3 S INIFcrL iR 3 YN
BUESRE - AR B S F AT A I IR A A0 ORS
VIR E S ¢ A & U INGE s AN
H A B 4 5 B B ST 1

AR B R WATH

SRR LR F L - WTEHABE
S AL AL H TS - EFATmN AL
BT H (E4F R 4 ) R KBS BT
A8 RSB - BHE LR AR
RS o F TR B A W3
MEEEAL o ORI A AT LA

Longfor Group Holdings Limited &2 j# £ [# 4% J& 5 R A 7

The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except the following deviation:

During the year, the Company has not established Nomination Committee as
required by the provision A.5 of the Code. Madam Wu Yajun, Chairperson
of the Board, is responsible for the nomination and appointment of directors.
Madam Wu, as the Chairperson of the Board, will review and discuss with
other Board members on the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board from time to time based on
the requirements matching up with the Company’s corporate strategy, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and make
recommendations to the Board on individuals nominated for directorships. The
Board is of view that Chairperson responsible for the nomination directorship is
more appropriate to reflect the Company’s status quo than the establishment of
Nomination Committee.

NOMINATION POLICY

According to the actual situation of the Company, the Board of the Company
is of view that Chairperson responsible for the nomination directorship is
more appropriate than the establishment of Nomination Committee at current
period. The Board of the Company will review the existing nomination policy,

nomination of director by the Chairperson from time to time.

During the process of evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship,
qualifications including professional skills and experience, and willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as member of the Board, will be
considered. Further, the candidates would be considered his/her independence

with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Madam Wu Yajun serves as the Chairperson of the Board whereas Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, an executive director, serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board currently comprises four executive directors (including
Madam Wu) and four independent non-executive Directors and therefore has
a fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Chairperson of
the Board should be responsible for the management of the Board while the
Chief Executive Officer should be responsible for the day-to-day management of
business. The division of responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:
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Responsibilities of the Chairperson of the Board:

1.

7.

8.

To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities; to ensure that good

corporate governance practices and procedures are established.

To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairperson of the Board committees, or

the appropriate alternate on the meeting.

To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of
development, annual budget and significant organizational and structural

adjustments.
To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
To provide leadership in respect of corporate risk and crisis management.

To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management
and Board members of the Company; to participate under the
recommendation of the remuneration committee in decision making
in respect of remuneration and bonuses of, and share option incentive
schemes for, directors and senior management, and other material changes
and reforms in human resources management system and remuneration

system.
To participate inauguration of key projects.

To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.

Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer:

1.

To provide leadership in the daily corporate operation, the execution of

corporate strategies and achieving the objectives of plans.

To establish and continuously improve the management system and

management team.

To lead the management team and continue to retain and train

management talents.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, including four executive
directors namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhao Yi and
Mr. Li Chaojiang and four independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr.
Zeng Ming.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group's business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and (e) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report). During the year, the
Board has reviewed the Code of Conduct of the Group, assessed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, assessed the training
needs of the Directors and senior management and arranged relevant trainings
accordingly, and reviewed the status of compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Board was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Company’s

corporate governance policy.

The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights
of management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to
time to ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper
reporting procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also
established various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in

accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, businesses, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.
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All of the independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options under the Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on November 1, 2009, details of which are
set out in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors a confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of

the independent non-executive directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.

Board diversity policy
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) since August

19, 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy,
the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to professional experience, culture
and education background, skill and knowledge, gender, age and length of

service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable objectives to

implement the Policy.
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WirESH Executive Directors
REH Wu Yajun

FR TG Shao Mingxiao

i Zhao Yi

ZHIL Li Chaojiang

During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings and one

general meeting, the attendance of each director is as follows:

BT E R Independent non-executive Directors

HATE Frederick Peter Churchouse
Bk % Chan Chi On, Derek

i Xiang Bing

05 Zeng Ming
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No. of Board meetings No. of general meetings

attended/Total no. Attended/Total no.

of Board meetings of general meetings

4/4 In!

4/4 111

4/4 In!

4/4 111

4/4 111

4/4 In!

4/4 111

4/4 In!
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on November 1,
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
paragraph B.1.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include evaluating and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration system and package of the directors and senior
management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee consists
of Madam Wu Yajun and Mr. Li Chaojiang, two executive directors, and Mr.
Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, three independent
non-executive directors. Mr. Zeng Ming is the Chairperson of Remuneration

Committee.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year to conduct a
review on the remuneration structure of the directors and senior management
and a review on the basic remuneration interval of senior management of the

Group. The attendance of each member is as follows:

R k2 R

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
1/1
/1
1/1
/1

1/1

Details of the remuneration of the directors during the year are set out in note
45 to the financial statements. The remuneration of the Senior Management

during the year falls within the following bands:

N ¢
Number of Individuals
i i
(B ZA)  ORERM A
Total Total
remuneration remuneration
(including (excluding
share-based share-based
payment) payment)
6,000,000 #5762 7,000,000 ¥5 7T HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,000,000 — -
7,000,000 ¥ 7T £ 8,000,000 # JT HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000 - —
8,000,000 ¥ 7G % 9,000,000 ¥ 7T HK$8,000,000 to HK$9,000,000 - -
9,000,000 #5762 10,000,000 #5 T HK$9,000,000 to HK$10,000,000 — -
10,000,000 %5 G LA | Over HK$10,000,000 6 6
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company established the Audit Committee on November 1, 2009 with

written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems of the Group and nominating
and monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek,
Mzr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr.
Chan Chi On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
chairperson of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and

accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the risk management and internal control systems, interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor

before submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R R R

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
2/2
2/2

2/2

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee reports directly to the Board and is responsible for
investment proposal (including but not limited to appraising land acquisition
as well as making land purchase decisions) submitted by the regional companies
and the business development department of the headquarters. The Investment
Committee currently consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr.
Zhao Yi, Mr. Wang Guangjian, Mr. Hu Ruoxiang and Mr. Chang Keyi.



REN > HERBEAR 731 RE® - LM
679 fRIA FEAT Rl i R BLE R - LT X%
B a0k

ZHEA Name of members
SR Wu Yajun

fiR Shao Mingxiao

i Zhao Yi

T Wang Guangjian
[iiEaszl] Hu Ruoxiang
R Chang Keyi

MRS R R

RERERNBA LB EORARRE > AL
ACAEF L LEBEEED - FR > AR
RO WAL A B D B IR B
AT ERIN AT & > LR g Rk AT &
o ST 55 = 7 W AL I e O 1 o T R
HEE BT RS o

WAL~ ZAE K

A S ST B B o B A
BRTALE S UM B LT ESEN
BV o B R MATEEOE A =4 - R
BAR A AR ERGA - (e 5 B E R
Lo ER =02 S e H B =1 fs
B AU B HAR DI =00 2 — I N i
FUBAT > M0 3 AR i D B = AR R
FRG LB K - EHGHBENEFHES
JE A28 A ) SSE T ~ ACBR M ABIT K -

e SRR &
Corporate Governance Report

The Investment Committee held 31 meetings during the year, to discuss and
make investment decision on 679 projects. The attendance of each member is as

follows:

iACE Ve VSR Ve

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
31/31
29/31
31/31
31/31
30/31

25125

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors are aware of the latest development relevant to
the operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable
training for the Directors. During the year, relevant Directors have attended
the corporate governance related training organized by the Company. Certain
directors also attended business seminars, and seminars organized by accounting
firm and the third party institutes on directors” duties and development in

securities laws.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the Nomination Committee has not been established, the Board as
a whole will be responsible for the selection and approval of the new Directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years.
Under the articles of associations of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. The Board will consider the factors including
the expertise, experience and integrity of the candidates when selecting the new

Directors.
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The shareholders of the Company may propose a person for election as a director
in accordance with Articles of Association of the Company and applicable law,
details of which are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com
set out in the “Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election as

director of the Company” of the Company.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMB6,659,000 and RMB2,158,000, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2018 which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
directors consider that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts
that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board and the management. The directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going

concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 112 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of
internal control. The Company has established internal audit department which
is responsible for the independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and for the periodic report of the auditing result to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control system of the

Company.
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During the year, all the functional departments in the Group constantly
strengthened their daily supervision and improved their internal management,
respectively. The Group had launched certain measures and improvement in
various management systems to enhance its internal control, including the
Sub-suppliers Management System of the Group, the Measures for Safety
Management of Projects under Construction of the Group, the Grading
Management Measures for Target Cost and Bidding of Construction Projects
of the Group, Supplemental Management System for Bidding of Medium and
Light Asset Projects of Champion Apartments under the Group, Marketing
Expense Management System Standard 2018 of Longfor Group (5 [ & i1 &
S8 75 ) 13 1 2018 4FRT), Regulations on Paid Service and Handling
of Violation of Relevant Tenants of Self-owned Commercial Project Property of
the Group 2018 (42 1 155 7 75 F ¥ SR BRAEL S A (R MBS Wi e S M AT
T B PR 2018 HEM ), Management System on Significant Adjustment
(Construction Phase) of Self-owned Commercial Property of the Group 2018
(B2 BB 4 S TR o (R AR BRI ¥ 2018 ML), Early Warning
Inventory Management System of the Group 2018 (& Bl 11 [W/A Rl {7 & %
EIHHEE 2018 £ M), Administrative Regulations on the Generated Risks and
Cessation of Champion Apartments Group 2018 (£ [l 7 8 & %t Jal by J& {5
1k %548 R E 2018 4 i), Longfor Group 4217 System and Graded Review
Management Measures 2018 edition (FEWIAE [ 4217 #8 R RO RT3 B
1% 2018 %1t ), Administrative Regulations on Customer-side Defects Feedback
of Champion Apartments Group 2018 (4 B 8 % 5 vy e b F 68 5 5L o
2018 %F-H), Audit Accountability System of the Group 2018 ({4 B %51 H1 &
B> 2018 4R ) and Administrative Regulations on Staff Penalty 2018 (( &
TR HIE) 2018 4, etc.

During the year, the internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of operation and internal control of the

Company, and carried out a series of audit projects, which includes:
1. Routine audit of Jinan Longfor

2. Routine audit of Nanjing Longfor

3. Routine audit of Tianjin Longfor

4. Routine audit of Chengdu Longfor

5. Routine audit of Chongqing Longfor

6. Routine audit of Xiamen Longfor
7. Special audit of Champion Apartments
8. Special audit of general administrative issues

& 3 Annual Report 2018
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The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch in 2018 and appointed its corporate risk
management services department to assess and evaluate the internal control
of the Company. The scope of re-assessment includes internal control and
protection measures related to our business risks and the control of business
flow. Our business covered risks of economic fluctuation and changes of policies,
risks of strategic positioning and business integration, risks of judgement errors
of real estate cycles, risks of urban layout selection and land selection, risk of
location selection for commercial properties and positioning risk, supplies and
inventory risk, risk of sales products positioning, cash flow risk, risk of property
operating model and design quality risk. Control of business flow covered
customer service management, construction quality management, property
management and review on the optimization of the tendering management
authority. The re-assessment report of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified
Public Accountants LLP demonstrates the Group has established key internal
control and process within the selected scope of work to respond to relevant

risks. The overall control condition of the Company is good.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit reports and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended

December 31, 2018 is effective and sufficient.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is the basic and necessary factor for achieving
strategic goals of the Group. As such, the Group has established the Risk
Management System of Longfor Group, which specifies the Group’s risk
management organizational system, detailed responsibility, overall procedures
of risk management, risk assessment method and regular risk reporting

mechanism.
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Risk management organizational system: The risk management organizational
system of Longfor Group consists of three basic lines of defense under the
leadership of the Board, namely the business departments directly under the
Company as the first line of defense; the risk management team consisting of
the general manager of functional departments of the Group with the CEO as
team leader and CFO as deputy team leader as the second line of defense; and
the Audit Committee and internal audit centre as the third line of defense.
The Board shall be the ultimate accountability body of risk management,
and shall have the right to provide guidance and make final decisions on the
policy, system and responding plan of risk management of the Group, conduct
assessment on the risk appetite of the Group and control the balance between
the realization of strategic goals and risk management. The Audit Committee
and internal audit centre are authorized by the Board to advise on and monitor
the implementation of risk management of the Group and review the annual
risk management report. The risk management team is responsible for the
ongoing improvement of risk management system as well as the implementation
of management procedures including risk identification, assessment, responding
plan and risk management report, covering the annual update of risk database,
follow-up and monitoring of the implementation of responding plan and
the preparation and reporting of the risk management report. The business
departments are risk owners and shall manage and monitor their respective risk

exposure.

Major risk management procedures: Through various interviews and
communications with the management members of different business units
and the headquarter of the Company, the management procedures have been
formulated, which include target setting, risk identification, risk assessment,

risk response and supervision and risk reporting.

®  Target setting: Target setting is the first step of risk management. The
Company shall firstly set the annual target in order to identify and
assess the risks affecting the realization of the target and take necessary
action to control such risks. The targets of the Company are set in four
aspects, namely strategic target, operational target, compliance target and

financial target.

®  Risk identification: The identification of risk events from the operational
activities and important business procedures of each business unit
shall be conducted in bottom-up and top-down approaches through
questionnaire, group discussion, expert consultation, policy analysis and
industry benchmarking. Risk database shall be established and updated
annually. Risk owner and responding measures shall be determined for

risks identified.

& 3 Annual Report 2018
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®  Risk assessment: The Company shall rank the risks identified through
assessment based on vulnerability and effect. Risk management team
shall conduct annual review on the risk assessment criteria (vulnerability
and effect) and report to the Audit Committee and final approved by the
Board.

®  Risk response: Based on the result of risk assessment, the business units
of the Group shall propose the risk management and control measures
and recommendations for the risks involved in various aspects such as
improvement of business procedures and internal control system as well as
control of key procedures, and formulate relevant responding plans. Such
management and control plans shall be implemented in daily operation in

the form of management regulation.

®  Risk reporting: The Company has established the systems of annual
risk management report and special risk management report. The risk
management team shall prepare the annual report and special report with

the support of internal audit department.

In early 2019, the Group conducted the risk identification and assessment for
2019 and mapped out the risks faced by Longfor Group in 2019, which include
21 medium level risks and 8 low level risks. The Group also determined the
top ten risk 2019 and formulated the responding plan through the assessment
based on vulnerability and effect. The top ten risk included risk related to the
economic fluctuation and change of policy, risk related to strategy positioning
and business portfolio, risk related to mis-judgment of real estate market cycle,
cash flow risk, risk related to urban location and plot selection, supplies and
inventory risk, risks related to organisational change, risk related to residential
product positioning, risks related to digitization transformation, risks related
to project delivery. Details of risks and responding plans were submitted by the
Audit Committee and confirmed by the Board for approval. During the year,
the Group monitored the implementation of risk management based on the risk

responding plans and prepared a report at the end of the year.

The Board is of opinion that the risk management system of the Group for the

year ended December 31, 2018 is effective and sufficient.

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and shall review the effectiveness of such systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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DISCLOSURE INSIDE INFORMATION

Inside Information Disclosure Working Group (hereinafter referred to as

“Inside Information Working Group”) is a working group established under

the Board of the Company, which is responsible for the administration of inside

information disclosure.

The Composition of Inside Information Working Group

The team leader of the Inside Information Working Group is the chief

executive officer of the Group.

The members of the Inside Information Working Group include: the
chairman of the Board, the chief financial officer, the company secretary,
the officer in charge of Investor Relations, the officer in charge of Public

Affairs and Media, and the officer in charge of the Legal Department.

The secretary of the Inside Information Working Group is the company
secretary, who is responsible for communicating and reporting between

the Inside Information Working Group and the Board.

The Terms of References for the Inside Information Working Group

The Inside Information Working Group is the daily execution unit that
is engaged in the preliminary determination and handling of inside

information, whilst the Board is the decision making unit.

The Inside Information Working Group conducts proper inquiry,
confirms fact, preliminarily assesses sensitive informations’ significant to

the Company, and timely reports to the Board where necessary.

The Inside Information Working Group regularly review the effectiveness
and execution of the processes. It also conducts training from time to
time, so as to ensure that the staffs of the Company that may be exposed
to inside information are aware of the disclosure liability and handling

principles for inside information.

& 3 Annual Report 2018
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Handling Procedures That May Involve Inside Information

As to the business information that is reasonably expected in becoming inside
information (including, but not limited to acquisitions and mergers, movement

in share capital, and organizational restructuring etc.):

> The relevant staff capturing such information shall report to the Inside
Information Working Group promptly, and has the duty to keep such

information confidential;

> The Inside Information Working Group shall conduct proper
investigation and confirmation of facts for the said information.
Where necessary, it will make preliminary judgment upon consulting
professional opinions and report to the Board promptly. The relevant
disclosure matters will be conducted by the company secretary and the

Legal Department;

> If the said information is involved with Safe Habours, the Inside
Information Working Group shall supervise and ensure the
confidentiality of the information. If it is noted that the confidentiality of
the information has not been preserved, it shall report to the Board and

disclose the information as soon as reasonably practicable.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2018 in relation to their securities

dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of

the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Madam Zhang Lei joined the Group in 2008, and is an employee of the
Company. She was appointed as company secretary on August 21, 2015. Madam
Zhang graduated from the Central University of Finance and Economics with
a bachelor’s degree in international finance. She is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an Affiliated Person of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well
as establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a
stringent internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely
disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all investors equally access to information.
The Company has an investor relations department to serve as an important
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders, investors
and analysts. To strive for effective communication and transparency of the
Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with the shareholders
and investors through various channels such as internet, telephone and email.
During the relevant year, the Company has introduced its development strategy
and recent business development to the investors in large investment forums and
site visits. On-site visits to the projects of the Company have been arranged for
the fund managers and analysts from Hong Kong and overseas. The Company
endeavours to create opportunities for direct communication with investors and
to provide the latest development of the Company as well as information of
the PRC real property industry to the capital market in time. In addition, the
annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairperson of the Board, as well as chairperson of
each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members of the respective
Committees, and the external auditors of the Company, is available to answer
questions from shareholders at annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings of the Company. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced. The Company maintains a website
at www.longfor.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance and

other information are available for public access.
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Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations of
the SEHK, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Group
endeavours to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful
and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to

make rational and informed decisions.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings.
Any one or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the company'’s articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set

out in the above paragraph.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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With growing concern on corporate social responsibility, in order to enable
stakeholders to have a better understanding of the policy, measures and
performance regarding environment, society and governance of the Group,
the Group has prepared this Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(hereinafter referred as the “Report”) in accordance with the requirements of
Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Main Board Listing Rules of the SEHK.

The Report covers the principal businesses in relation to property development,
commercial properties, long-term rental apartments and smart service during
the period from January 1 to December 31, 2018 (hereinafter referred as the

“reporting period”).

The Board is responsible for supervising the Group's environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) strategy and reporting. The management of the
Group is responsible for implementing relevant policies and measures to
ensure the effectiveness of risk management and internal control system in
the environmental, social and governance aspects and to promote the Group’s

sustainable development.
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In order to provide stakeholders with contents and information which meet their
expectation, the Group has engaged the Management and staff from various
departments for the preparation of the Report. According to our review on the
Group’s operations, understanding towards related environmental, social and
governance issues and analysis on the importance of those issues to stakeholders,

we have developed the following reporting scope for the Report:

Aspects set out in the Environmental,

Material Environmental,

Social and Governance Reporting
Guide of the SEHK

Social and Governance Aspects

A. Environmental
Al. Emissions ®  Emissions from property
development projects
* Emissions of greenhouse gases
* Waste
A2. Use of Resources °

®  Use of water

Use of energy

A3. The Environment and Natural ® Management of the impact on the

Resources environment and natural resources
B. Social
B1. Employment ® Recruitment and dismissal
®  Performance assessment
®  Attendance and leave
®  Other welfares
*  Equal opportunities
B2. Health and Safety ®  Workplace health and safety
B3. Development and Training ®  Staff development and training
®  New staff training course
®  Vocational schools
®  Leadership Training Camp
B4. Labour Standards ®  Prevention of child and
forced labour
BS. Supply Chain Management ® Management of environmental and

social risks in the supply chain

B6. Product Responsibility ®  Quality of products and services

B7. Anti-corruption ® Anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering

B8. Community Investment *  Community engagement program

and donation
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Al

Emissions

As a leading real estate developer in China, the Group places high
emphasis on sustainable development of projects and supporting
environmental protection. The Group has real estate projects
over major cities in China providing quality services for tens of
thousands of customers. We implement comprehensive emission
and waste reduction policies, such that environmental factors have
been taken into serious consideration at every stage from project
planning to operation. The Group introduces environmental
elements into our project designs and achieves the target of energy
conservation and emission reduction through various innovative
technologies and forward-looking design proposals, so as to control

emission at source.

The Group is committed to complying with laws and regulations
with respect to the environment in China, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the Peoples Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance

with laws and regulations with respect to the environment.

Emissions from property development projects

The construction of all the property development projects of
the Group is outsourced to third-party contractors. As such, the
Group does not directly generate air emissions, water discharge
and construction waste pollution arising from construction
work. However as a green enterprise, the Group shoulders the
responsibility of supervising the environmental protection work of
contractors. The Group has formulated Measures for Management
of Project Quality Examination and Assessment of Longfor
Group to evaluate construction work based on worksite clearance,
storage of construction materials, worksite management and other
factors, so as to encourage contractors to minimize impact on the
environment. Such evaluation is carried out on a regular basis and
the evaluation result will also be taken into account subsequently
when selecting contractors. The policy encourages contractors
to carry out green construction for reducing air emissions, water
discharge and construction waste and to engage qualified recyclers

to handle construction waste so as to avoid secondary pollution.
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Emissions of greenhouse gases

Emissions of greenhouse gases by the Group are primarily
attributable to use of energy. During the reporting period, carbon
dioxide equivalent (CO2e) generated from the Group’s operation
totaled 626,680 tons'. We have executed various energy-saving
plans to reduce our carbon footprint. Please refer to the part “A2

Use of Resources” below.

Waste

Wastes generated internally by the Group are primarily
consumables in its offices and project areas. In accordance with
the internationally accepted 4Rs waste management principle
(i.e. reusing materials, replacing with eco-friendly alternatives,
reducing wastes and recycling), we have proactively implemented
various emission and waste reduction measures in daily operation
to reduce wastes generated from offices and property management,
promoted awareness of environmental protection among staff and
customers, and encouraged participation, so as to achieve synergy.
During the reporting period, the major type of wastes generated by
the Group were paper products, such as office paper and paper cups
used in the reception, totalling 363,939 kilograms; and plastic
bottles for drinking water at its offices and project areas, totalling
1,516.76 kilograms.”

The Group handles waste in line with green principles. All the
wastes generated from its offices, shopping malls and property
management are collected by qualified contractors. The Group
also reduces wastes at source. Departments have implemented
various waste reduction measures and reduced wastes based on the

principles of replace, reduce and recycle.

The calculation of carbon emission is performed in accordance with UK Government
Conversion Factors for greenhouse gas (GHG) reporting published by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs
of HKEx and Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China promulgated by
the Department of Climate Change of the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC.

It represented the procurement volume (which is similar to the waste volume) of
consumables of the Group during the reporting period and did not include those wastes
generated by tenants, property owners or other third-parties in the Group’s projects or

properties.
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In daily office work, the Group promotes paperless office, which
makes use of computer system for approval and record, so as to
avoid paper waste. Offices also promote double sided printing.
Printers are installed with toners and ink cartridges with
environmental certification and capable of controlling the number
of colour printing. Recycling trays for printed papers are placed
next to the printers, so as to increase the reuse of printed papers
and generate less waste papers. Waste papers and paper boxes are
collected by recyclers for recycling. In order to reduce the waste of
plastic bottles and paper cups, office staff proactively bring their

own cups.

Apart from offices, the Group has also formulated a series of
initiatives in property management for projects to reduce the
wastes generated by the operation of the Group itself and its
shopping malls and ensure wastes are properly handled in an
environmentally-friendly manner. The Group places recycling
bins at project sites for sorting and recycling domestic wastes and
construction wastes, and increasing the efficiency of recycling.
All of the wastes generated from its projects are removed and
handled by qualified professional cleaning companies or municipal
sanitation department. For rubbish storage, the Group adopts
advanced compression-type rubbish bins to avoid stink, flies and
mosquitoes. The Group also organizes training on waste sorting in
its projects areas, which mainly targets property owners, promoters
of waste sorting and property cleaning staff etc., to improve the
effectiveness of recycling of wastes. Regarding biological wastes,
the Group performs hazard-free decomposition with microbial
agents in biochemical pools and grilles of projects and professional
contractors are engaged for the manual and mechanical cleaning of

biochemical pools to reduce biological waste discharge.
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In addition, the Group conducted separate sorting for municipal
solid waste and construction waste regarding its property
operation, to achieve an orderly, clean environment and reduce the
amount of pollution to the environment; For non-hazardous waste
such as recyclable paper and plastics, the Group arranged qualified
professional cleaning companies to carry out recycling and reusing
procedures; For hazardous waste that are not recyclable, the Group
arranged professional companies to carry out innocuous treatment

to reduce the pollution to the environment.

Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with the Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and helps its employees to develop

the habit of resource saving and recycling.

In order to protect natural resources and enhance operating
efficiency, we closely monitor and maximise the use of resources
and put an end to waste. Each of our departments reports on the
use of resources regularly and takes timely action to tackle the

problems identified.

The Group also compiles a series of policies in respect of the use of
various natural resources and energy, and promotes energy-saving
and cost-saving measures through staff manual and posters for

employees’ reference.
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Use of energy

The Group’s direct energy consumption was mainly petrol used in
vehicles for administrative purpose. During the reporting period,
the volume of petrol used by the Group totalled 428,380 litres.
The Group's indirect energy consumption was mainly electricity,
totalling 1,546,299,068 kWh’.

We are aware that reduction in energy use not only can reduce
greenhouse gases emission, but also save unnecessary expenses for
the Group. As such, during the reporting period, the Group has
implemented various energy-saving plans to enhance its energy

efficiency.

In our offices, the Group provides employees with low-power-
consuming notebooks, and energy-efficient lighting system
are deployed in office. In addition, the Group raises employee
awareness of energy-saving through emails and notices, such as
reminding them to turn off the lights and air-conditioners after
work. We install video equipments in offices to promote video
conferencing as possible and curtail business travel to bring down
carbon emissions from transportation. Lastly, the Group has
remodified the air-conditioning system in our commercial property
projects and adopted ice thermal storage technology to raise
the efficiency of the air-conditioning system, thereby reducing

electricity consumption.
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A T T 4 R I T A ) 2 T Y The Group promotes energy-saving measures in property
HR 25y 6 A0 4 5 3t O AT B AR management departments in major cities for the real estate projects
i > DA B A JUJ 28 B B 4 17 2 HE AT A in the region, taking a lead in driving the industry to undertake
WEBRERTHE - %0038 & H ) 26 18 corresponding energy-saving measures. With the efforts of the
FIEY%5 ) - FRAMAE & (R TS T property management departments, we have achieved the following
PATF R results in various cities:

A AT EE Y W E

Regional Measures and results of energy conservation and emission reduction

Company
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Shanghai JE B BN R 9,479,332 70 ©

Honggqiao J Hotel won the Shanghai Annual Green Construction Award; Hongqiao Project

received a special development fund subsidy for green buildings of RMB9,479,332 in Honggiao

business district in October 2018.

Hh DFFCEOR B AR - 1 o5 (R A T R E R W 0.62 A s AR F 050 7

Qingdao Energy conservation policy of the government were studied by the Qingdao company and the
overall price of electricity were reduced from RMB0.62 to RMBO0.50.

E S 3 o BRERIE RETT B0 o RN ARER ORI LED B > FRAK T I FE - 24— I 43,995 1
Property AT AR L ks 25 LED BB H, > 2018 SRR AR LR 4 1,711,224 F LI
Management With renovation of garage lamps, the use of more energy-saving and eco-friendly LED lights, and

reduction of electricity consumption, a total of 43,995 traditional lamps throughout the year were
turned into LED lamps. And a total of 1,711,224 kWh’ of electricity were saved throughout 2018.

LES 4 SR B0 BEBR (R LED 8 . > SRS HRLED R 15,763 1 BB LED RS 58,439 % » HHLED

Business B 8,950 K 5 RMEGIASE =T REARN > FIEE R~ 2290~ PokSE RG0S I R Bk
X BERUKI R RS - HEAHAER > R4 EE 1,300 BT ILH -
Via the promotion of widespread use of energy-saving and eco-friendly LED lamps, a total of
15,763 LED down lights, 58,439 LED lamps, and LED lamp belt of 8,950 meters were renovated.
The third-party testing system was fully introduced to provide data support for project lighting,
air conditioning, water supply and drainage system improvement; Through the trial of solar power
system and incorporation of transmission grid for projects, a total of 13 million kWh? of electricity

were saved throughout the year.
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Measures and results of energy conservation and emission reduction
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AR R
The Group paid attention to the harmonious development among human beings, nature and
architecture, used ecological principles and methods appropriately, and proactively devoted to the

design and development of green buildings.

A
Champion

Apartments

o M RLREREZE W > ETAORERE
Choosed first-rate energy-saving air conditioning to reduce energy consumption.
o ETTKEREFEELH o 2 IR W ) (7] B DA
Measures of water and electricity energy consumption monitoring, division circuit for the lighting

of public area according to daily use were taken to save energy.

o EREER  BEMRER

Corridor sensor lamps were introduced to cut down power consumption.
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Use of water

During the reporting period, the Group’s aggregate water

consumption amounted to 43,688,264 cubic meters".

The Group recognizes the preciousness of water resources and
implements concrete plans on water efficiency to reduce water
consumption. In our headquarter and regional companies, we
enhance employee awareness of water conservation through
emails, notices and other channels. For example, we remind
employees to turn off water taps after use and save water. All of the
commercial properties of the Group are installed with water-saving
devices, such as sensor faucets and variable speed pumps, which
automatically control water supply based on actual consumption,

and thus reducing water wastage.
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Besides, although we cannot directly control the water
consumption of property owners and tenants of our real estate
projects, our property management departments in major
cities have proactively taken various measures to reduce water

consumption. Details of cases are as below:

Sy W T

Measures and results of water saving

5  JE 3 DR IRIBOK B0 4 7T SHCPH K BE B > A7 8RR 2 I K BRI K - 4R 84 7K 600 M 5
HEAT VR 0 14,0007 77K o AFETAY K 1,600 MR o 7K BBk 700 3 26K R T B AR IR AL >
JTIOE B T T VR R K R R IR PR K B SR 4R B A0 K A 420 MR

The Mingjing Tai project installed lockable faucets at the cleaning water intake points, effectively
reducing the water loss in the public area and saving 600 tons of water annually. The sprinkler
irrigation system of 14,000 m? has been upgraded, and the annual water conservation was 1,600
tons. Through the optimization of the cleaning process of the water system, the use of vacuum
cleaners and detegents has helped extending the water body cleaning period and reducing the

frequency of water body replacement, saving about 420 tons of water per year.

B
Hangzhou
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Chianti Riverside, Chunjiang Central, Chunjiang Land, Rose and Ginkgo Villa and Mingjingtai
have activated the water treatment system for the green sprinkler irrigation of parks, saving a total

of 41,984 tons of water throughout the year.

BB KRR EIR

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
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Management of the impact on the environment and natural

resources

The Group is committed to reducing the impact of its operation on
the environment and natural resources. In our day-to-day operation,
we continuously evaluate and monitor environmental risks and
timely put in place control measures to protect the environment

and natural resources.
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Therefore, in addition to the above measures in respect of
pollutants and use of resources, the Group has also implemented
a series of measures in respect of protecting the environment and
natural resources. For example, in order to prevent the nearby
residents from being affected by certain noise generated from air-
conditioning system of our shopping malls, the Group installs
sound insulation equipments, on the air-conditioning system of
shopping malls near residential areas. Besides, light emitted from
billboards and screens of external walls of shopping malls may
affect nearby residents, so the Group turns off the lighting system
of the billboards and screens at 10p.m. Lastly, as oil fume emitted
from restaurants of shopping malls may stain nearby buildings and
the smell from those restaurants may affect nearby residents, the
Group requires all restaurants to install fume filtering devices so as

to reduce the impact on the neighbouring properties.

In addition, we have introduced environmental protection
elements in project designs to reduce emissions at source. During
the reporting period, Champion project (the long-term rental
apartments project under the Group) has made agreement with
tenants in respect of vehicle traffic, parking and visiting time, and
avoiding night visits; the sound insulation equipments have been
installed on the pipelines and air-conditioning system in public
area to inspect and monitor the environmental performance of sub-
contractors; jointly reducing the noise impact on non-tenants by
reminding the tenants to walk lightly, talk lightly and act lightly

through Tenants’ convention, WeChat and corridor signboards.
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Employment

The Group insists fair and ethical labour policy. We have
established comprehensive human resources policies and systems
to be implemented in all our departments, covering employee
remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hour,
leave, equal opportunities and other employee benefits. It facilitates
our employees to understand their own and the Group’s rights and
obligations. The Management regularly reviews and updates those

policies and systems to ensure that the contents are updated.

Recruitment and dismissal

The Group actively recruits employees whose values and concepts
are in line with those of the Group. In order to enhance the
efficiency of recruitment, the Group cooperates with headhunting
firms to explore suitable talents. To regulate the use of
headhunting agencies, the Group has established the Guidelines
on Management of Recruitment through Headhunting Agencies
and formulated unified standards for introducing, managing,
evaluating and rewarding headhunting firms. Headhunting
partners will manage recruitment matters for the Group and offer
a platform for fair competition. Establishing strategic cooperation

with headhunting firms enables the Group to better attract talents.

Staff Dismissal Management Methods, which was formulated
by the Group, adheres to the principle of respecting and caring
for staff and complies with relevant requirements of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC. It specifies the manner of dismissal,
compensation standard, dismissal formalities and other matters in

relation to dismissal management.

Performance assessment

In order to encourage talented staff, push underachievers and
constantly improve the performance level of all the staff, the Group
has formulated the Measures for Assessment and Management of
Individual Performance, which specifies the assessment criteria
of staff performance as well as standards on staff recruitment,
remuneration, development and other aspects. It enhances the
standard of performance management and creates a fair and

equitable employment environment.
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Attendance and leave

In order to regulate the management of attendance and leave, the
Group has formulated the Measures for Management of Attendance
and Leave based on national laws and regulations. The policy
specifies the working hour, clocking-in, paid annual leave, sick
leave, personal leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and other
benefits and leave as well as the handling of lateness, early leave
and absence from work. We aim at utilizing the policy to regulate
the management of attendance and leave and establish normal

working order.

Other welfares

In order to satisfy the transport needs of staff travelling to work,
the Group has formulated the Measures for Management of
Vehicle Use and Transport Supplement for staff, specifying the
requirements and granting criteria of the transport allowance. We
provide vehicle use allowance for staff driving their private cars
for business purposes to compensate them for the expenses on use
and maintenance of cars. Besides, the Company provides transport
allowance for staff not driving their private car for business
purposes to ease their economic burden of transport. Regarding the
standards of allowance, ways of granting and other issues, specific

provisions have been set out in the policy.

Equal opportunities

Respecting every staff has been a persistent principle of the
Group. We strive to guarantee fair treatment for all our staff
regardless of their positions and qualification and avoid workplace
discrimination of any kind. We encourage staff who encounter
discrimination to promptly report to our human resources
department. After independent investigation conducted by our

internal audit department, the Management will follow up.
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In order to promptly identify possible issues in basic personnel
and remuneration and welfare operation, mitigate risks and
optimize management, the Group has formulated the Measures
for Management of Routine Checking of Basic Personnel and
Remuneration and Benefit Practices. The routine checking
policy covers three areas, which are basic human resource issues,
remuneration practices and welfare practices. It mainly examines
whether the practices are in compliance with the policies and
processes specified by the Group, whether the filing of major
information and process documents are complete, as well as
whether the staff information and process operation of our human

resources information system are timely and accurate.

The Group has been in compliance with laws and regulations
in relation to human resources, such as the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Trade Union Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and it has formulated the Measures for
Management of Labour Contracts to regulate the terms, renewals
and amendments of labour contracts as well as the management of
temporary and short-term staff. During the reporting period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws

and regulations with respect to human resources.

Health and safety
Workplace health and safety

The Group strictly follow the State Administration of Work
Safety Act and the National Standard of Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems to provide a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, contractors, subcontractors and

customers.
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Among all of the business of the Group, property development
projects are regarded as the riskiest workplace. Although the
Group does not have direct control on the construction safety
of staff of contractors and subcontractors, we believe that safety
shall always come first, we take the people-oriented concept and
shoulder the responsibility of supervising contractors and has
established the Measures for Management of Safety of Projects
under construction of Longfor Group for our property development
project department to provide safety management guidelines
to ensure the department staff are capable of supervising the
construction safety measures of contractors and subcontractors, so
as to avoid the occurrence of safety incidents and protect the health
of labour. We have also established safe production management
organisational structure at regional company level and project level
and formulated safe construction measures in advance and during
construction to enhance safety checks. In addition, the Group has
established the Management of Staff Safety of Longfor to specify the
responsibilities and duties of property management staff, instruct
common protective measures, set out safety working procedures
and precautions, provide ways to cope with incidents and ensure
that risks are monitored and controlled under management

mechanism.

Apart from ensuring that the safety of our working and production
equipment conform to the latest statutory requirements, we
provide regular body check for our staff to safeguard their health.
We set safety targets and emergency plans and keep safety record
for regular assessment. On the other hand, the Group provides staff
safety training which include case study via videos and enable staff
to be aware of our safety requirements. Simple slogans and posters
are displayed prominently in office areas to remind our staff to

maintain safety awareness and mitigate common safety risks.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

workplace health and safety.
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Development and training

Staff development and training

We attach great importance to staff development and pay effort in
helping our staff to achieve their career goals along with promoting
the development of the Group. We have formulated comprehensive
training policies according to staff’s posts and duties and developed
comprehensive training system to satisfy staff development
needs. We provide our staff with all-around training programme
including internal training and external courses, covering not only
professional and technical fronts, but also emphasis of fostering
staff’s personal development. In addition, we also customize
training and mentoring programme for fresh graduates employed
by the Group each year, so as to nurture new blood to support the

long-term growth of the Group.

New staff training courses

The Group launches various training programs for new staff,
such as Longfor special training camp for management trainees,
standard training camp for management trainees, orientation
training of longfor culture for new staff, new employee workshops,
training for new middle and senior management, to assist new staff
in understanding the Group’s corporate culture and values and
mastering necessary and basic skills and knowledge and quickly

fitting into their posts.

Vocational schools

In addition, the Group has also established engineering school,
cost and procurement school and operation school, targeting
staff in different posts in different departments to enhance their
working standard and achieve a win-win situation. The Group
intends to continue to develop more vocational schools including
customer research, marketing, financial, R&D and investment, so
as to provide appropriate professional training for staff in different
posts in all our departments and enhance the Group's production

capacity.
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Leadership training camp

For leaders of different levels and management experience, the

Group has designed corresponding leadership training camps to

help frontline leaders and PMOs fully understand the role of leaders

and leadership. The camps are designed to build high-performance

teams by developing skills of communication, empowerment,

motivation and guidance. On this basis, we also help experienced

leaders and those in complex team structures to enhance their

coaching leadership and abilities in business decision-making and

structured discussion, to help them cope with more challenging

management tasks.

Details of training provided by the Group during the reporting

period are as follows:

Area Perfomance
PR B B T8 9 A 201,552
Total number of hours of

staff training in the financial year
B IBCAF: 8 PR S i 4 A 789

Total number of internal tutors

in the financial year
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Labour Standards

Prevention of child and forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits child labour and forced labour and
has formulated a series of policies to ensure comprehensive internal
control to prevent child labour and forced labour. Measures for
Management of Examination of Staff Background Information
of Longhu Property Management, which specifies the Group’s
recruitment due diligence process, requires the human resources
department to verify the candidates’ identity information to
confirm their age and conduct background check to ensure the
truthfulness of information received. We also conduct regular
check and examination on staff’s personal information, family
information, past working experience and other major information
in our human resources information system, so as to prevent the
employment of child labour and forced labour. Regarding non-
full-time staff who are at higher risk, the Group has also developed
the Operational Guidelines for Management of Interns, Temporary
and Contracting Staff to eliminate the risks of unintentional

employment of child labour and forced labour.

Besides, the Group prohibits contractors and subcontractors from
employing child labour and forced labour through requiring the
third parties to include relevant terms in their service contracts and
deliver the list of staff to us for record. The Group and the third
parties will jointly examine the accuracy and completeness of the
information of outsourced staff to avoid child labour and forced

labour.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
child labour and forced labour.
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Supply Chain Management

Management of environmental and social risks in the supply chain

In order to ensure the Group’s operation of projects and services
are carried out in an environmental friendly manner, other than
the above environmental protection measures, we also formulate
policies to encourage contractors, suppliers and other third-
parties to promote green business. When selecting contractors
and suppliers, the Group adopts an evaluation mechanism which
takes into account social responsibilities and their contribution
in environmental protection in addition to common commercial

factors such as product and service quality.

As such, the Group has established the Measures for Management
of Materials and Equipment Suppliers of Longfor Group. Before
selecting suppliers, the Group will conduct on-site inspections
in factories and make a detailed assessment of the performance
regarding their raw material inspection, three wastes treatment
and quality control mechanism on the Form of On-site Inspection
of Materials and Equipment, the rating scale of which includes
excellent, good, fair and poor and supplier being rated as fair
and poor will be eliminated. Currently, the Group has assessed
up to 90% of the material suppliers. Besides, after the raw
materials are delivered to our project site, the Group will check
the specifications of raw materials, verify relevant licenses and
certificates according to the Regulation of Management of Project
Site Materials Inspection of Longfor Group to ensure the material
compositions meet the quality and environmental protection
standards. The Group conducts review and assessment on suppliers
semi-annually to manage unqualified suppliers and terminate
the cooperation with suppliers who fail to meet environmental
and safety standards, such as excessive emission of formaldehyde,
suppliers who are unqualified for three times in our quality control
assessments as well as suppliers who causes significant quality

issues in our projects.
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Besides, the Group has also established the Management System
of Procurement of Materials and Equipment of Longfor Group
and conducts random checks in the factories. The proportion of
factories being checked shall not be less than half of total suppliers
from whom the Group centrally procured during the year. In
respect of the third-party suppliers engaged by our regional
branches, random check shall be conducted not less than once every
quarter. We will fill in the Factory Examination Record Form and
On-site Factory Examination Record Form based on the actual
situation of random check and on-site inspection of factories and
engage national-recognized third-party organisations to conduct
part of the examination of destructive testing. Only those suppliers

with satisfactory results will continue to be engaged.

Product Responsibility

Quality of products and services

In order to ensure the quality of our real estate projects, the Group
will conduct assessment on projects according to the approaches
set out in the Measures for Management of Project Quality
Examination and Assessment of Longfor Group, covering different
types of construction quality such as waterproofing engineering,
steel structure work and concrete work, to rate for the projects and

conduct subsequent reviews for improvement.

The Group has established the Management Suite for Publicity
for Clients of Longfor Group, which emphasizes the management
of preciseness of published materials available to clients. Through
open and transparent product sales and promotion, we can protect
the property owners’ right to know and mitigate the risks of

customer complaint.

Besides, the Group has developed its own IT platform “Customer
Service Management System”, and through which we can manage
customer feedbacks on product quality and provide comprehensive
after-sale service in accordance with the Management Rules of

Return-for-repair of completed projects of Longfor Group.
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The Group irregularly engages third-parties as mysterious
customers to check the service condition and quality of our
projects and explore hidden service issues to guarantee service
standards. The Group also engages third-party consultant agencies
for conducting regular customer satisfaction surveys. Moreover,
in accordance with the Operational Guidelines for Customers
Interviews of Customer Service of Longfor Group, middle and
senior management conducts irregular interviews with customers
to understand customer needs and collect opinions and suggestions
for formulating effective improvement measures and problem
solutions. The Group also invites anonymous customers to check
service status and quality of each project to guarantee the absence
of hidden service problems and maintain the consistently high level

of the Group’s setvice.

The Group has set up the Loyalty Fund of Longfor Group, and,
in accordance with the principles set out in the Measures for
Management of the Loyalty Fund of Longfor Group, the Group
aims to further boost the loyalty and satisfaction of property owners
and maintain our corporate reputation through the enhancement of
convenience and comfort of community life as well as the quality

and comprehensiveness of community facilities.

In third-party industry surveys of 2018, Longhu Group's loyalty
was 81.8%, and its satisfaction was 89.6%. It has reached a record
high since its being listed and has maintained its leading position
in the industry. Longhu Group continues to organize national
theme brand activities on customer service on an annual basis.
The three major brand activities--Xiaolongren plan, good living
plan and Longmin Festival--cover more than 20 cities with more
than 500 activities having been launched. The cost exceeding 40
million, participants more than one million people, these activities
have effectively improved customer satisfaction and have won wide
applause from both the media and customers from all different

cities.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

products and services.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

The Group complies with national regulations in relation to anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering, such as the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Business Practices
Guidelines of Longfor Group has been formulated to regulate the
accounting records and information communication and disclosure,
prohibit soliciting or accepting inappropriate commercial interests,
improper use and appropriation of corporate properties as well as
disregard of conflict of interests. The Group provides a channel for
reporting potential misconducts as well. All of the employees of the
Group's controlling and non-controlling subsidiaries shall comply
with the conflict of interest handling principles formulated by the
Management and report and solve conflict of interests through the

reporting system.

On the other hand, the Group advocates business ethics. Through
regular training and communication, we enhance staff awareness
on anti-corruption and anti-money laundering and encourage

stakeholders to report any misconduct.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

corruption and money-laundering.

Community Investment

Community engagement program and donation

Other than providing quality products and services to meet
customer needs and social development, we hope to contribute to
the construction of harmonious community. Therefore, the Group
actively participates in different voluntary activities, donation
activities and community activities to help the needy, promote
love, care for others and contribute to the society. The Group has
organised and participated in community activities including
education, poverty alleviation and student assistance. During the
reporting period, the Group and its substantial shareholders jointly
established “Guangcai-Longfor Special Fund for Education and
Poverty Alleviation” via China Guangcai Program Foundation,
with a total committed donation of RMB300 million to nurture

the next generation and help the disadvantaged.
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B EBIR A F T2 BN T Details of main community programmes the Group's regional
BRI IS B R N companies participated in during the Period are as follows:

Activities

1.20184F 12 A > SRR AR 1,000 BT - RREDT HEWIAE & o I 5% — T 5% B B8 I A IR e AR 7 L 7E 6
HRE JEH » AR BERE K T HRH -
In December 2018, the Group donated RMB10 million to launch the project named “New Year with Longhu ®
Warm Household — Poverty Alleviation by Helping Rural Poor Disabled in Crop Cultivation and Aquaculture”,

for poverty alleviation in Tianyuan, Wuxi County, Chongqing.

2.20184F 12 1 > RGNS 2,315 B0 > R SCRFE B AL IR B0R 5 R -
In December 2018, donation of RMB23.15 million was made to support the development of education in Yubei

District, Chongging.

3. 201849 1 > AR 1A SE R ARIE ARG N R 800 # T A STHRFT i B A SE R A — S A D s K A & Ak TR
i -
In September 2018, the Group donated RMBS8 million to the Yabuli Entrepreneur Forum to support the

construction of the “China Entrepreneur Museum - Yabuli Forum Permanent Meeting Site”.

4.20184F3 1 > SRR EX MR ER RS E) - AR 30 #oT > RSP R ER R I E) -
In March 2018, the Group supported the series of Chinese entrepreneurs’ Antarctic Environmental Protection

Initiative and donated RMB300,000 to support Antarctic environmental protection activities.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 121 to 351, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (“TASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mactters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the
management judgments associated with determining the fair
value.

The investment properties of the Group mainly represent
shopping malls located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, the investment properties are carried at RMB84,410
million as at December 31, 2018, which represents 17% of
the Group’s total assets. A fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties of RMB1,159 million and a change in
fair value of investment properties of RMB3,543 million was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year then ended.

All of the Group's investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by independent qualified
professional valuers (the “Valuers”). Details of the valuation
techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. The valuations
are dependent on certain key inputs that involve management
judgments, including term yield, reversionary yield and
reversionary rental for completed investment properties, gross
development value, developer’s profit and discount rate for
investment properties under development.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the investment
properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers;

° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers about the
valuation methodology, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgment on key inputs and data used in the valuation
and how the Valuers justify the methodology and
assumptions used; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and source
data used in the valuations by the management and the
Valuers by comparing them, on a sample basis, to rentals
and prices for similar neighbourhood properties.

A AA B BUE W0 A (R e L4
o FHEAGEMIEERE - B RHEBUE

o MHERT TS E DT - WAETIE A RE - TR A E
KB > 355 7 S A\ B At (6 P B St A o 1
DA B A LR 0 o S B R B 7 A AR 5

o AR L A Ll (L P Y A R AR
TR & PR > 0 bl ST AE [ B ) SERH & I A
HEAT LR

% #) Annual Report 2018

113 I



I 114

M S A% B e A

Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

I S i 2 OE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of properties under development for sales and properties held for sales

We identified the valuation of the Group’s properties under
development for sales (the “PUD”) and properties held for sales
(the “PFS”) (collectively referred to as the “Properties”) as a key
audit matter due to the management judgments involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of these
Properties and the estimation of future costs to completion of

the Properties.

The Group’s PUD of RMB232,015 million and PFS of
RMB14,547 million are situated in the PRC as at December
31, 2018. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group determined the
NRYV of these Properties by reference to the estimated market
prices of the Properties, which takes into account a number of
factors including the recent prices of similar property types in
the same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing
and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC. Based
on the management estimation of the NRV of the Properties,
no write-downs were considered to be necessary. Besides, as
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management estimated the future cost to completion of the
Properties by reference to the actual development cost of the
Group's completed projects, adjusted by certain current market

data.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the Properties
included:

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future
cost to completion of the Properties, on a sample basis,
by comparing it to the actual development cost of similar
completed properties of the Group and comparing the
adjustments made by the management to current market

data;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of the
Properties, on a sample basis, estimated by the
management by comparing the estimated market prices
that derive the NRV to the market prices achieved in
the same projects or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the PRC real

estate industry; and

. Assessing the accuracy of the estimation of the market
price that derive the NRV and future cost to completion
of the Properties by comparing the previous estimation to

the actual amounts.
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Accuracy of land appreciation tax calculations

We identified the accuracy of land appreciation tax (“LAT")
calculations in the PRC as a key audit matter since significant
judgment is required in estimating the amount of LAT to be
paid by the Group within each of the property development

projects.

LAT arises in the PRC when properties are delivered to the
buyers and revenue is recognised. As disclosed in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements, LAT amounting
to RMB8,318 million was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2018. As disclosed in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements, the LAT calculations are
highly dependent on the appropriateness of the rates used, which
are determined by the amount of land appreciation. The amount
of land appreciation is determined by subtracting the related
deductible amounts, including the costs of land and estimated

construction costs, from the estimates of sales revenue.
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Our procedures in relation to the accuracy of LAT calculations
included:

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated sales
revenue and the related deductible amounts used in the

LAT calculations;

o Engaging our tax specialists in the PRC to assess the
accuracy of the land appreciation amount calculations
for each of the property development projects, and to
assess the appropriateness of the LAT rate used for each
of the property development projects by comparing it to
the LAT rate announced by the State Administration of
Taxation in the PRC; and

o Evaluating the judgments applied by the management in
estimating the amount of land appreciation amount and
LAT rate by comparing their estimates made in previous

years to actual results as well as current year's estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Revenue recognised from sales of properties

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as
a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and there are judgments involved in determining the
appropriate point at which to recognise revenue from sales of
properties and whether the Group should recognised the revenue

from sales of properties over time or at a point in time.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
properties underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customers as disclosed in note 3 Revenue
recognition to the consolidated financial statements. Control of
the properties may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time when the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. The Group recognised
revenue of RMB99,325 million and RMB9,394 million from
sales of properties at a point in time and over time respectively
for the year ended December 31, 2018 as disclosed in note 5(c)

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the appropriate point at which to

recognise from sales of properties by the Group included:

o Evaluating the terms set out in the relevant contracts,
on a sample basis, to assess whether the control of
the properties underlying the particular performance
obligations transferred to the customers over time or at a

point in time;

o Assessing management’s process and control over the
appropriate point in time at which revenue from sales of
properties is recognised and whether the Group should
recognised the revenue from sales of properties over time

or at a point in time; and

. Assessing the enforceability right to payment by
obtaining the letters from the Group's external legal
counsel regarding the compliance of the relevant contracts

to relevant local laws.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

U Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

% #) Annual Report 2018
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 25, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

WEZF—)UEFZ A=+ 1 IR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

i3 “F-N\E —“ZTtE

NOTES 2018 2017
ANRWFL AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
A Revenue 5 115,798,460 72,075,041
S A Cost of sales (76,269,820)  (47,639,212)
EF Gross profit 39,528,640 24,435,829
FH A A Other income 6 1,249,249 794,813
HoAth i 5 M s 18 Other gains and losses 7 (285,873) 52,707
RSy BUE W FE R PR AR Fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties 1,158,861 503,080
TEYE N TS E) Change in fair value of investment properties 3,542,993 4,420,207
A 4 B TR P E) Change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments 310,350 (411,889)
B R T3 A R B S Selling and marketing expenses (3,193,177)  (1,796,698)
FTE B Administrative expenses (5,396,785)  (3,267,424)
Al A Finance costs 8 (74,560) (45,275)
JREA W 2/ R 4 Share of results of associates 189,220 1,214,682
JEIG A& EL Share of results of joint ventures 454,084 653,553
R ¥ Profit before taxation 37,483,002 26,553,585
T A5 B 52 Income tax expense 9 (16,592,313) (10,075,097)
15 Profit for the year 44 20,890,689 16,478,488
AT JE A i 1) - Profit attributable to:
EI/NEIE: XN Owners of the Company 16,236,870 12,598,597
I 45 Non-controlling interests 4,653,819 3,879,891
20,890,689 16,478,488

& s Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

REZFZ-N\F+H=—HILER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

I
2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Vg A Profit for the year 20,890,689 16,478,488
oAt A T AR (B SE) Other comprehensive income (expense):
AN EE R E 1R 5 < A Irem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A S N R il &) Fair value gain on investment in
b g TR AE 2 AP E Ik G unlisted equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income 281,193 —
HE A REE R A 1R S HHH © Irems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
E P THA AU 5 (B8 ) 358 Net fair value gain (loss) on
hedging instruments 111,832 (409,268)
EHRA RGN LA (Gain)loss on hedging instruments
AR (g R reclassified to profit or loss (648,760) 104,250
(536,928) (305,018)
A T L 45 AR Total comprehensive income for the year 20,634,954 16,173,470
DATR R A 4 T Wi £ KRR Total comprehensive income attributable to:
N/NTIE 2PN Owners of the Company 15,981,135 12,293,579
JEHE HIHE 45 Non-controlling interests 4,653,819 3,879,891
20,634,954 16,173,470
BREM (AR Earnings per share, in RMB
HA Basic 11 2.78 2.17
i Diluted 11 2.73 2.13

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)



2 /N
wAa

UF 285 R 00 e A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REZ—)\FEFZHA=1—H
At December 31, 2018

i -S| S S
NOTES 2018 2017
ANRFEFL  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

PEYE Investment properties 12 84,409,540 68,094,745
W2 - BB KA Property, plant and equipment 13 3,365,689 862,903
TEAT L 2A Prepaid lease payments 16,518,641 37,139,443
- £ Land use rights 14 414,360 434,607
i k= g/NGlE e Interests in associates 15 7,571,982 7,780,744
REESENMER Interests in joint ventures 16 7,365,020 5,412,043

BN TEFIA Equity instruments at fair value

A A T i A T HE AR LR through other comprehensive income 17 734,265 —
] it Available-for-sale investments 18 — 201,133
A T T A AR Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 9,968,487 5,477,350
fitem TR Derivative financial instruments 30 313,611 229,965
R B T Deferred taxation assets 32 4,192,962 3,462,687

134,854,557 129,095,620
WEE CURRENT ASSETS
TE Inventories 19 826,649 798,921
R Properties under development for sales 20 232,015,490 151,421,146
FrER &Y Properties held for sales 21 14,546,579 10,779,489
JRE ST R e A JRE Wi E Accounts and other receivables,

%4 M AT EOR deposits and prepayments 22 22,573,317 14,183,557
JRE it 2 1l 4 2 7 TE Amounts due from non-controlling interests 23 32,888,617 17,462,283
JRE WAL BB 5 ) T Amounts due from associates 23 6,876,577 2,541,177
A8 A 3R IE Amounts due from joint ventures 23 12,835,904 6,057,689
T i ] o Y Taxation recoverable 4,202,728 3,662,699
B ERAT A7 3K Pledged bank deposits 24 180,529 119,119
SRATH R LB & Bank balances and cash 24 45,083,066 26,642,154

372,029,456 233,668,234
B A CURRENT LIABILITIES
B A MR T B B A SR Accounts and bills payables,

B 4 M e 2 deposits received and accrued charges 25 62,233,952 31,943,600
HHA K Contract liabilities 26 113,439,818 93,486,658
JREASS I F28 1 8 i I Amounts due to non-controlling interests 27 24,527,983 18,578,643
JEAS W /A R 3K IR Amounts due to associates 27 8,945,018 6,488,710
JERT &8 A 26 5IA Amounts due to joint ventures 27 7,173,139 6,196,936
JEATBLIH Taxation payable 21,611,655 15,211,025
SRAT R A AT 3R — — R B Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 28 11,743,175 3,610,754
eI E — — N E ) Senior notes - due within one year 29 — 1,977,843
HAb AL G m T H Other derivative financial instruments 28 168,944 —

249,843,684 177,494,169
VLY B E NET CURRENT ASSETS 122,185,772 56,174,065
MBI E A& TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 257,040,329 185,269,685
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
oA = A
At December 31, 2018

i3 —FNE L
NOTES 2018 2017
ARETE ARWTT

RMB’000  RMB’000

A T kA CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Jie A Share capital 31(a) 516,783 514,209

Tt Reserves 31(b) 81,144,649 70,052,455

AN A N A fE Equity attributable to owners of the Company 81,661,432 70,566,664

I e il R 45 Non-controlling interests 59,156,696 35,612,011

A A TOTAL EQUITY 140,818,128 106,178,675

e I=E NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

SRAT B AAE K — — AR I Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 28 99,456,124 65,527,956

B — — A2 Senior notes - due after one year 29 8,620,623 6,287,640

Uhifackrt: M=t Derivative financial instruments 30 176,765 —

HAbATE 4R T H Other derivative financial instruments 28 221,728 657,746

R HE R TH 4 Deferred taxation liabilities 32 7,746,961 6,617,668

116,222,201 79,091,010
257,040,329 185,269,685

FI21 8351 HZ G MBEMER - —NEFE The consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 351 were approved and
ZAC T A HEER R PR RET R W authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 25, 2019 and are signed
PP ALARERESE on its behalf by:

P LHIGH fik

WU Yajun ZHAO Yi

#HE HE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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HEBleREaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFE—)\ET A= T—HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

“FNE CFTtF
2018 2017
ARBTFLE  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
Raing OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R Bt i it 1 Profit before taxation 37,483,002 26,553,585
RLAT % Adjustments for:

A& A Finance costs 74,560 45,275

ER G i Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 202,438 28,687

4 A Amortisation of land use rights 20,247 -

A B BB A A e i Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties (1,158,861) (503,080)

BEMENTEHED Change in fair value of investment properties (3,542,993) (4,420,207)

FitE e TRATEEH) Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (310,350) 411,889

[ - YNEES Share of results of associates (189,220) (1,214,682)

e Share of results of joint ventures (454,084) (653,553)

B - R BRI R Ol Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 409 (3,093)

FEBA Interest income (572,183) (315,390)

T 5t 488 (i ) ¥ 4 Net exchange loss (gain) 804,625 (532,510)

A E R B S IA Dividend income from available-for-sale investments — (802)

BT E T A A 2 T 4 Dividend received from equity instrument at fair value

{1 R 5 T A i B through other comprehensive income (1,000) -

DAFBARS B SR A) AT B S Share-based payments expenses 311,112 160,306

1 R B L AR e 1 Loss on early redemption of senior notes 110,791 —
BRESZYHNNSER RN E Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 32,778,493 19,556,425
& () wb (Increase) decrease in inventories (27,728) 39,808
BB SER Increase in properties under development for sales (41,539,413)  (32,741,231)
P B R Decrease in properties held for sales 65,901,359 44,218,693
JRE ST 2 e A R i 0 Increase in accounts and other receivables,

e BB S deposits and prepayments (6,400,436) (3,326,002)
o MR AT 5248 Increase in accounts and bills payables,

B AR 4 R T2 B A deposits received and accrued charges 17,455,313 8,034,083
BHA G Increase in contract liabilities 19,953,160 42,712,366
MEEENE S Cash from operations 88,120,748 78,494,142
B e A RSEAN B ([ ) B The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

income tax paid (10,246,985) (7,147 337)
REmHEREEE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 77,873,763 71,346,805

# # Annual Report 2018

127 N



I 128

e Bl i &

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZ—)\ETHET—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

(8 “RNE ZELF
NOTE 2018 2017
ANBWTFE ARW¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
A R Additions to prepaid lease payments (58,936,024)  (72,668,914)
Ba £ Additions to investment properties (6,277,260) (4,166,785)
LR 4 (07 FIURE ARG i Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights (14,682,163) (8,259,330)
250 SR~ w1 WS I Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries 33 (5,808,058) (3,620,242)
8 — R 24 Disposal of a subsidiary — 2,332
HE N TG Capital reduction from associates 229,000 —
REESENTE Investments in joint ventures (1,849,078) (2,289,674)
TN B T A HC M 2 T 4 1 Investment in equity instrument at fair value
W TARE through other comprehensive income (228,825) -
[ B G E Investment in available-for-sale investment — (21,112)
R E A R B E Investments in associates (1,000,407) (3,479,869)
A ESENRE Dividend received from joint ventures 362,186 —
B E A TR RE Dividend received from an associate 918,889 —
I i /A ) Bk Advances to associates (4,794,272) =
Bra A mE Repayments from associates 458,872 1,320,206
I A& A S HGK Advances to joint ventures (8,075,888) (5,779,454)
& B R Repayments from joint ventures 1,297,673 1,556,567
1] 42 TR 4 Advances to non-controlling interests (19,096,670)  (13,652,874)
) 3 P 1 A K Repayments from non-controlling interests 3,670,336 45,000
FEACHEARIT N Placement of pledged bank deposits (73,628) (85,572)
SRR ATk Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 12,218 63,821
L YNE SN S Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,663,960) (189,507)
E A E Interest received 572,183 315,390
HEYE - RE RS AR 0R Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 269 5,092
B A it A R O AT R Dividend received from available-for-sale investments — 802
ST A M2 s 1R TR ORI S  Dividend received from equity instrument
through other comprehensive income 1,000 -
SRR B B B 1 NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (115,963,607)  (110,904,123)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)



HEBleREaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFE—)\ET A= T—HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

“F-NE STt
2018 2017
ARBTFLE  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
5 E) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
W B~ R AR S ME £ Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries (2,164,678) —
5 B 2 ) A 3 2 Disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries
(KRR HETHIHE) not resulting in losing of control 2,580,629 4,839,186
BUIE 1B MR R 9 >t Deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries
(R FHEHIHE) not resulting in losing of control 854,200 1,799,800
EREGRAT R M 3K Repayment of bank and other borrowings (22,853,770)  (22,118,162)
EAIFE Interest paid (4,677,240) (3,110,402)
AT R A K New bank and other borrowings raised 55,447,630 30,681,441
AT S {3 a0R Proceeds from issue of bonds 10,000,000 6,041,289
TR LRI 0E Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 5,154,215 3,052,135
ERES Repayment of bonds (1,653,299) -
BATEAEN B Expenses on issue of bonds (39,436) (43,942)
BATB LB Expenses on issue of senior notes (54,376) (47,856)
i ] (e Repurchase of senior notes (35,378) —
I S T Redemption of senior notes (5,509,451) -
PR S Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders 18,455,023 8,389,839
I IR £ Capital reduction from non-controlling interests (1,250,100) -
BT IR B 5 50E Proceeds from issue of shares 241,813 546,098
SRR P 173 it B P44 9 £k Payment for purchase of shares under the share
award scheme (371,034) (269,290)
CAT R Dividend paid (4,489,081) (2,739,175)
L UNGIE Advances from associates 4,199,744 4,585,076
I 5 A TR K Repayments to associates (1,492,936) (170,830)
AERERR Advances from joint ventures 2,750,851 5,031,843
I G A AR K Repayments to joint ventures (1,774,648) (409,440)
I 1 2 K Advances from non-controlling interests 14,024,021 14,974,766
1] 2 i i 2 Repayments to non-controlling interests (10,811,943) (2,091,008)
M EEE P B 2R NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 56,530,756 48,941,368
e LB eFEYEmEH NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18,440,912 9,384,050
ERMB S KBS ED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26,642,154 17,258,104
FEARNB SRR EFED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR 45,083,066 26,642,154
Be kB EFENE G ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITE B NS Bank balances and cash 45,083,066 26,642,154
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated on
December 21, 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “SEHK”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the principal
place of business of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and Hong Kong are 18/F, CSC Fortune International Center,
No.5 An Ding Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1 Duddell

Street, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

With effect from June 12, 2018, the name of the Company was changed
from Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. to Longfor Group Holdings Limited.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 51.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company and its major

subsidiaries.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
has applied the following new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in

the current year:

SRMTH
Financial Instruments
AL 5 R AR
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
LABCA B B (305 5 2 M B i
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
A0 B 2 o 96 56 4 R O B 5 A0 B Y
B R T S E RS 0 SR AL T AL
Applying TFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
7 2 B R s o ) — % — DO AR 2 =% — N AR A Y
AR MU — 3R>
As part of the Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle
LT Eid-t/E ]
Transfers of Investment Property
Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s

financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or

on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

& s Annual Report 2018

131 I



I 132

Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

2. SRANWT I B S o v B
(T e A 5t o e ) ) e 15
I A ()

2.1 [ B B e o S T 5 0 R
il T R AT B A T
TRACE I » 7455 ) L P B
AR o WS M TA NI
B o B O AR BT - BB
AR o Wk 1) R
RaMA BB R - 2) 2R
Y ) T B R ([ B £
1) B 3) — M o et B BB A
WRE o

A% S5 I AR o A i o 5
O S T SR ) 48 98 ke S D 1 R o 5
At HER S 0 5% > RIS —F— N\
F—H—H (E R H ) # R
1 RERR B T ELAE W PR 0 4 I it i
AU (MG EREHT
BB - T M TR = — A
A — B L HERR N S LR
FIMBRUE - = F—tHE+ A
=t H AR (B =% —
— A — F MR T {2 R A 4 PR B
J1 ) B H A R 5 70 R LG 4
HEI G -

B > 25T BB R b B AR 9 (5
MR st QS so s 2 LA - i
ARG R LG R

o
81 » A MR
frit -

A B B 5 L 5 0 B3
0 BORR I 3 0%

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the related consequential amendments to other
IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2)
expected credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general

hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in IFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements (including impairment under
ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at January 1, 2018 (date of initial application) and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at January 1, 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at December 31, 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at January 1, 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of equity, without

restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under IAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

In addition, the Group applied the hedge accounting prospectively.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS 9 are

disclosed in note 3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial
application, January 1, 2018.

TATE
at AJEl
Exlvea
R TR
Equity
Wt instruments REEA
HE  at fair value et
Available- through other  Investment
for-sale comprehensive revaluation
investments income reserve
(i3 ARWTFT  ARWTT AR¥TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=F—t4 At December 31, 2017 - IAS 39 201,133 - —
+ZA=1+—H-
It e 5 39 5%
H25 4% B RS AR SRl Bffece arising from inicial
HosEAENYE application of IFRS 9:
EXipi| Reclassification
BTt B A From available-for-sale investments (a) (201,133) 201,133 —
E i Remeasurement
o A B From cost less impairment to
AR TE fair value (a) — 23,114 (23,114)
R=F—A%F—H—H— At January 1, 2018 - IFRS 9
B0 R s 5 U 4 9 — 224,247 (23,114)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of IFRS 9

(Continued)
Note:
(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS to equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”)

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income for the fair
value changes of all its equity investments previously classified as AFS.
These investments are not held for trading and not expected to be sold
in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application of IFRS 9,
RMB201,133,000 were reclassified from AFS to equity instruments at
FVTOCI previously measured at cost less impairment under IAS 39. The
fair value gains of RMB23,114,000 relating to those unquoted equity
investments previously carried at cost less impairment were adjusted to
equity instruments at FVTOCI and investment revaluation reserve as at
January 1, 2018.

(b) Hedge accounting

The Group applies the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9
prospectively. At the date of the initial application, hedging relationship
that qualified for hedge accounting in accordance with IAS 39 are regarded
as continuing hedging relationship if all qualifying criteria under IFRS
9 are met, after taking into account any rebalancing of the hedging
relationship on transition. Consistent with prior periods, the Group has
continued to designate full change in the fair value of cross currency
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts as the hedging
instruments for all of its hedging relationships involving swaps and forward
contracts. As such, the application of the hedge accounting requirements of

IFRS 9 had not resulted in adjustments to comparative figures.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment Transactions

Where tax law or regulation requires the Group to withhold a
specified number of equity instruments equal to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation to meet the employee’s tax
liability which is then remitted to the tax authority, that is, the
share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement feature’,
such an arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its
entirety, provided that the share-based payment would have been
classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement

feature.

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
measurement of share-based payment transaction based on
conditions existed at that date, there is no impact to the existing

share-based payment transaction at January 1, 2018.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment

Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets,
or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property,
supported by evidence that a change in use has occurred. The
amendments further clarify that situations other than the ones
listed in IAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that a change
in use is possible for properties under construction (i.e. a change
in use is not limited to completed properties). For example,
change in use for transfer from properties under development for
sales in the ordinary course of business to investment properties
could be evidenced by inception of an operating lease to another
party. Currently, the Group accounts for such transfer only upon

commencement of an operating lease.

At the date of initial application, the Group assessed the
classification of certain properties based on conditions existed at
that date, there is no impact to the classification at January 1,
2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HE!

Leases'

RE &

Insurance Contracts’

e A5 8 B ) AN S 1

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

¥ ER

Definition of a Business®

W 2 A A LA SR

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

BEHEEHBE AR REE MR FEE &SRS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture?

HERZER

Definition of Material’

AT EVERT ~ KR

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!

R AR BB RN R

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

TR TR T AR I R A R B 4 S O
Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS
16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it

becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, IFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of IFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. IFRS 16 also includes requirements relating

to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,

except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group curtently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of IFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing

cash flows by the Group.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets

would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor, IFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an

operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at December 31, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB11,479,336,000 as disclosed in note 40. An
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless

they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of RMB253,190,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
RMB1,002,869,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which IAS
17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under IFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would
be considered as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits

received would be considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the practical expedient to apply IFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. Therefore, the Group will not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to
elect the modified retrospective approach for the application of IFRS 16
as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to

opening retained earnings without restating comparative information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The interpretation
requires an entity to determine whether uncertain tax positions are
assessed separately or as a group; and assess whether it is probable that
a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed
to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of IFRIC 23 will have a
material impact on the Group's income tax treatments in respect of the
uncertainties arising from the Land Appreciation Tax levied on properties

developed by the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and provide
additional guidance with the objective of assisting entities to determine
whether a transaction should be accounted for as a business combination
or an asset acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration test is
introduced to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The amendments will
be mandatorily effective to the Group prospectively for acquisition

transactions completed on or after January 1, 2021.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align the definition across all IFRS
Standards and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on January 1, 2020. The application of the amendments is
not expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
petformance of the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS
standards 2015-2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following four standards.

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the
case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and

undistributed profits.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale,
that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally

when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business
that is a joint operation, the entity applies the requirements for a business
combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring its previously held
interest in the joint operation at fair value. The previously held interest to
be remeasured includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill

relating to the joint operation.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates in, but does
not have joint control of, a joint operation that is a business obtains
joint control of such a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure its

previously held interest in the joint operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for the investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in TAS 2

Inventories or value in use in [AS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation

technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

J is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

% #)% Annual Report 2018

143 1N



B 144

Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

FEFFBOR )

AR B ()

i = E RAE W R 5 = IE A o
—IHE LA b BB > A% SR M A
HRE BRI BARE Ty -

il A< 4 LR B0 07 2 B MR BE AL K
ZU HAEREERE DT AR E
W BE 1 T B 7 T S BB T 2 B K
BhE > AEEAE R E T HAHES -
TERF A A 4R B R Bt B 7 2 BRI R A
A UASR T HCRE 7 By > 7R 4 1% 8B A A
B R f

o R BEELHE 2 AT S
3 e R A AR A B 2 Bk
R etk

o AREE - HABBCRERA ASUHA
T R B TEAE BLEHE

o AHAMEAHRE LR K

o ATEM W RE (BRI
B B2 B Ry R WA R B
HIHE AT S 0 B 45 AR B i B 2
A 2 AR R AL

TR A B 8 A R B 2 ) 2 A B B 1
B 2 ] R A e K B 2
FEMIRERS » QIR &R A ME A A - LK
& AR A B A B A B S R A
T B 32 AR 4R T8 B A 2 o RS 22 A 4
AEEEH MR~ 7 2 Bk st A SR B4R
i S A A T g R A

18 2 B At 4 T W i F) 2 0 B A
FIHEA N B JF PE PR E AR JE AL o B A 3K
2 FB A A o) R A R o BRI 2 W )
EXT & EVES Y ) NSk 2PN
PERRHE £ TR A -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size

and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

J potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or

other parties;
. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including

voting patterns at previous shareholders” meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaties, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling

interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9/IAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related

costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.



B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEEFFEOR @)
EBAVF )

TA W B LR - B T R R TR
PR A TR - M

I A T A A T B A
THA W B AR /IR
0 % i 56 12 95 T 72 B IR
W & 5 A 58 19 9% 1 5 45 P e R
it

WSCHERB) DA FBC A3 7 FE B A £+F 3k 22 DR
AR5 B AT SE AR 7 LAy
BRI AR S B 2 DAy 2 HE e
HA5F 2 A B AR s TR
WSO SO AR 0 o 5 o SR I 5
2SR LU O 25 ZEE 9 SR (R
T EFER) 5 K&

AR 0 % A 5 i ot e S 58 s R AFAF
B B BE B C AL i
REEEHEEE B EAR) RE

ZIEREHE o

4 OG-~ BT oo Oy JF 1
1l A8 2 < R S B Oy DS R A O
7 FRCRE 2 ST B (AT ) 48R o i g H
30 P i A R TR IE AL 2 2
AR o REREAS R o v B W ATk
A 3 L e SR 0 R A L A
{8~ P A T 2 o R i AR M i
§i 5 IS 1 AT B RS Oy b 2 Y1
(TN ) BB > 5% 2% 9 B0 IRy 78 45 4 e 52
LAt

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred taxation assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting

policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-

controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control), and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and measured under IFRS 9/
IAS 39 would be accounted for on the same basis as would be required if

the Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does

not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the

customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group petforms; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control of the
property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the control of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is

probable.

For sales of properties that have no alternative use to the Group and when
the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the customers for
petformance completed to date, after considering any laws that apply to

the contract, revenue is recognised over time by using the input method.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards

complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

For property management and related service, hotel operations and
consultancy fee income, the progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's

performance in transferring control of services.

For sales of properties that have no alternative use to the Group and when
the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the customers for
performance completed to date, after considering any laws that apply to
the contract, revenue is recognised over time by using the input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group's efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or

Services.
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer ot the Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is
explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed

to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any

significant financing component.

For property development and sale contracts for which the control of
the property is transferred at a point in time, deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to delivery of the properties to the
customers are contract liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under development for such
purposes). Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included

in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurted for investment properties under development
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under development.

Properties held for sales are transferred to investment properties when it
is evidenced by the inception of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and

its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment loss,

if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

% #)% Annual Report 2018

151 I



I 152

Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

EEEEOR )

Y3k - W Rkl (a1)

W3k~ s KB B (B R R ) 2 B
G0) {5 PR SR IE T A T S D 4R 30 0 e
I8 DU A o 8 25 it U AR A w4
A AT A~ R B (E R AT I
fliat GBI B AR -

W%+ B BB AT B R 4 kT
5 A A A R 2 A 28
BT o SR - B &
S TE I 7 4 0 L T 2 0
B SR L R 12 B0 A HE
FE -

HALE o R M T B AR AR E
ERATBUTERBTRE S > SEHE L
AR R B R - BEREE A
BB BRI EE -

TR OH 0 R
AL OB 3 5 MRS 0
HE A BT 3COR > 4025 e A T B
S50 P B L4501
B b A o SIS A BB B
FEfEth 8 0B P SRR ©

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress) over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production, rental or for administrative purposes, the release of the
leasehold land is included as part of the costs of the properties under
development. Properties under development which are intended to be

held for own use are shown as non-current assets.

Prepaid lease payments/Land use rights

The prepaid lease payments/land use rights represent upfront payments
for land use rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to
profit or loss, or capitalised as part of the cost of building as mentioned
above, over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that
are classified and accounted for as properties under development intended
to be held for sale.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint
venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss

in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with TAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial

disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint

venture that are not related to the Group.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as current assets, and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represented the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs

necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to properties held

for sales upon completion.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to property, plant
and equipment when there is a change in use, evidenced by inception of
management intention which do not change the carrying amount and the

cost of the properties transferred.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the costs of land, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less costs necessary

to make the sales.



B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEGFHEOR )
FefEth B )

BT Y200 PR R R 4 B
1 A TH (LT 9F S IE 3 £ AR R ot
o WA BB B — L
BE G - A S e S o i
BREREWE - A B ER YA
2/ (8 L 4 T (8 T 0 £ 47 3
BT -

R

7 BAR A B v] 5 B A W 2 R
BB o AT I RE - B o T B
TFHE A B AG T 65 Al B 5 A o

EMTH
EHEMERRA RS AT LT
o> MR EMEE R EMAR - TAR
RS o S NE R ST
AR o R4 B R A I R B
T R 17 553 A58 ) 4R £ A W B R A0 52
NZE&EMEE -

M E L e A E P RN E
B WEEKF &8 ZE 5 IR
G > HLA) fa AR 1 R o T B SR 15
PERHE - MR BRT SR EE REMA
B (R RE AR 4 09 8 B S el
BEBRAN) BRI 32 5 A T 1 2 Tk
o I T B A 5 O B R (R
FAEMBR (8 ) o Wi BB AT IR AT
HFF AR N M EE e A HEE
TR 9 22 5 RS BRIV A 5 i 0 R o

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sales (Continued)

The Group transfers a property from property held for sales to investment
property when there is a change in use to hold the property to earn rentals
or/and for capital appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business, which is evidenced by the inception of an operating lease to
another party. Any difference between the fair value of the property at the
date of transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or

loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the inventories less costs

necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective

is to collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit and loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a

business combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of IFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

(1) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset is

no longer credit impaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to

retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are

included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets and
other items which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests,
associates and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, and financial guarantee contracts). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifecime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL

on trade receivables are assessed collectively with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

U existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(@)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
the Group’s financial assets has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial assets are determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset is determined to
have low credit risk if 1) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

‘investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking

into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in

profit or loss.
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease

receivable in accordance with IAS 17 Leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of

the financial asset.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being

discounted.

The Group recognises an impairment gain ot loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of account and other receivables and amounts
due from non-controlling interests where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
before application of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables or

available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature

and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
non-controlling interests, associates and joint ventures, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment (see

accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see

accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
January 1, 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

Financial assets are assessed for impairment individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group'’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
January 1, 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss

will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of accounts and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gain or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and

also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI upon application of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or

loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI upon application
of IFRS 9, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferred to investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, associates, joint ventures,
senior notes and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.
Embedded derivatives (under IFRS 9 since January 1, 2018)

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial asset
hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The entire hybrid
contract is classified and subsequently measured in its entirety as either

amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the

host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Embedded derivatives (before application of IFRS 9 on January 1,
2018)

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or

loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign currency

and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in

offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness (under IFRS
9 since January 1, 2018)

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when
the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge effectiveness

requirements:

o there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the

hedging instrument;

. the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that

result from that economic relationship; and

J the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that

the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the
Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances

the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Hedge accounting (Continued)

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness (before
application of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018)
A hedge is regarded as highly effective only if both of the following

conditions are met:

o at the inception and in subsequent periods, the hedge is expected

to be highly effective; and

o the actual results of the hedge are within a range of 80 to 125 per
cent.
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit

or loss and is included in the ‘other gains or losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or loss
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in
the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the

hedged risk is immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently

measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
IFRS 9 (since January 1, 2018)/IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before application of IFRS 9 on
January 1, 2018); and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, camulative

amortisation recognised over the guarantee period

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset

to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating lease, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payment for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests

in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments/land use rights” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally classified as if the

leasehold land is under finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit ot loss in the

period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred taxation assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which these
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred taxation
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
taxation assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities or deferred
taxation assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities and deferred taxation assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how

the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxation
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and

that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, which is a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group's obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution

retirement benefit plan.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding
the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions are set out in note 43 to the Group'’s consolidated financial

statements.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of options that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option resetve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or shares expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,

with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share awards to employees

The fair value of service received, determined by reference to the fair value
of awarded shares granted at the date of grant, is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

(share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of the awarded shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share

award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously recognised
in share award reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares
(presented under the shares held for share award scheme) will be

transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss if any. The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

Control over certain entities

During the year there are several entities (the “Subsidiaries”) have been
accounted for as subsidiaries by the Group (Note 51) although the Group

has only held less than 50% equity interests in them.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over the Subsidiaries based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of these Subsidiaries unilaterally.
In making the judgment, the directors of the Company considered the
Group's voting power in making decision over the relevant activities
of the Subsidiaries at different times throughout their lives, such as the
approval of the operation plan and budget, the status of the property
projects of these Subsidiaries, pre-sale of property project and the extent
of workforce in place and the right of appointing, remunerating and
terminating the key management personnel or service providers of
the relevant activities. After assessment, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has sufficiently dominant voting interest to
direct the relevant activities of these Subsidiaries and therefore the Group

has control over them.

Revenue recognition from sales of properties

Control of the asset is transferred over time when the Group’s performance
does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date. Significant judgment is required in determining whether the terms
of the relevant sales contracts create enforceable right to payment for the
Group for which the Group has considered the relevant local laws that
apply to those relevant contracts and has obtained external legal counsel

opinion.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has recognised deferred taxation on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company every half
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and certain types of financial instruments. Notes 12 and 49(f)
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various

assets and liabilities.

Properties under development for sales and properties held for

sales (collectively referred to as the “Properties”)

As explained in note 3, the Group’s Properties are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The directors of the Company make
significant judgments in determining the net realisable value (the “NRV”)
of these Properties and the estimation of future costs to completion of

these Properties.

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine the NRV
of these Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of the
Properties, which takes into account a number of factors including the
recent prices of similar property types in the same project or by similar
properties, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate market conditions
in the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate the future cost to
completion of the Properties by reference to the actual development cost
of the Group's completed projects, adjusted by certain current market

data.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in estimated
market prices, this may result in write-downs for these Properties. Such
write-downs require the use of judgment and estimates of the directors of

the Company.



B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bl Sk 7 T ) 7 B A st A 0
BEJEXY 30

Al BT A B B B 26 0 B AR )
(AR ([ - M 3B )

A B2 T vl B A B W A T
W 30% 2 60% AN 55 1 2 BRI
3 (R o RIS B T AR R AT
B (L LA ~ SR -
TORA KA R ) o

A SR BIAE vh B ZE AR £ R (R - iR
ANTHE SE B A TEL B 0 2 8 5 P 4 S
EE(LS S /NGE & 5 T g B
F 4 0 S 08 ) - 4 (B0 B 56 IR 216 oy
A -

AL 1 B 7 S AT SRR AR A 4R AR K
A 4 T W A R TR T B A
1T > L3 5 05 14 ] fe {1 4 S
P94 BT o A i B e 4 75 0 5 4K
VEE A RO N R IR o e
BUs &6 5 o BE A AR S o) AR &8> T
%54 22 R TR A 42 ) Bl ot Ty 5 R B
LA A 0 TR0 I 3B 5 5 B S B A B BT
B U B

4.

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for sale in the PRC,

at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including the cost of land, sales charges, borrowing costs

and all relevant property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. Significant judgments are
made by the directors of the Company in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to the
uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible expenditures

for the whole project.

The Group recognises LAT in its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when properties are delivered
to the buyers. However, the LAT calculation and payments with local
tax authorities in the PRC in the year will not be finalised until the
appreciation value of the whole property project is confirmed with
local tax authorities. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the period in

which such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2018, deferred taxation assets of RMB4,192,962,000
(2017: RMB3,462,687,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, allowance for doubtful debts, government
subsidies, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and others have been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position,
after offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
32. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the best knowledge of profit projections
of the Group for coming years during which the deferred taxation assets
are expected to be utilised. The directors of the Company review the
assumptions and profit projections by the end of the reporting period.
In cases where the actual future profits generated are more or less than
expected, an additional recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in

which such a recognition or reversal takes place.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e., the executive directors of the Company) in

order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their types of
activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance. The Group's operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified as three main

operations:

o Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office and commercial premises and residential
properties. All of the Group’s activities in this regard are carried
out in the PRC.

o Property investment: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are developed by the Group to
generate rental income and to gain from the appreciation in
the properties” values in the long term. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio mainly comprises shopping malls

and long-term rental apartments and are all located in the PRC.

o Property management and related services and others: this
segment mainly represents the income generated from property
management and related services, hotel operation and others.
Currently the Group's activities in this regard are carried out in the
PRC.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company’s executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
directly attributable to each segment with the exception of
prepaid lease payments, deposits paid for acquisition of land use
rights, interests in associates and joint ventures, available-for-sale
investments, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deferred taxation
assets, taxation recoverable, derivative financial instruments and
other corporate assets. Other corporate assets are not allocated
to the operating segments because they are head office assets or
assets which are managed centrally by the Group. The investment
properties included in segment assets are stated at cost when
assessed by the chief operating decision maker. Segment liabilities
include accounts and bills payables and accrued expenditure on
construction and contract liabilities but exclude taxation payable,
deferred taxation liabilities, bank and other borrowings, senior
notes, other derivative financial instruments and other corporate
liabilities. Other corporate liabilities are not allocated to the
operating segment because they are head office liabilities or

liabilities which are managed on a group basis.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. Segment profit does not include the
Group's share of results arising from the activities of the Group’s

associates and joint ventures.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, other gains and losses, taxes, depreciation, share
of results of associates and joint ventures, change in fair value of
investment properties and upon transfer to investment properties,
change in fair value of derivative financial instruments and finance
costs (“Adjusted Earnings”), where “interest” includes investment
income and “depreciation” includes impairment losses on non-
current assets. To arrive at Adjusted Earnings of each segment, the
segment earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration

Costs.

For the measurement of segment assets and results, property, plant
and equipment are allocated to segments while their corresponding

depreciation are not allocated to segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar service.
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5. JrEbAE B ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) EPESE - BEERAM ) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
A B S T 28 I T R A B Information regarding the Group's operating and reportable
BIURITT © segments is set out below.

BEZZ-\E+_HA=+—HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2018

/S ¢

A I

N

Property

management

e 13 Y¥ERE  and related
Property Property services At
development investment and others Total
ARETLE ARWTT ARWTLZ ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

5'5 Q &I\ﬁgﬁ E}‘j le)\ Revenue from external customers

i TR R ] B R Recognised at a point in time 99,325,174 — — 99,325,174
W I [ e Recognised over time 9,394,193 4,090,465 2,988,628 16,473,286
il N Inter-segment revenue = = 275,350 275,350
ArERIA Segment revenue 108,719,367 4,090,465 3,263,978 116,073,810

Syl B (AN R)  Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 33,050,444 2,486,617 798,402 36,335,463

IR Segment assets 269,553,969 57,071,210 1,460,156 328,085,335
o 3=N i Segment liabilities 158,080,814 1,002,344 92,701 159,175,859
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
NEREL S B LhAE ) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BE-Z—LET-AZ+—HILEE

Year ended December 31, 2017

WEH

BB RS

B HA

Property

management

YR YIFEHRE  and related
Property Property services At
development  investment and others Total
ANB¥TL AR¥TLT AR¥TLT AR¥TIL
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AN A Revenue from external customers

T L B ] S e Recognised at a point in time 67,299,635 — — 67,299,635
Wi IR [T T 2 Recognised over time 162,817 2,593,240 2,019,349 4,775,406
AR RTICA Inter-segment revenue — — 187,694 187,694
Vil oN Segment revenue 67,462,452 2,593,240 2,207,043 72,262,735
o3 A (KT EEAA])  Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 20,414,464 1,729,033 495,634 22,639,131
T HRE Segment assets 177,179,367 43,015,829 1,015,736 221,210,932
oA Segment liabilities 115,903,374 865,445 30,833 116,799,652
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

5. AR B
(a) AHiREAL
Jell s OB

HE KA ) (a)

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

LB 8
YLilol e
&)
Property
management
LIE S 9] MERE  and related
Property Property services At
development investment and others Total
ANRWT ARWTT ARWTIL ARWETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FHE G E R Amounts included in the
PrEt A2 BIE measure of segment assets:
ZER— )\ 2018
B B Additions to non-current
(B &E) assets (Note) 151,961 8,462,606 326,653 8,941,220
—E— LA 2017
BT g Additions to non-current
(Fft&E ) assets (Note) 148,038 4,172,418 35,836 4,356,292
Ma: : ZTE@EREREYWEURY Note: Amounts represent additions to investment properties and property, plant

25 BRI B o

Wk 88 B A B o D i A 1 2 6 R
b > EELERRNERBARA
LEE S FENER > AR E
TR 2 ) O A A B A R 3
B A B A EMHE L RN
XA BEYERER ARG X
R N-FEEE) - ik em TRAYF
(e ~ JLMA ~ oAb K
12 (R I A~ TR
S LA BN T 2 e 28 ) A e
{E kR (A7)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

and equipment.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, the chief operating decision maker is provided
with information concerning the Group's consolidated amount
of interests in associates and related share of results, interests in
joint ventures and related share of results, change in fair value of
investment properties and upon transfer to investment properties,
change in fair value of derivative financial instruments, other
income, other gains and losses, finance costs from borrowings,
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses (if any) which

are not allocated to operating segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

& 1 R assets and liabilities
“F)\E CELE
2018 2017
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
A Revenue
AR Segment revenue 116,073,810 72,262,735
3T T s A 3 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (275,350) (187,694)
LA Consolidated revenue 115,798,460 72,075,041
i Fl Profit
3 s ) Segment profit 36,335,463 22,639,131
HAb g A Other income 1,249,249 794,813
HoAth i 23 B 4 Other gains and losses (285,873) 52,707
R REY N A TEIE  Fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties 1,158,861 503,080
BN T HES Change in fair value of investment properties 3,542,993 4,420,207

Rt AT RATH5
B A
HE A 3

Change in fair value of derivative financial

instruments
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

310,350 (411,889)
(74,560) (45,275)
189,220 1,214,682

JEAL A s Share of results of joint ventures 454,084 653,553
PreE K ay Depreciation and amortisation (222,685) (28,687)
A4 B B 52 Unallocated expenses (5,174,100)  (3,238,737)
fo 4 BRI Ui 1) Consolidated profit before taxation 37,483,002 26,553,585
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5.

S iA B )

(b)

O - REE - B R E

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

B R (42) assets and liabilities (Continued)
“F-M\E Tt
2018 2017
ANREFLE ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B Assets
IR R Segment assets 328,085,335 221,210,932
Cumulative change in fair value of investment
REMENTH R EE properties 30,066,290 25,364,436
TAAHHH B ROH Prepaid lease payments 16,518,641 37,139,443
TR s R R RE 4R Interests in associates 7,571,982 7,780,744
REESENMER Interests in joint ventures 7,365,020 5,412,043
At ERE Available-for-sale investments — 201,133
N AR AT A A 1
W4 M4 T A Equity instruments at FVTOCI 734,265 —
FEEA T AMEE %4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 9,968,487 5,477,350
I HE R JE U Deferred taxation assets 4,192,962 3,462,687
it em T A Derivative financial instruments 313,611 229,965
Al i el Fi T Taxation recoverable 4,202,728 3,662,699
A3 T A A Unallocated head office and other assets 97,864,692 52,822,422
A EEAME Consolidated total assets 506,884,013 362,763,854
AR Liabilities
Vi =L Segment liabilities 159,175,859 116,799,652
JRE A5 BT Taxation payable 21,611,655 15,211,025
EIEBLIA A R Deferred taxation liabilities 7,746,961 6,617,668
SRAT RIAbAE K Bank and other borrowings 111,199,299 69,138,710
BIEYE Senior notes 8,620,623 8,265,483
MELR T A Derivative financial instruments 176,765 —
HAb AR 4 i T A Other derivative financial instruments 390,672 657,746
R A3 i A % At £ R Unallocated head office and other liabilities 57,144,051 39,894,895
A AR AE Consolidated total liabilities 366,065,885 256,585,179
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5 WA B ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(o) B b RN P i 2 (¢) Revenue from major product and services
AREE G EYE - BEYE KR The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
PR B S U 25 A I F properties sold, properties invested and services provided:
"R )\E R
2018 2017

ARWETFE  ARWTFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

HEYE Sales of properties
T S B e Recognised at a point in time 99,325,174 67,299,635
Wi 5 T i Recognised over time 9,394,193 162,817

108,719,367 67,462,452
PS8 R AR B NS B AT A Revenue from property management and

— i IR ] e R related services and others - recognised over time 2,988,628 2,019,349
BEEHKBIA Revenue from contract with customers 111,707,995 69,481,801
A Rental income 4,090,465 2,593,240
Mg A Total revenue 115,798,460 72,075,041
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

5. AR B o) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) Ho [ &R (d) Geographical information
TEREIIEEEYE  BEMER The following table sets out information about the Group’s revenue
SR MRS i 7E o B3 Tl A B A from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location
FEER AR FIRARER - FF at which the properties are sold, properties are invested and services
T Y R T A b A are provided. Information about its non-current assets is analysed
G o by geographical location of assets.
AR F A
Revenue from B E
external customers Non-current assets
R N\FE R ZF ) ZF L
2018 2017 2018 2017

ARWTFIE AENFT ARBETLE ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 ~ RMB’'000  RMB’ 000

b Beijing 6,704,914 7,923,315 18,981,509 18,935,431
TR Chengdu 9,184,391 6,356,412 13,871,412 12,654,623
g Chongqing 17,443,625 14,322,533 31,861,763 27,678,650
B Hangzhou 19,737,654 6,842,741 14,514,373 12,650,533
i) Jinan 5,907,623 1,368,523 86,033 7,098,253
3,7 Ningbo 7,788,665 198,584 673,298 208,464
HE Qingdao 5,680,719 3,088,580 1,481,045 601,667
FiE Shanghai 7,283,928 4,153,302 12,935,559 14,828,763
s Shenyang 4,976,246 1,871,724 69,994 68,581
[35) Sunan 4,244,701 4,161,408 7,688,005 1,984,840
& Xiamen 8,193,986 6,738,650 2,829,651 3,925,042
[iE:S Xian 3923,352 3,377,764 1,588,284 1,336,905
20 L At 3k T Other cities in the PRC 14,728,656 11,671,505 23,032,793 23,230,083

115,798,460 72,075,041 129,613,719 125,201,835

Mia: : JEREEE R4 T R E Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred taxation
JERITE G E o assets.

HIF 4 B B8 — A L% B AT 28 5 (R No revenue from transaction with a single external customer

A FEARAE B A 10% Sk DL L o amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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oAb

6. OTHER INCOME

“F-M\E  —“F-tEF
2018 2017
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FEMA Interest income 572,183 315,390
YA B Y R A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments — 802
TR AR R A i PR T A A Dividend income from equity
ST gE B HE £ T H 2 BEEA instrument at FVTOCI
held at the end of the reporting period 1,000 —
BURFEERG (K 5Ea) Government subsidies (Note a) 29,829 140,620
ERHWA (H5ED) Penalty income (Note b) 131,289 73,194
S (M3 ¢) Consultancy income (Note ) 470,960 231,890
ETE A Sundry income 43,988 32,917
At Total 1,249,249 794,813
i Notes:
(a) S AR AR B8 w1 B Wi B DA B A E (a) The amount represents the grants received from the relevant PRC government to
[ 3 A B o G A MR RO AR TR 4% encourage the investments in specific regions. The subsidies are unconditional and
1 FE ST T A EE ] o granted on a discretionary basis to the Group during the year.
(b) RABITYERECEE RN EER (b) It represents penalty received from property buyers who do not execute sales and

R A L L T 9 L L 2
4o

(©  ZEBIRAAEENGEMCERBEAR
B Sr 3 =7 SR B W S B BRI H O R
il i o

()

purchase agreements on property sales or from tenants who early terminate tenancy

agreements.

The amount represents the consultancy services provided to the Group’s joint
ventures and associates and independent third parties in relation to the property

development projects.
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

7. Sefbcd B 7.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
—F-\E —“ZT—tF
2018 2017
ANRETL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWE - B E R e Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (409) (6,354)
B 52, (s 80 ) e 4 15 480 (R RE) Net exchange (loss) gain (Note) (823,433) 186,945
TS A A R TR Reclassification of fair value gain (loss) of hedging
BT (B8 (F3E30) instruments from hedging reserve (Note 30) 648,760 (104,250)
1 i ] 4 S SR AR P s 4R, Loss on early redemption of senior notes (110,791) —
Aty Others — (23,634)
(285,873) 52,707
Misk - Fe I (s Dk E 0 (55 )) 5 Note: It represents exchange difference arising from bank balances, bank borrowings and
HISRATAE RS ~ BT SR REBEE AN senior notes denominated in foreign currencies of Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”) or
T 38 254 o United States Dollar (“USD”).
8. BVENA 8. FINANCE COSTS
SN T
2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT B H A i AR Interest on bank and other borrowings
HAENBEEE Wholly repayable within five years (3,448,133) (1,895,052)
JE AR R BB R Not wholly repayable within five years (1,031,613)  (1,078,215)
B IE AR R B S Interest expense on senior notes (418,016) (432,835)
W BEREPREWER Less: Amount capitalised to properties
BRI EYENEA B under development for sales and investment
properties under development 4,823,202 3,360,827
(74,560) (45,275)

EAAEEERANR A AELEEN—
BERE RBEE E-NAE+ A
=t —HIEFEEREE481% (ZF—+L
i 4.89%) MEARILILRGE  5EAS
Gk GBI -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the

Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.81%
(2017: 4.89%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2018, to

expenditure on the qualifying assets.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax

"R NE CE L
2018 2017
AREFIE ARKETIL
RMB’000  RMB’000

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (7,741,254)  (5,241,484)
Withholding tax on distributed earnings (133,665) —
LAT (8,625,483)  (4,605,383)

(16,500,402)  (9,846,867)

EAF AR (AR

Overprovision (underprovision) in prior years:

ZEFTEH (M) EIT (Note a) 85,536 177,747
T ER (M5 b) LAT (Note b) 307,280 (63,509)
392,816 114,238

R ERLIE (P 3E 32)

Deferred taxation (Note 32)

AR Current year (484,727) (342,468)
(16,592,313) (10,075,097)

B &k Notes:

(a) o T % T 2ETE H R 8 A w b5t (a) The assessment and computation of EIT payable in respect of certain subsidiaries
Rt e ZE TSR 5E R WA Rl which held completed property projects were finalised which differed from the
A A A ARG R > R management’s estimation on EIT in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of EIT
A BRI A SE A BB AR o in respect of prior years.

(b) HTYEER N ESMEED TiEE LA (b) The actual appreciation value of several property projects had been finalised and the

TR E MR EFR#C T BT - Hh g
BT Al Rt 48 (B BT 4R B A O 34 (R A
W] o TR A s (AR B M (=%
—LAF AR -

development plan for several property projects had been revised in which the revised
estimated appreciation value was different with the appreciation value made in prior
years, resulting in an overprovision (2017: underprovision) of LAT in respect of

prior years.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

9. Bifa BB )

MR AL BB A E B R B &
i WO AR AR BL R -

AR B A 3 B 5 B ik (4 36 B 15 L
&) RO E ARG > 7 AR
W B A R BRI B 25% o
ARaR P BEEEE AT HEA RS E
R R E RN T e R G
B o

FERBE# LR R i S At 2 T i 4 R
I*Jl%%ﬂéﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂ GEERWT

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group

does not have income which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible
for exemption from PRC EIT for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

= e

2018 2017
ARBFTE  ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R L ¥ Profit before taxation 37,483,002 26,553,585
25% WY B 4 SE BT 5Bt PRC EIT at 25% 9,370,751)  (6,638,396)
JREA B /A R SR AR I BT R 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 47,305 303,671
JE A 1 SE SE R BB 3 Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 113,521 163,388
FUBLEIN 5 A NPRB 2 BB 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

(Bt 5Ea) purposes (Note a) (564,147) (506,141)
FRBLIET 5 BB AR BT 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 4,087 16,779
I E R LAT (8,625,483)  (4,605,383)
b3 R B o 2 Tax effect of LAT 2,156,371 1,151,345
TEAF AR Overprovision in prior years 392,816 114,238
SR R T 48 1 Bl S 2R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (85,374) (55,059)
AT e R BB ) A 1 o T A Effect of tax exemption and preferential rates

T B OB 2 11 5 22 granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 48,952 21,010
A R IR R B B A R BB (5T b) Withholding tax on retained earnings to be

distributed (Note b) (709,610) (40,549)
R Tax charge for the year (16,592,313) (10,075,097)
Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)
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@) AR AR AR R AT A 3 B 5
T WA 2 ) B S e A B B 2 L Y
A1 PR AR OB 8 o

(b)  AREBRCR AN A vk R A L B A 2 4
3 7, B BB B L A6 B P 22 ) I
Bk 120081112 %% » 59 BB BB %8
R B B A B 7R A R e A e D 25 9%
17 6 /A ) o BB A T v
AFREE_Z—NE+A=+—HI
A B T A % 73 IR i A 17 48 40 T8 410
BB o

B B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses
of the Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable

deduction limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.

(b) According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and
the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa
[20081112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25%
of the capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is
applicable. The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the

undistributed profits arisen during the year ended December 31, 2018 of certain

PRC subsidiaries.

10. DIVIDENDS

—F-)M\E L
2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
N TERR RIS Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:
SR NEMER I R R B AR Interim dividend recognised in respect of 2018
0.3 JC(=F—LHF : AR¥o0.270) of RMBO0.3 (2017: RMBO0.2) per share 1,781,855 1,179,953
ZFB—LAREIRAT IR B Final dividend paid in respect of 2017 of
ANRM0.473 70 (ZF —L4 - RMBO0.473 (2017: in respect of 2016
ZERANFEERARYE0.4667T) of RMBO0.466) per share 2,805,049 2,739,175
Z B LA IRAT YRR Special dividend paid in respect of 2017
T AR ¥ 0.085 7T of RMBO0.085 (2017: nil) per share
(ZF L4 %) 504,079 —
5,090,983 3,919,128

AR AR > A W) B R IR
BE-ZF— E+-A=ZF+—HILEE
¥ A 1A B A R ¥ 4,097,545,000 7C
e N 0.69 70 (FE R —F — AN+ A
ST —HWEBTREEA) (CF—L
Fr#E_Z—tFE+HA=1+—H1
AF R BN R %2,794,297,000
gt B AR ¥ 0.47370) MR
T I Tt BRCA0E 4F K  AEE o

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB4,097,545,000, representing RMB0.69 per share, based on the
number of shares in issue as at December 31, 2018, in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2018 (2017: final dividend of RMB2,794,297,000,
representing RMB0.473 per share, in respect of the year ended December
31, 2017) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is

subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

11. FBEA 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
RN TR N JREAL B T LA R 3 v 2 R The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
B RTEL TS FE DLT #E the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—F-)M\E —F £
2018 2017
ANBETFL AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB 000
A B A K 4 vt 1 Earnings attributable to the owners of the Company
AN TR N EAG R for the purposes of calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share 16,236,870 12,598,597
“F-N\E  “FLF
2018 2017
TH T
‘000 000
[ ¥ Number of shares
JR A 5 MR A 3 1 e 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
TIRET- 2% purpose of calculation of basic earnings per share 5,843,544 5,805,659
FiE PR o P 073 VL A B < 3 e Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
19 Y2 e 48 5 2 respect of - Share options and share awards 112,041 98,662
FRTA B SRy 25 1 L Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
JIRET- 28 purpose of calculation of diluted earnings per share 5,955,585 5,904,321
T A A T A R A R v 2 ) i The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
T 3 98 R AN E S 2 B S AT — 2 08 calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have
3% 6 AR EAS 4N B) B B wHE DA G been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company
SRR NFIFA R RIER o by an independent trustee under the share award scheme of the Company.
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12. ##EWE 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
g
% R 8 SE7ES
G Investment
Completed properties
investment under Bt
properties  development Total

ARWBTE  ARETLT ARKTT
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

AP FAIR VALUE
R_F—LtH—H—H At January 1, 2017 41,508,800 7,521,800 49,030,600
E Additions — 4,166,785 4,166,785
AR A A O Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 7,102,749 7,102,749
TR AR B2 (5E) Transfer from properties held for sales (Note) 1,033,576 — 1,033,576
L Transfer 10,261,945 (10,261,945) —
BRI 2 7 Acquisition of assets and liabilities through

W I 7 ) & (BF5E33)  acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 274,587 2,066,241 2,340,828
R R R AT (E Net increase in fair value recognised in

S profit or loss 3,053,337 1,366,870 4,420,207
A= F—+t4E+"H="+—H At December 31, 2017 56,132,245 11,962,500 68,094,745
RE Additions 744,118 5,533,142 6,277,260
L5 JEREREiN=E 0l | Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 6,064,868 6,064,868
T F R th B3 (ML) Transfer from properties held for sales (Note) 429,674 — 429,674
L Transfer 3,021,530 (3,021,530) —
T HE 4 W R B (L Net increase in fair value recognised in

3 AR profit or loss 1,659,173 1,883,820 3,542,993
A= F— 4+ " H=+—H At December 31, 2018 61,986,740 22,422,800 84,409,540

FEAJE A 1YY 2 E A Y Unrealised gain on property revaluation

KBB4 included in profit or loss 1,702,506 2,999,348 4,701,854
Wk pRNELAE = I ARAATE E R - BRY Note: The transfer from properties held for sales to investment properties were made since
E e e B Ak u‘ﬂ’%%%ﬁﬁ'} po there was a change in use as evidenced by the inception of operating leases to third
G o parties.
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12. #EWE )

BEY IR A -

ES SUECSC/ES Lt PACIDYIE S gE
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B — B 5 B RS S (BT — 7
S0 A 0 A (6 D S O B0 A R R CRLARY
A B 8 AL 0 8 B9 £ B L A 0
s BRI KRB ) A R4 % H AT 69 £ (L A
# o

TERG R SE R0 22 (8 - L H il & 2
ARYES T Sl G S 3E ik

R B8 DA S0 B0 30 20
T

MY E - BEAEARTBHERA
FHEBAEAGE > %% EAREY
A REE AT ATA -

IR P 3E — S AT B A S AR AR B
B A R R R Y RS AG > AR
T 5 1R TR TEL L S 9 AR I B 8 7
)T S 58 B R TR H B &

A SR T 1R B OBOREL < SFF ARG (8
) B A R KA TR P SE R AR LA
FEB G BB RA RIS EY
#*,

ALE B BEE Y SERIE R =N EE
A LT A8 5 A M A A O 5
=8 HEZEREY RN FENEE
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) ERBIIGT -
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12.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at dates of transfer
and reporting dates have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on those dates by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the

valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the

valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties - arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

incoming potential of the respective properties.

Properties under development - valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit

margin to reflect the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group's property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the

fair value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties are grouped under Level 3 fair value
hierarchy and there was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during both
years. The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

degtee to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
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12. #EWE )

fiak

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

(g)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & & 4% i% & R 2 &

AR JIC AR 525 62 T TR (T Ee
ST B G AR AR 2 > AR
B o DUR AR ) (ARG 19 Tl 35 R -

T AT L9 i A B 545
T 8 T P i -
S S - A B o 0 B E 0
RS

{55 20 4 )2 ML ) BLA R I
HITFINTS: - 45 IV S - AT
i -

R TATELE A A 7 R 8 o
LI 63T L o o7 R AT AL A8
B AT -

AR T JE 4 R 5 15 T He
ERMEM L BRERE > WwaRk
N e BRI - AT -

P 355 741 ) ) 25 20 T BG4 2 ) B W
HOHERE BT A R BR > A F(H B
1 -

S B0 25 2% 1 300 77 355 BUAT A 5 o Il BE AR
o ATERE -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

(G

(e)

(&

Term yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average selling price
and the market average rental from comparable properties and adjustment to reflect

the lower market risk for the term value.

Reversionary yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average
selling price and the market average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the shopping malls and residential

properties.

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the rental as stated in the existing

rental agreements. The higher the monthly term rental, the higher the fair value.

Reversionary rental is derived from the market rentals from comparable properties
or the rental as stated in the new rental agreements. The higher the reversionary

rental, the higher the fair value.

Gross development value on completion basis has taken into account of location
and individual factors such as frontage and size, between the comparables and the

property. The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value.

Developet’s profit has taken into account of the comparables land transactions and

progress of the property. The higher the developer’s profit, the lower the fair value.

Discount rate has taken into account of the prevailing market interest rates. The

higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
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13. ¥ ~ B ikt 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LECI)
it e gL
FRTE Structure R AR R
Construction and  EWE  Leaschold  BEEH  Equipment
in leasehold Hotel  land and Motor and it
progress improvement  properties  buildings vehicles  furniture Total

ARKFL  ARETZ  ARKTFR  ARKTZ  ARKTTR  ARKTFZ  ARNTZ
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00

Bk COST

REF—tF-f—H At January 1, 2017 = = = 181,270 62,793 218,649 462,714
BE Additions 32,083 - - (8,265 6,792 82,367 189,507
HEOREIREYE Transfer from properties under

(3t 20) development for sales (Note 20) 502,849 - - - - — 502,849
L Transfer (94,587) - 94,587 — - - -
ER R A Acquisition of assets and

A e B liabilities through acquisition

(HfzE33) of subsidiaries (Note 33) - - - - - 2,594 2594
s Disposals - - - (1,938) (2,319) (15,719) (19976)
BEF—FFA=F—H  AtDecember 31,2017 440341 - 94,587 247,597 67,268 27891 1,137,684
KE Additions 319125 2,182,061 - 91,780 11,124 59870 2,663,960
g Transfer (759,466) - 799,466 — = = =
ERIRRE LR Acquisition of assets and

KREERAR liabilities through acquisition

(J3£33) of subsidiaries (Note 33) - - - - — 41,942 41,942
i Disposals = = - - (6,898) (132) (7,030)
REF—AE+ZA=4—H Ac December 31,2018 — 218,061 854,033 339,377 71,494 389571 3836,556
Bt ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZZ—tHE-f—-H At January 1, 2017 - - - 68,70 42,571 152,625 264,072
LS Charge for the year - - - 6,444 8,044 14,199 28,087
i AL Eliminated on disposals - - - (1,744) Q08 (44 (7978
REZE—HEFZA=T—H  AcDecember 31, 2017 — - - 73,570 48,534 152,677 274,781
R Charge for the year = 125,353 13,033 15,768 6,721 41,563 202438
i R Eliminated on disposals - - - - (6,249) (103) (6352)

REE—-\EFZA=1—H

At December 31, 2018 - 125,353 13,033 89,338 49,006 194,137 470,867

it
REF-NEHZA=1-H

CARRYING VALUES
At December 31, 2018 — 205,708 841,020 250,039 22488 195434 3,369,089

e S .2y ey

At December 31, 2017 440341 - 94,587 174027 18,734 135,214 862,903

& s Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

13. 3% ~ B Bk i ) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
N_E—tF T+ HA=ZT—HWERT Construction in progress as at December 31, 2017 represent hotel
P48 I v B ) 7E 80 5 ) 2 - properties which are under construction in the PRC.
Ll BE RRETEE (e TR The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction
) KRG B4 LR AR R GHE AL R R 1 in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method after taking
EG O Y iy into account of their estimated residual values at the following rates per
annum:
R ES FAGFER] A AE 8 40 4F Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives of 40 years
HETME AEEFELE#REYN Leasehold land Over the shorter of the terms of relevant
M AR A 2 A and buildings lease of the relevant land on which buildings
W H B 5% are erected, or 5%
Y K i FHL 3 B St AT 4R Structure and leasehold Over the shorter of the lease term or
HEWHE  WTHE (LB L) improvement estimated useful lives of 10 years
#1E
TR 20% Motor vehicles 20%
B R 33% Equipment and furniture  33%
T 5 W2 DL R S B A 1 b The hotel properties and leasehold land and buildings are all situated on
BRI AR o lands in the PRC.
14, L3 08 iR 14. LAND USE RIGHTS
b {5 R i B AR e R S ) 2 Land use rights represent up-front prepayment made for operating leases
A B Y b A 2 A0 AL A o Y LA K of land portion related to the hotel properties located in the PRC.
=
15. JRMRE 2 vl ihE s 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

—F-0\E —FLF

2018 2017
ARBTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

BERA - LT Cost of investments, unlisted 6,355,079 5,834,172
JEAG W 22 0 A - nBRE R Share of post-acquisition profits,

net of dividend received 1,217,317 1,946,986
W BRI E R R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)

7,571,982 7,780,744

Wo_E—=N\FT+_HA=Z+—HZHEL Details of the associates as at December 31, 2018 are set out in note 51(c).
R RIFEIE R B3 s 1(0)

- 208 Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & E = ik 5 R 2 &
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TRV 2 vl W9 BERR 20
HORI oy W] M ORI
T2 A AL S A 5 R
(MERILE ) - 7 50 B B A A
(T By W8 1) 06 B B 0% 91 I
o BT RS ORI A A
IR S 9 5 B 2 B B W
FLEH -

8 T R AR A AR A
WAB IR AR -

WEZE— )+ A=+ —HILEE

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information of Beijing Xutai Real Estate Company
Limited (“Beijing Xutai”), Qingdao Wanyi Real Estate Company Limited
(“Qingdao Wanyi”), which are the material associates, is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown

in the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with TFRSs.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Jex g HEER
Beijing Qingdao
Xutai Wanyi
ANRBTT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B EE Current assets 10,689,247 5,720,712
I ) & Non-current assets 1,550,747 1,345
B Current liabilities (7,176,662)  (3,347,186)
I B £ £ Non-current liabilities (1,922,000) —
A Revenue 694,303 3,354,240
A P VR A B 4 T A A AR AR Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 167,292 611,591

% #) Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

15. TR 2 vl SR (a0) 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

BRI AT MBS R ) Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

BE-Z - N\NF+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended December 31, 2018 (Continued)
(1“%?)
bt A S R AR B B A A B S IR 2 T Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
SR B R W N E ME 55 RO B T A6 B carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in
B the consolidated financial statements:

Jen g HEER
Beijing Qingdao
Xutai Wanyi
ANBETT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000

W a2 %gé Net assets of the associate 3,141,332 2,374,871
AR R W~ Proportion of the Group’s ownership
B fEfE S HSWJ interests in the associate 49% 25.1%
e S - /N ] Carrying amount of the Group’s
HE %5 1 B T interests in the associate 1,539,253 596,093
BEZE—LFETF A=+ —HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2017
ez HEER
Beijing Qingdao
Xutai Wanyi

ARHTE AR¥TIL
RMB’'000  RMB’000

T B E Current assets 7,681,014 6,576,247
JE T B) & Non-current assets 48,546 25,729
iHh A fR Current liabilities (2,915,534)  (4,830,047)
FE i B Non-current liabilities (1,490,000) —
A Revenue 1,904,309 —
A B (s 48) B 2 T W 4 Profit (loss) and total comprehensive

(BA3Z) K% income (expense) for the year 630,436 (34,234)

Il 210  Longfor Group Holdings Limited o #8 1 % [ 12 & 4 [R A &
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TR 2 ) IR )
HORIE O 7] M 2 R (40)
BB+ S — B
()

bl B A LA A A R R
R 7 B R W D R i 1 R T (Y
i -

%%Ajz%gﬁ

BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2017 (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

Jen g HEER
Beijing Qingdao
Xutai Wanyi

AR TT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Net assets of the associate 3,324,026 1,771,929

A SR A W~ Proportion of the Group’s ownership

B A R [:Hﬂ interests in the associate 49% 25.1%
P S - /N ] Carrying amount of the Group’s

R 4 09 i A interests in the associate 1,628,773 444,754

1 3 3 B K P B 4 ) S M B

ASE B AL (518 1t A1) &
AT (B 52 ) Wi A8 7

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material
—F-M\E T
2018 2017

ARHTE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

The Group’s share of (loss) profit and
total comprehensive (expense) income (46,262) 914,361

A SR A FRY
e 4 B R A (L

Carrying amount of the Group's interests
in the associates 5,436,636 5,702,217

% #) Annual Report 2018 2]] -
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BEZZ— )+ HZA—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

16. REBAENHER 16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
“F-M\E T
2018 2017
ANRHEFL AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BERA > b Cost of investments, unlisted 6,212,546 4,351,467
JRE A Wi A 0 A - IR MR B Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend received 1,152,474 1,060,576
7,365,020 5,412,043

RE-F—-NEFZA=F+—HZaEL
MR R HEE 5 10b).

KA Rl B R 2

A TR A A S T R
AIRAT (THMERD) LR
e BB AT A 7 (T I s 25 ) At 3 8
SRR A WA ([ 2 % )
Ho BB ORI AN T« DL BB
2 2 3145 8 S A 0 R 5
A B S B 2

GEGBORENMAREERZEES
WA R AR -

BE_Z—/\FE+ZH=1t—HI4FE

Details of the joint ventures as at December 31, 2018 are set out in note

51(b).

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information of Guangzhou Junliang Real Estate
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Junliang”), Beijing Zhaotai Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“Beijing Zhaotai”) and Beijing Jinhao Wanhua
Real Estate Company Limited (“Beijing Jinhao Wanhua”), which are
the Group’s material joint ventures, is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint

venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Ja o R

JE M iz Beijing

Guangzhou Beijing Jinhao

Junliang Zhaotai Wanhua

ANRETFT  ARETT ARETFL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BB E Current assets 5,194,410 13,809,105 1,174,732
I B G Non-current assets 72,999 12,410 81
Eh A fE Current liabilities (3,511,237)  (8,283,106) (480,103)
Fe i) A £ Non-current liabilities (999,900) =

I 212
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2018 (Continued)

(/@-F)
P8 EY £
JEE LRIz Beijing
Guangzhou Beijing Jinhao
Junliang Zhaotai Wanhua
ANBETFT  ARETT ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FaliEE R ABEEEASE  The above amounts of assets and liabilities
MUTIHE : include the following:
BREPGEYE Properties under development for sales 1,320,009 4,973,592 —
FrE i EY% Properties held for sales — — 597,532
H& R & EEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,418,770 1,073,140 152,716
ALy =N Current financial liabilities (741,630)  (3,288,932) (389,932)
HHRIAE Contract liabilities (2,356,845)  (4,664,101) —
A Revenue 1,591,960 3,747,440 1,266,705
R A R AT sR A8 Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year 333,590 592,925 364,271
bl S A L A A R e Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

o T TR 8 A S HE i 1 B TR (L 1

carrying amounts of the interests in the material joint ventures recognised

fE in the consolidated financial statements:
Jen s R %
JEE M Lz Beijing
Guangzhou Beijing Jinhao
Junliang Zhaotai Wanhua
ANBWTFT  ARWTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HRMCEZFEE Net assets of the joint venture 756,272 5,538,409 694,710
AEERAER¥EL Proportion of the Group's ownership interests
JiT A REHE i LU A5 in the joint venture 50% 25% 34%
ARG EMSEN Carrying amount of the Group's interests
e i B B T in the joint venture 378,136 1,384,602 236,201

% #) Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

16. REBAENRER 2
HAAENEMBEEREE )

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)

BE - Z—tEtT A=t —HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2017

I 214

JE R A
TN B R Beijing
Guangzhou Beijing Jinhao
Junliang Zhaotai Wanhua
ANREETFIE  ARETLZ ARETFE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
G E Current assets 2,808,623 12,550,938 3,264,362
FERE G E Non-current assets 34,443 5,767 9,286
B A R Current liabilities (1,405,514)  (5,396,238)  (2,943,208)
R E R Non-current liabilities (1,014,870)  (2,020,000) —
LiEE R ABESHASE  The above amounts of assets and liabilities
MITFIHE : include the following:
WY Properties under development for sales 1,757,623 7,147,088 1,537,414
B BB EEY) Cash and cash equivalents 749,187 298,989 612,810
BHAR Contract liabilities (1,130,377)  (4,186,912)  (1,540,287)
B A Non-current financial liabilities (1,000,000)  (2,020,000) —
A Revenue 815,088 1,137,919 74,253
A T R % A T A Profit and total comprehensive
Fick) income for the year 325,214 178,230 26,583

Longfor Group Holdings Limited e #g i & & 1= iz B R A &)
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(/@-F)
bl B R AR B £ TS R R
AR A R G A SEE i 10 MR 1T (L 1Y 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

(Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2017 (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amounts of the interests in the material joint ventures recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

e R

B Jeain Beijing

Guangzhou Beijing Jinhao

Junliang Zhaotai Wanhua

ANR¥ T AR¥TIT AR¥TI

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEMEZFEE Net assets of the joint venture 422,682 5,140,467 330,440
AEERGER¥EL Proportion of the Group's ownership interests

i HERE 4 L 4 in the joint venture 50% 25% 34%

AAEMR G ESEMNRELR R Carrying amount of the Group's interests
HF 1h (. in the joint venture 211,341 1,285,117 112,350

(EPIE 2N ONDEEg-gie 3 & <4
B

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

= R
2018 2017
ANBETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
74 2 [ JRE A1 ¥ ) B 4 T S 2 AR B The Group's share of profit and total

comprehensive income 15,206 437,350

A B A G 8 AR 2E 0 HE i 1 B T (E Carrying amount of the Group's interests
in the joint ventures 5,366,081 3,803,235
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

17. AV A M2 WZ 17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
m%ﬁi E‘ THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ZF)N\EF
2018
ARH T
RMB’ 000
I bR £ R S5 Unlisted equity securities 734,265
bl IE AR A A AR B AE The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's equity
B0 J 1 N AT 2 AL R A IR o interest in private entities established in the PRC and overseas. The
AN B EER LS A directors of the Company have elected to designate these investments in
FREAE by BRI P T AR AN & i equity instruments as at FEVTOCI as they considered that these equity
B HECERN SR TARE instruments are not held for trading and not expected to be sold in the
808 At N PEFAH M 2 4 o foreseeable future.
18. W fk il BBt % 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

BB SR o RA

e
2017
ARBTFTE
RMB 000

Unlisted equity securities, at cost 201,133

JE BT R e B R E R A A R —
RAE L8 77 58 5y Bt = R B 9
HRBETHFE TGRS o hRZ%E
R SHAFEMATEEER > A2
RSV N A E - E /A Wi

ST 7 SR DA RS 1 o L 8

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

Unlisted equity investments represent the investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities and an entity with shares traded in
the new over-the-counter market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot

be reliably measured.
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20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

yeyly 19. INVENTORIES

—“F—-N\E S FtF
2018 2017
ARBEFTE  ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ey ) Construction materials 823,266 798,157
T2 i B A Consumables and others 3,383 764
826,649 798,921

BRPEEYE 20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES

BB EY IR R -

RoZE—NE+ZA=+—H  5A%
& R B 4 2 0 R YA B R
BRI NREE 65,006 B EIC(ZF— L4 -
ANEHss,108 @ &J0) - M ARG B
KL T 0 H % L B
() IR THI o

The properties under development for sales are located in the PRC.

Included in the properties under development for sales classified as
current assets as at December 31, 2018 is carrying value of approximately
RMB65,096 million (2017: RMB55,108 million) which represents the
cartying value of the properties expected to be completed and sold after

more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

% #) Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

21. Ffeifi

e SENGEST(ER 37/ S04 Nl Il
FRIE &Y S LA S BR -

M MR kB i VB 9 >

22.

21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES
The Group's properties held for sales are situated in the PRC. All the

properties held for sales are stated at cost.

22. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

5 & BB IR AND PREPAYMENTS
—F)\E CE L
2018 2017
ARHEFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Z 5 ECHIE (Bt 3 2) Trade receivables (Note a) 2,560,699 2,253,231
oA ENCEIE - R IR (R D) Other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
debts (Note b) 5,682,971 4,401,554
[EPONHE Advances to contractors 2,074,294 1,192,787
TEAT (B K H AR A Prepaid value added tax and other taxes 9,360,560 2,782,515
TAST A J Stk 4 (Mt o) Prepayments and utilities deposits (Note c) 2,894,793 3,553,470
22,573,317 14,183,557
B3 Notes:
(a) B 5 ME W 20 Ak B S B B R A (a) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties and properties

¥ - AT B 3 (R o % R AR
HE WIS - W - 14
WA L D AR08 40
fi -

LR 23R 1 3T 3 P30 B SR LR 4
25108 5 ME SRR I IR 2 A

investment. Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by customers
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements. For
properties investment, rental income are paid by tenants within two months in

accordance with the terms in the tenancy agreements.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on dates of

delivery of goods and date of rendering of services.

= SV S

2018 2017

ANEHT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

60 H A Within 60 days 2,178,339 1,968,612
61% 180 H 61 - 180 days 325,067 162,163
180 %365 H 180 - 365 days 47,456 91,260
1224 1 - 2 years 9,837 31,196
2,560,699 2,253,231

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)
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22. HEWCHR K B 30 A HE Ok JE
%4 BB 3k

(3

(a)

(b)

(0

BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

22. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

H o &8 NRY 289209800070 ( =%
—L4 NR¥3,256,896,000 7C) » Jift
RASEE BB ARG 4T B (B
BEHE ) XA o EERL > ZEMRTT
By VB B B R R R H A A

e
BN °©

s (#F) Notes: (Continued)
(#4) (a) (Continued)

A=Z— \FE+H=+—H  AHEHME As at December 31, 2018, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
W 5 B S R R A R debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,474,798,000 which are past due
2,474,798,000 TCHIFIE » ARk H I E @ as at the reporting date. All past due balances are not considered as in default as
W o BT AT AL ARG R 2R A o R those balances are mainly with those banks with good credit quality and pending
RZEREHTERE A BEEERRIFIR for completing their mortgage procedures.

1 e mdk e T4 -
R-F—tHE+ZH=+—H  F£H As at December 31, 2017, included in the Group's trade receivable balance are
JE W 32 5 R %@ﬁj o ﬁE [REREPNGS debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,119,986,000 which are past due
1 2,119,986,000 7C B S » 18 5 H 3 as at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
A fﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁmﬂﬁbﬁhﬁﬁéﬂﬁ The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
AR o AR IS A% 5 A B A AR (TR
bt
SRS LA L 0 2 RE M T R R 4T - Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:
“E A
2017
ABMFT
RMB’000
60 HA Within 60 days 1,835,367
614180 H 61 - 180 days 162,163
1812365 H 181 - 365 days 91,260
1824 1 - 2 years 31,196
At Total 2,119,986
T T B 5 BRSO ] A [ > 7 4 [ In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any
F 8 H IR AR H R RSN ARE S change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit was
MEWCGRIRAS BB R B T2 ) &P initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit
FLRERER LA B > s Bm R A AR risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
AR -
oAt RSO T A R AR B - R (b) Other receivables mainly comprise rental deposits, receivables of refund of the
WA R - TR S - BRI deposit for land auction, deposits for construction work, temporary payments and
PR B A E  —4E R AT R ) 25 T IE H miscellaneous project-related deposits paid which are refundable within one year.
MR 4
TSR Bkt 4 T B E AT K () Included in the prepayments and utilities deposits, there are mainly prepaid

lease payments amounting to RMB2,892,098,000 (2017: RMB3,256,896,000)
which are paid on behalf of certain entities which the Group potentially invests
in them (“potential investees”). In the opinion of the directors, such payments are

prepayment for property development projects for those potential investees.
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23.

24.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

REW Tk P B BE A% A W)
S EBAeERE

PR XA SR — M A
KIE N R #1,993,716,000 6 (= %F — £
0 AR ¥ 1,835,113,000 7C) L CRHE
Ah > AN RMEHE o I
N RAE S EHE T AR RS
JE PR + A o

AEEE RS - %AW
RE 128 A REE > FEHSEARE
BiE -

TG BRAT ARk AT 45 B
BBl4

(@  CIERSRITETIUARESHE - £
BRI T RATH AR > FER K
F it B R o R =% — \4F
TAZT—H o R EE R
5035% (ZFE—L4E  035%) o

(b  MEE R BATBUNR S » AT AR
R Bl B G A RAT AR A
R 225,924,000 70 ( =& — L4 -
N B #5 405,952,000 76) > {0 it
fEEY ERERIEE -

SRATHE R S & S AR L R A 1)
B4 B RS B AR A = A 5k bR
976 BAAE 3K o SRAT I B 417 3 A A
HEREFE 159 (ZF—LE: FF
1.5%) °

25

24.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

The amounts are denominated in RMB, except for amount due from
a joint venture of RMB1,993,716,000 (2017: RMB1,835,113,000)
is denominated in HKD, which are unsecured and interest-free. The
amounts due from associates and joint ventures mainly represented the

land costs paid on their behalf for properties held under development.

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, the amounts are expected
to be repaid within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and

therefore classified as current assets.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

(a)  Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage
guarantees provided to customers. The deposits carry fixed rate at
0.35% (2017: 0.35%) per annum at December 31, 2018.

(b) Included in bank balances and cash are balances which,
in accordance with the applicable prevailing government
regulations, are placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to
RMB225,924,000 (2017: RMB405,952,000), which can only be

applied in the designated property development projects.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The interest rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to
1.5% (2017: nil to 1.5%) per annum.

“FN\E F L

2018 2017
AREFTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fie GG T B SRR AT 72 R An analysis of pledged bank deposits and
SATHBR R % bank balances and cash by currency:
— D ARESHE - Denominated in RMB 44,955,405 25,699,614
— DA oatE - Denominated in HKD 56,348 624,921
— DA ITRHE - Denominated in USD 251,842 436,738
45,263,595 26,761,273
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25. MEATMR K B HEAT 2545 - B 25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, DEPOSITS

A i diil RECEIVED AND ACCRUED CHARGES
=B \E T b
2018 2017

ARBETE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

5 5 EA 0 B T 5 B S (Mt ) Trade payables and accrued expenditure on
construction (Note a) 44,768,028 21,938,084
JE A 224 (Fft 5k ) Bills payables (Note a) 968,013 1,374,910
45,736,041 23,312,994
JREART 1 2 Dividend payables 1,781,855 1,179,954
At A I T e st (B b) Other payables and accrued charges (Note b) 13,505,984 6,631,300
SR A ST B T D S O R LR Consideration payable within 1 year for
JA 1 AR R A A AR (BT 33) acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 1,210,072 819,352

62,233,952 31,943,600

% #) Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

25. MEAFUE = R EAT 2245 - Bk 25. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, DEPOSITS

%4 Bt 2 W o) RECEIVED AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)
B &k Notes:
(a) B2 b MEASH R I JRE AT 224 S ME R S B (a) Trade and bills payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise

LA 1) S AR IR B B B T9
PRASE R (0 JE TR IEAT - AR
e B L B A LR DA A B A R Ao
FOHE AR B IR A

DI At R > B 50 B SR S B £+
SEPRIR B H O R A SR AT H RO MR

construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress certified by the Group. The Group has financial risk management

policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the invoice

date and issuance date of each bill, at the end of the reporting period:

B
R )\ “F L
2018 2017
AREFIL AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
60 HKy Within 60 days 20,868,583 9,123,583
61%E 180 H 61 - 180 days 8,966,617 4,271,838
181 %2365 H 181 - 365 days 6,333,705 3,543,843
1 & 24 1 - 2 years 2,147,504 1,957,950
2F 34 2 - 3 years 460,323 754,589
R 3 4F Over 3 years 185,130 186,829
38,961,862 19,838,632

(b) HoAt e ASh 2 S ) B EAERE (b) Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to the

JEATBUR ) T BEIR ~ EAEERL - A%
TR BV E SR RN B -
ml e ERT B TARA -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

government on behalf of customers, value added tax payables, receipt on behalf of
certain entities from potential investment patners, accrued salaries and accrued staff

welfare.



26.

B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R

ARABEEEIRY LN E G - A&
S A 5 T B M ek R — i 1) 2 AR
HRIZHN30% E100% (ERHEE - T&
PR A G EEREAMA X AEAER
1) i i 4 A K B i o U 40 AT A B
45 -

AT AERI & A B AT RN © B R

EE R EYETE > AR EE T
R 5 T W L S P T BT I 4 4 S K
[ SR AT SR LI 4R o T (R BRI = 5 )
FKBIHBEK 709 o WFH I7 R IR
[ K RE M f2 45 2 {3t 448 F A T
Al B TR A 4 1 R R o 1R R FOR
B i 4 SRR AR AT 5 FLE o 7E LA B
T AEE T RACE T 4% &0 5
B DA ] A ] ph A 5 1 S 7 SRATHY
BIH o BRIEE T R 309 (G2 DL
REFR) > A5 BN 78 S R
REEK -

26.

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly represent the receipt in advance from property
sales. The Group normally receives 30% - 100% of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement.
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current
year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates to

performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

—F)\E CE L
2018 2017
ARBWTTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year 52,099,795 32,241,170

For properties under development for sales, the Group typically provides
guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount
up to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued interest thereon.
Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s
deposits and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. Unless the selling price would drop by no less than 30%,
which is remote, the Group would not be in a loss position in selling

those properties out.
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27. BEAIERBER WHBAF 27 AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

/ ﬁ%ﬁ% INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES
S THU N RWEHE > AEIEH - 4 The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured, interest-free
JHR BRI o and repayable on demand.
28. BT B AbAR K 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
—B U —E L
2018 2017

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

SRATEF > A Bank loans, secured 41,105,408 20,201,284
SATHER > MK Bank loans, unsecured 35,394,192 22,728,495
B S Bonds, unsecured 34,699,699 26,208,931

111,199,299 69,138,710

e A B AT (L 2 Mo v P AT The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable, based on
B H WfEE > SRR scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows:
e A
2018 2017
ANBRETLE AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4ER Within one year 11,743,175 3,610,754
ZIR 4 BABBME Within a period of more than one
year but not exceeding two years 22,813,096 17,256,275
ZINTAE B = A Within a period of more than two
years but not exceeding three years 20,800,932 15,638,614
ZHh =4 (BN R A 4 Within a period of more than three
years but not exceeding four years 10,626,929 5,806,784
ZRMUAE (B4 LA Within a period of more than four
years but not exceeding five years 24,998,929 8,270,205
R AT Exceeding five years 20,216,238 18,556,078
111,199,299 69,138,710
W AR — R R0 Less: Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities (11,743,175)  (3,610,754)
— AR B OE Amount due after one year 99,456,124 65,527,956

- 224 Longfor Group Holdings Limited ® 58 4 & & £ ix & [R & 7
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AT B AR K 1) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
2 4 [ R SR AT B A A5 Z 5 4% T B & The Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following
SHE - currencies set out below:
“F)NE ZEbE
2018 2017
AREFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
Ak BT An analysis of borrowings by currency:
—DARHFHE - Denominated in RMB 94,713,971 60,792,201
— A IeEHE - Denominated in HKD 15,747,535 7,415,385
—AEICEHE - Denominated in USD 737,793 931,124
111,199,299 69,138,710

A% 5 T BRAT A K AR B B R R o

The exposure and the range of effective interest rates on the Group’s bank

mF - borrowings are as follows:
“R )\
2018

Effective
RMB’000 interest rate
ARETFL  BEFA%
T RERAT K Fixed rate bank loans 3,411,442 4.18%
T RSRATE Variable rate bank loans 73,088,158 4.35%

“E LA
2017
Effective

interest rate

ERFI%

RMB’000
AW T

4,386,964
38,542,815

4.24%
4.33%

(@) IR L2 R RAT HEK

DABRF3E 39 7 s A1G 40 6 2 T A AR o

(@)  The above secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period

were secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 39.
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

28. HUT B IABAT X 1) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)
by AEER_-F—NFE+_HA=F— (b)  The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at
H A H A S G F December 31, 2018:
LIRS
IR R Effective
[Ce W FEAR BETHY Term of interest
Name of bond Par value Coupon rate Issue date the bond rate
AR T
RMB’000
BN RAFEES
Domestic Corporate Bonds
R e R 2,000,000 4.60% —FE—TAE 5& 4.71%
NS A2 F 555 tHLH S years
([ ZF—TARSE — LS5 ) July 7, 2015

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development
(“2015 First Tranche Bonds”)

HE M R 346,701 3.93% —F—LAF 54 4.02%  (Hita)
N B N A R &S B =EE 5 years (Note a)
([ = F— AR A G) ) July 27,2015

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development

(“(i) form of 2015 Second
Tranche Bonds”)

HERM AR 2,000,000 420% —F—IAE 74 4.25%  (Wf5Eb)
N RHEST KA AE S +tAZ=++tH 7 years (Note b)
([ = F—FAESE A5 i) ) July 27, 2015

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development

(“(ii) form of 2015 Second
Tranche Bonds”)

- 226 Longfor Group Holdings Limited ® & 4 & & 1% ik & [ 2 7
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by (#)

"L
Name of bond

Bi A w85 (A7)

Domestic Corporate Bonds (Continued)

A RE M
A BRHES KA R
(I =F—RAEE =]
RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development
(“2015 Third Tranche Bonds”)

B el
UNEL 2 ATl

(I =F—AER RG]

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development
(“(i) form of 2016 First
Tranche Bonds”)

BRI R
UNEL ATl

([ NS —HU A 2 W (i) )

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu
Development
(“(i1) form of 2016 First
Tranche Bonds”)

BRI R
N RWESE R A {57

([ ZZ—NES —HESGE6)])

RMB domestic corporate bonds

of Chongging Longhu Development

(“(i) form of 2016 Second
Tranche Bonds”)

B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

TR %
iR Effective
iR EWAR  BTHY Term of interest
Par value Coupon rate  Issue date the bond rate
AR T
RMB’000
2,000,000 4.08% —EZ—FAE 74 4.13%  (Fitskc)
+—HZH 7 years (Note c)
November 2, 2015
2,300,000 330% _F—NE 5& 341%  (MifsEd)
—H_+HH 5 years (Note d)
January 25,2016
1,800,000 3.68% _F—NEF 84 3.73%  (Mite)
—H=+1HA 8 years (Note e)
January 25,2016
2,500,000 3.19% ZFE—AF 64 3.28%  (MZES)
=HMNH 6 years (Note f)

March 4, 2016
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28. BT B I AbAE K )

by (%)

ez T i
Name of bond Par value
N

RMB’000

Bim A w85 (A7)

Domestic Corporate Bonds (Continued)

B yiEe SN 1,500,000
NI S pasilie
(B — NS RS M Gi) )
RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu Development
(“(i1) form of 2016 Second
Tranche Bonds”)

G AURGE S ) 700,000
UNE 2 YAl
(=B ANFERE=MES B G)])
RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu Development
(“() form of 2016 Third
Tranche Bonds”)

B yiEe SN 3,000,000
NI S pasiie
(TN = RS R i) )

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu Development
(“(i1) form of 2016 Third
Tranche Bonds”)

BE R 4R 240 3,000,000
UNE 2 Al
(I =F— /- HfE )
RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongqing Longhu Development
(“2018 First Tranche Bonds”)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

(b)  (Continued)

SRR

Coupon rate

3.75%

3.06%

3.68%

4.96%

BITHM

Issue date

ZE R
=HMH
March 4, 2016

e
tH+MA
July 14,2016

ZENE
tH+IA
July 14, 2016

ZE-)EANAZH
August 2, 2018

12 301 B

Term of
the bond

104F
10 years

5 4

5 years

74

7 years

5 4

5 years

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

oy YE
Effective
interest

rate

3.78%

3.17%

3.75%

5.03%

(Pt g)
(Note g)

(Pft3ER)
(Note h)

(P )
(Note 1)

(Ff3E5)
(Note j)
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28. ST B IABAT X a0 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)
by  (#) (b)  (Continued)
| {7k
fig 7 101 it Effective
fi 55 4 M Mg FEAE BTHY Term of interest
Name of bond Par value Coupon rate  Issue date the bond rate
N
RMB’000
BN A i ()
Domestic Corporate Bonds (Continued)
B SiEe ST 2,000,000 4.80% —F—\IF b 4.87%  (Mfitk)
AR RA FMES +—H/H 5 years (Note k)
([ = Z— N5 & ) November 6, 2018

RMB domestic corporate bonds
of Chongging Longhu Development
(“2018 Second Tranche Bonds”)

wEER

Green Bonds

R E R 1,600,000 440% —F—LAE 5 4 4.49%  (MEED
NGRS Sl ZH+RH 5 years (Note 1)
([ =F—LEE— MR ARES MG February 16, 2017

RMB green bonds of Chongging
Longhu Development
(“(i) form of 2017 First
Tranche Green Bonds”)

HEETE A E R 1,440,000 467% —F—tE 74 4.72%  (M#Em)
NG5 SR “A+AH 7 years (Note m)
(I ZF—LEF MO ER February 16, 2017
A Gii) ])

RMB green bonds of Chongqing
Longhu Development
(“(i1) form of 2017 First
Tranche Green Bonds”)

HERMCENE 1,000,000 475% —F—tE 74 479%  (MtzEn)
NG SR =HANH 7 years (Note n)
([ZF—LEE s e Es ) March 6, 2017

RMB green bonds of Chongqing
Longhu Development
(“2017 Second Tranche Green Bonds”)
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28. HUT B IABAT X 1) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)
by (4 (b)  (Continued)
| {7ES
fig 7 191 it Effective
%4 T i FHAER BATHY Term of interest
Name of bond Par value Coupon rate Issue date the bond rate
AR T
RMB’000
ol i
Medium-term Notes
LYNSVNGRRES 1,700,000 480% —F—LAF 34 5.01%
([ =R —CAEE— A W8 R ) ) tAZ+—H 3 years
RMB medium-term notes July 21, 2017
of the Company

(“G) form of 2017 First

Medium-term Notes”)

/NGNGB 300,000 5.00% —F—+LF 54 5.10%
([ZE—LEE— MW tAZ+—H 5 years
SR )] July 21, 2017

RMB medium-term notes
of the Company
(“(i1) form of 2017 First

Medium-term Notes”)

Il 230  Longfor Group Holdings Limited o #8341 % [ 12 & 4 [R A &
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by (#)

"L
Name of bond

B ERHA A fF

Rental Apartments Special Bonds

HEREN AR ARWER
HEHRA AES
(I =F— R —ER
HEHIHA RS

RMB rental apartments special
bonds of Chongging
Longhu Development
(“2018 First Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)

HEENCERRARKER
HEFIHA AES
([ =F - N\EHE_MER
HEFHEA RS ])

RMB rental apartments special
bonds of Chongging
Longhu Development
(“2018 Second Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)

B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

B AR
fid 27 TR Effective
W FEAR BETHY Term of interest
Par value Coupon rate  Issue date the bond rate
ARWTIT
RMB’000
3,000,000 5.60% —F— )\ 5 4F 5.64%  (Btito)
=H-+—H 5 years (Note o)
March 21, 2018
2,000,000 4.98% —FE—)\4F 5 4F 5.04%  (Fi5Ep)
AH+EHR 5 years (Note p)

August 17,2018

# # Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
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28. BT B I AbAE K )

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & & 4% i% & R 2 &

(#)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(g)

EEENCEDRAER -F
—NEARFZ+b B = A
o MR EH ERER N\
FELH AL AR E R RS
BRHFAHEREES R %
—NEELAZ+TLH > AAFAL
F2 FH 5 7 7R 42 %6.100.009 1 1 0]
B[] 1,653,209 41t A A8 ) =%
— FAESE A5 o

EREREY SR RAMER %
FHENAZ+ £ H A
oM EHRTRFER -F %
B H = A-E HA e R
EERE N il LH0

HEREM ARG RAMR =T
FAEAH ZH R E A = i
BEHEMEER T _TE+—
A= H % ] R A B
EERIELT -

EREENCERRAER -F
—NE+H -+ R HEEER
Al MBEETEER -F
— U= H = T H R
B BRE B R EHAT -

HREEHCERRAER _F
FHEFZAZ T H A
o iR EE RN
A — A 2 e [
SR A B AT o

HEEENCERRGER %
—JUEEZ AV H R S A
M & & AR = F - E=
J1 R T A o] 65 AT s A B
EERFELT -

HEENACERRAER %
ke Sy U NE R TR IS
M EHTEER —E = —F=
VY F % 1 (R ] 0 B A B
EERTELT -

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(€9)

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
June 27, 2018 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds
on July 27, 2018 at par or hold until maturity. On July 27, 2018, the
Company has redeemed 1,653,299 lots of outstanding 2015 Second Tranche

Bonds at a redemption price equal to 100.00% of the principal amount.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
June 27, 2020 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds on

July 27, 2020 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
October 2, 2020 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on November 2, 2020 at par or hold until maturity.

Chonggqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
December 25, 2018 and, the investors have the option to sell back the

bonds on January 25, 2019 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
December 25, 2020 and, the investors have the option to sell back the

bonds on January 25, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
February 4, 2019 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on March 4, 2019 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
February 4, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on March 4, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.



LR £ &

MF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. BT B ILAbAE K )

(b)

(#)

B 5E -

(h)

(1)

(G

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(%)

EREMCERRAEER _-F
—JLAEN A 10 A A
Fo MAEE TR TN
A B I T (] 8 5 2 o)
Fifi 5 2V BT -

B AR —F
4¢/\H+W5)ﬁﬂ¥‘ﬁﬂ
o MBEEMERR T~ —
B Y T (R 0
FHEERHE -

BHENACERBEAHENR _F
;~¢Lﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$7
I 45 2 AR =T 4

A 2 H e R ] 5 s R A
EVEEMEAT o

BEHE WA R AR %
;*¢+HAH%¥ﬁEﬂ$7
M EE I EER -F =
+— A 7N H e (R ] 5 i 5wl R
HHEETES -

BT 3 AR %
A+ R EEEEAE
e T R %
A7 B 0 5 5
HEBHER -

EERENCERRAER _-F
SE—A N A S A
Fo MAEE TR _F
A ZH IS H T A [ 8 5 2 o)
Fifi 5 2V BT -

BHENACERBEAHENR _Z
ggigﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$7
[UEHSSEAE: £ ke Satt; )
AN H T B ] 5 i 55 sl R A
FEVEEMEAT o

B AR —F
‘*¢ CH = H R A
o M EE AR T
FEZH A R A R
HRH R AT -

BHENACERBEAHER _Z
‘*¢tﬂ+tﬁm¥—ﬁﬂ
Fo M EE TR T = —
A NH AL F T A (] 8 5 2 o)
Fifi B 2V BT -

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(h)

(@)

()

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
June 14, 2019 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds on

July 14, 2019 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
June 14, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds on

July 14, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Developments is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
July 2, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds on
August 2, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Developments is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
October 6, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on November 6, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
January 16, 2020 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

February 16, 2020 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
January 16, 2022 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on February 16, 2022 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Development is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
February 6, 2022 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds
on March 6, 2022 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Developments is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
February 21, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds

on March 21, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

Chongqing Longhu Developments is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on
July 17, 2021 and, the investors have the option to sell back the bonds on
August 17, 2021 at par or hold until maturity.

& s Annual Report 2018
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

28.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

AT B IR K )

ER RS MRS SF AR
SR F-AES MR =
FNEHMEAR > SF-NFE=
HEE - T LFEE - MEROESE
“E-LEHOHBRAEF T N\E
B ZF— VEE M E S
“F - )EE R EERIEL AR
FR-F-NEFE_MEFHEERER
AR 6L B R A B LI [ R

()  AEED R R RS0
T B 5 J i 4% 4% T EL AR AR LY
i3 T2 8 7 R S 3 BLR AR B

ERENSHNERE -

Gy WMZFE-NFE+ZA=Z+—H> &
i 0 HE 2 -1 A B 86 390,672,000
T F — £ F: NR ¥
657,746,000 JC) B2 R &5 A BB AR UL
MR Hd AR 310,350,000
T AP ERS (—F—LE: G
B AR 411,889,000 70) B E
ZE-NEF A=A REE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The 2015 Second Tranche Bonds, 2015 Third Tranche Bonds, 2016
First Tranche Bonds, 2016 Second Tranche Bonds, 2016 Third Tranche
Bonds, 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds, 2017 Second Tranche Green
Bonds, 2018 First Tranche Bonds, 2018 Second Tranche Bonds, 2018
First Tranche Rental Apartments Bonds and 2018 Second Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds contain a liability component and early redemption

options:

(i)  Liability component represents the contractually determined
stream of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest
determined by the market instruments of comparable credit status
taken into account the business risk and financial risk of the

Company.

(i)  As at December 31, 2018, the fair value of put options of
RMB390,672,000 (2017: RMB657,746,000) have been recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position, of which, fair
value gain of RMB310,350,000 (2017: loss of RMB411,889,000)
was recognised for the year ended December 31, 2018.

TERR o
T DA AF BE R A A
Fair value as at

“E2)\E  —F L
2018 2017
ANB#FE ARFFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
U A Non-current liabilities 221,728 657,746
E AR Current liabilities 168,944 =
390,672 657,746

52 FE g B A B A A R i g
PSR R0 i8S 5 BT B

B ORIy AR TR SRS o e B R A
BAREEAR LT -

o SR R SRS R K o R R AT R T 8
55 T i & £ o

The Domestic Corporate Bonds and the Rental Apartments Special Bonds

are non-guaranteed and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The Green Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the China Central

Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd..

The Medium-term Notes are non-guaranteed and listed on the National

Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors.



28.

AT B I K )

RAAFESE - skOEE - FHEER
EFEHEHARAREEZE LB HF
5 BT R B R A A IR AR A
F) R e B SRAT 8 T 45 58 B T W el
GER BT A FEIT

—LAEE AR R G)

— L AFEE — At Ak £ 55 R i)

— VA bk i

— LA AP R )

— AR — P S R i)
SR ES— IR R HIEA A R

SR \EH MG HEEEA R

B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The fair value of the Domestic Corporate Bonds, the Green Bonds, the

Medium-term Notes and the Rental Apartment Special Bonds, with

reference to the quoted market price available on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange, China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd. and the

National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors, are as

follows:

2015 First Tranche Bonds
(1) form of 2015 Second Tranche Bonds
(i1) form of 2015 Second Tranche Bonds
2015 Third Tranche Bonds
(1) form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds
(i1) form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds
(1) form of 2016 Second Tranche Bonds
(i1) form of 2016 Second Tranche Bonds
(1) form of 2016 Third Tranche Bonds
(i1) form of 2016 Third Tranche Bonds
2018 First Tranche Bonds
2018 Second Tranche Bonds
(1) form of 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds
(i1) form of 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds
2018 Second Tranche Green Bonds
(1) form of 2017 First Medium-term Notes
(i1) form of 2017 First Medium-term Notes
2018 First Tranche of Rental
Apartments Special Bonds
2018 Second Tranche of Rental
Apartments Special Bonds

T DA A BE AT
Fair value as at

—F)\E CE L
2018 2017
ANRWFL  AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2,001,660 1,990,000
357,349 1,983,000
2,027,933 1,920,000
2,001,373 1,922,600
2,370,840 1,953,000
1,825,824 1,717,200
2,558,294 2,438,500
1,508,906 1,419,000
688,937 674,800
2,991,213 2,955,000
3,105,087  AEAN/A
2,067,073 I N/A
1,661,600 1,600,000
1,498,842 1,386,229
1,042,724 1,000,000
1,707,548 1,665,830
307,686 290,259
3,197,867  A#@HN/A
2,034,667 /I N/A
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29. B

29. SENIOR NOTES

=F-N\E ST

2018 2017
ANRBEFLE ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
e s B £ e s B ST 2023 USD Senior notes issued in 2013
T 5E 8 (F 3k a) (Note a) — 3,335,167
R IR T R — AR 2018 RMB Senior notes issued in 2014
1B 0E (i 3Eb) (Note b) = 1,977,843
REFE LRI - ET 2022 USD Senior notes issued in 2017
e (Mfak o) (Note ¢) 3,109,900 2,952,473
W= BT —F = FE T 2023 USD Senior notes issued in 2018
T 5E R (B3 d) (Note d) 2,076,578 —
R NEBTI R = TG 2028 USD Senior notes issued in 2018
ST (i ake) (Note e) 3,434,145 —
8,620,623 8,265,483
Vi Analysis
T E) A Non-current liabilities 8,620,623 6,287,640
L B=Kis Current liabilities — 1,977,843
8,620,623 8,265,483

@ W-F-=H—HZ=+JLH
A% ) 4 T 1A R B AT AT
{6500,000,000 % JC(4 A K ¥
3,139,800,000 7C ) [ F5 45 f {8 5&
TREHRI(-E _=FETE
B ZEERZEEENRR
6.75% » B LHEI— AL
WHR = FZ=4F—H U
i T (R e f

—F SRR TR AR R
o BT IR R LTl o B AR ] A
MBS RAL - AR AT
AR B A A L 2 B I B A
IR o R% AR PRI R AC B I &5 4R
77 09 HA A AR AR > e DL AT
ZEREEE AR -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

(@)

On January 29, 2013, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
USD500,000,000 (approximately RMB3,139,800,000) (the “2023
USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.75% per annum
(interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and is fully repayable at
par by January 29, 2023.

The 2023 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company'’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. BTN @)

(a)

(#)

fif AT SO R & 4F— A - JLH B
SREA + AR A T ] AR R
TRZF—-AF—AZTRHERZ
12 IR B AN IRF B SR 4 A 47 7 SO
BB T 0 B A R 46 7
ZEJ ] 00 R ELR A S SR e

AU B SR T
Epy i Il 4
TR )\4E 103.375%
RN 102.250%
QYQYE 101.125%
ZECEREZ 100%

AT — \E— A Z AU H BRI
WEF] > AR A AT IR A AN S A %
CEFEE TR SR 1009% 1
IEH“%'JJH%iEE*[E H 1 R4

H ) =% = =4 B 18 I et
B A LR () > i e 2 36 (1
W) ZF AR T o

TR AT R T A B )
EﬁzgzgzﬁimT% b
WA -—Z =25 ETRZBAS
B 1.00% B (2)(A)H B R B 3
GF—/NE—AZ+ILHAH
TR SRR EEE M b
(i) F9 4 5 1 468 3 8 B A5 0 2% i 100
@%ﬁ%Z%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%*
TR ETERR F— )\ F—H
T U A2 BT A M E T T
SFFIJEL O B0 355 18 25 i Il 340 e
ERAFE) 2 B EE S ) AR
F SRR TEER A B A
ZAGEZ ERMMERE

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time on or after January 29, 2018,
the Company may at its option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on January 29 of each of the years indicated

below.

Year Redemption price
2018 103.375%

2019 102.250%

2020 101.125%

2021 and thereafter 100%

At any time prior to January 29, 2018, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2023 USD Notes plus the 2023 Applicable Premium as of,
and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“2023 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2023 USD
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption
price of such 2023 USD Notes on January 29, 2018, plus (ii) all
required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2023
USD Notes through January 29, 2018 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes on

such redemption date.

& s Annual Report 2018

237 I



I 238

Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
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29. BT @)

(a)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

(#)

WL — A=A JUH FE]
R > ARA R AR 2=
FEEITCTEIEA S 106.75% HITE R
8> B E R (A
ZH ) W REFHE R A FLE ()
PA—ZR B DA b 07 T 2 P A
I B4 BT 5 SRR AR - B e —
FZ SR TRBA SR 35%
A 257 IR B I R A T P A o
FEHAE 60 H A HEAT 1 AT 7 4 B B
W15 - 2D 65% i R B AT H 8¢
T R - ZF RN R AR
St

HHRR > RVIP R Ko
AR LI ] R P (A AN EE K o

i 8 A e R RS S R S >
A A AR R A S 101% 1)
FEEE D MEL B (A=)
20 B A 0 R LR AR L
TR A ARERE - F =R
TLEYE

WEZE-NFEZANH > AQFELE
He A5 A 8 81033759 1 1
48 5 — & — /\4F — H/\H (H
AT H ) B REFHE R AT RS £
RBME R T AR - =

FErEEE R > R R
S e AR 110,791,000 T ©

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to January 29, 2017,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2023 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.75% of the principal amount
of the 2023 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 USD Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2023
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

On February 8, 2018, the Company has early redeemed in full all
outstanding 2023 USD Senior Notes at a redemption price equal
to 103.375% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and
unpaid interest to (but not including) February 8, 2018, resulting
a loss of RMB110,791,000.
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29. ﬁfb%ﬁ(@

(b)

AZE—ERH AR s AR
) TR (L [ A AR B AT M T (E N R
1 2,000,000,000 7T Y ﬁf)%{%@f‘a
EEERIZZ— NFEARKES
B ZEEBRZEEENRE
6.75% » B LEI—KAE
MiER =& — R A — /N H AT

HHETHEE
e SV INCL S Iy T
FEGARAR LT > BAAT

AT BB RAL > AL A T
FR AR B kA 2 B B
FAIEGR o RZAFIE (R T IR A I S 45 48
GROT B HL A HE AR A > HE LA BTG
M EEREMR -

W FE - NEHHA Z A \HHE
o WG [H] > 7 /A ) AT AR IR 738 45 44 A
S E— NS A S5
100% F S 171 {5 5 Jin 4 22 1) H 3

(REFEEH) B =% — /4 Bl
B RHEFHEARAFLE (F) > JEE

A (EAE ) —F— AR
Wt -

[ =% — \EH B A B
Az —F— EANRMEEE,
BOAER T /FEAREEE
A B HI1.00% K (2) —F— )\ F
ANRBEBAGHERNAEE %

—/NE AR ERE IR 2 A M
7 TR B T 0B AT B (4R B

2.50% 5t 5) (A EAFEEEHEE A 5
JEFHERASFLE )t =% — )\ 4
A RBEER A B A M2 A%
M AR -

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b)

On May 28, 2014, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
RMB2,000,000,000 (the “2018 RMB Notes”) which carry fixed
interest of 6.75% per annum (interest payable semi-annually in

arrears) and is fully repayable at par by May 28, 2018.

The 2018 RMB Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.

At any time prior to May 28, 2018, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2018 RMB Notes, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of 2018
RMB Notes plus 2018 Applicable Premium as of, and accrued and

unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date.

“2018 Applicable Premium” means with respect to 2018 RMB
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes and (2) the excess of
the principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes, plus all required
remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2018 RMB
Notes through the maturity date of such 2018 RMB Notes (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date),
computed using a discount rate of 2.50% per annum, over the
principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes on such redemption

date.
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29. BT @)

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

(#)

W ZF—HER A=/ H AT
RE T > A A ] R — B — 4R
NREE AR S 8106.75% HITE R
(RN k= - {TE R IR EP N
#ZH) AR AR ()
PA— 28 DA B 25 TR AR g
B4 T A3 BOE R B RS
TE-NEARBIEEAS G
35% > MER & 7 BV ] B A B A
7R B GEAR 60 H A HEAT 1 AT A
HBBEE % ED65% i R
H BT — % — \4E A R g
A RBAER o

HHRR > RVIP R Ko
AR LI ] R P (A AN EE K o

i 8 A e R RS S R S >
A R AR ERAEH101% 1)
FEEE D MEL B (A=)
20 B A 0 R LR AR L
TAREE A AR =T EA
R -

WoE—/FRLAZHAH > AR
) 2 A A5 I H AR 688 100.009% 1Y
EEME S = — /A FERH A
H (EAEIEZE) 8 REFHE R AT FI
KT HA 1 7 R e Py A R AR
F— \AE R -

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to May 28, 2017, the
Company may at its option redeem up to 35% of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2018 RMB Notes with the net cash
proceeds of one or more sales of Common Stock of the Company
in an equity offering at a redemption price of 106.75% of the
principal amount of the 2018 RMB Notes, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date;
provided that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of
the 2018 RMB Notes originally issued on the original issue date
remains outstanding after each such redemption and any such
redemption takes place within 60 days after the closing of the

related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2018
RMB Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

On May 28, 2018, the Company has redeemed in full all
outstanding 2018 RMB Senior Notes at a redemption price equal
to 100.00% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and

unpaid interest to (but not including) May 28, 2018 upon mature.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

()

On July 13, 2017, the Company issued senior fixed rate notes
to the public at 99.425% of the aggregate principal amount of
USD450,000,000 (approximately RMB3,048,000,000) (the
“2022 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 3.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by July 13, 2022.

The 2022 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are senior obligations of the

Company.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem the 2022
USD Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to
the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the 2022 USD
Notes to be redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest on the
2022 USD Notes to be redeemed, if any, to the date of redemption
and (2) the Make Whole Price.

At any time on or after the date when the 2022 USD Notes of no
more than 10% of the aggregate principal amount (1) originally
issued on July 13, 2017 and (2) issued on July 13, 2017 of any
Additional Notes permitted under “Further Issues” remain
outstanding, the Company may at its option redeem the remaining
outstanding 2022 USD Notes, in whole but not in part, at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such
2022 USD Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but

not including) the redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means with respect to 2022 USD Notes
at any redemption date, the sum of (1) the present value of the
principal amount of such 2022 USD Notes, assuming a scheduled
repayment thereof on the maturity date, plus (2) the present value
of the remaining scheduled payments of interest to and including
the maturity date, in each case discounted to the redemption date

at the Treasury Rate plus 50 basis points.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

()

(d)

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2022
USD Notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding)

the repurchase date.

The net carrying amount of the 2022 USD Notes is stated net of
unamortised issue expenses totalling USD4,879,000 (approximately
RMB32,685,000) (2017: USD6,250,000 (approximately
RMB40,839,000)) as at December 31, 2018 and the effective
interest rate of the 2022 USD Notes is 4.21% per annum.

On January 16, 2018, the Company issued senior fixed rate notes
to the public at 99.699% of the aggregate principal amount of
USD300,000,000 (approximately RMB1,932,830,000) (the” 2023
USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 3.90% per annum
(interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully
repayable by April 16, 2023.

The 2023 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are senior obligations of the

Company.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem each series
of the 2023 USD Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of
such series of the 2023 USD Notes to be redeemed plus accrued
and unpaid interest on such series of the 2023 USD Notes to be
redeemed, if any, to the date of redemption and (2) the Make
Whole Price.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

At any time on or after the date when Notes of no more than 10%
of the aggregate principal amount (1) originally issued on January
16, 2018 and (2) issued on January 18, 2018 of any Additional
Notes permitted under “Further Issues” remain outstanding, the
Company may as its opinion redeem the remaining outstanding
2023 USD Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of 2023 USD Notes plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means, with respect to the 2023 USD Notes
at any redemption date, the sum of (1) the present value of the
principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes, assuming a scheduled
repayment thereof on the maturity date, plus (2) the present value
of the remaining scheduled payments of interest to and including
the maturity date, in each case discounted to the redemption date

at the Treasury Rate plus 50 basis points.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2023
USD Notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding)

the repurchase date.

The net carrying amount of the 2023 USD Notes is stated net of
unamortised issue expenses totalling USD2,870,000 (approximately
RMB19,698,000) (2017: nil) as at December 31, 2018 and the
effective interest rate of the 2023 USD Notes is 4.14% per annum.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(e)

On January 16, 2018, the Company issued senior fixed rate notes
to the public at 99.793% of the aggregate principal amount of
USD500,000,000 (approximately RMB3,221,385,000) (the
“2028 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 4.50% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable by January 16, 2028.

The 2028 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are senior obligations of the

Company.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem each series
of the 2028 USD Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption
price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of
such series of the 2028 USD Notes to be redeemed plus accrued
and unpaid interest on such series of the 2028 USD Notes to be
redeemed, if any, to the date of redemption and (2) the Make
Whole Price.

At any time on or after the date when Notes of no more than 10%
of the aggregate principal amount (1) originally issued on January
16, 2018 and (2) issued on January 18, 2018 of any Additional
Notes permitted under “ Further Issues” remain outstanding, the
Company may as its opinion redeem the remaining outstanding
2023 USD Notes, in whole but not in part, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of 2023 USD Notes plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means, with respect to a Note at any
redemption date, the sum of (1) the present value of the principal
amount of such Note, assuming a scheduled repayment thereof
on the maturity date, plus (2) the present value of the remaining
scheduled payments of interest to and including the maturity date,
in each case discounted to the redemption date at the Treasury

Rate plus 50 basis points.
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29. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(e)

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2028
USD Notes at a price in cash equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding)

the repurchase date.

The net carrying amount of the 2028 USD Notes is stated net of
unamortised issue expenses totalling USD4,614,000 (approximately
RMB31,661,000) (2017: nil) as at December 31, 2018 and the
effective interest rate of the 2028 USD Notes is 4.62% per annum.

VLA B A TE
L%
Fair Value as at

Senior Notes

—F-N\E —ZLF
2018 2017
ANRFFL  ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000

2023 USD senior notes issued in 2013
PREHNA 3,389,616

2018 RMB senior notes issued in 2014
AERANA 2,012,000

2022 USD senior notes issued in 2017
2,949,090 2,941,566

2023 USD senior notes issued in 2018
1,956,012 A IN/A

2028 USD senior notes issued in 2018
2,984,874 AEHN/A
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

—FN\E  —ZtF

2018 2017
ABETE  ARKTT
RMB'000  RMB’000

Derivative financial assets
(under hedge accounting)
Cash flow hedges
— Cross currency interest rate Swaps 313,611 229,965

RRARE G5 B AR A S B A

Derivative financial liabilities

(under hedge accounting)

B Uit Cash flow hedges
— 38 S WA 2 4 — Cross currency interest rate swaps 62,568 —
— A 0 A 4 — Foreign currency forward contracts 114,197 —
176,765 -

A 3K W ) R 500 B A TR I
)

ARG B > ARG A 46 € £ v RCE
TR WA R DOE s —
58 LI B 7 B s T R AT 8 3k B BT
18 58 SRR O JRE A1) 5 AT 5 BB v T ) 3 T
A Ay N TRR o SRS A i 4
T LA R A A 4 B K 7 1 5% 5 £ K
T 88 56 SR A A 5 3R A1 W I B
Uit 1 B R o

R IR > AL IR 5 AW
TR M A 4 DL A A R
HIH DA BB 5 46 6 o Bk 2D 0 e R AT
e A1 LB o

5 S A 25 4 0 e O e v ) 9
FOAE CLHE T DURC & 45 R AR E B ph H B 1Y
TRk > 1 R A % A S LR A R 4
I B A e ) 4 T R S e TR 0 %
LERHMER AT

Longfor Group Holdings Limited e #g i & & 1= iz B R A &)

Cross currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency

forward contracts

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had cross currency interest
rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order
to minimise its exposures to foreign currency and cash flow interest rate
risk on its floating-rate HKD bank borrowings and fixed rate USD senior
notes and corresponding interest payment by swapping a portion of those
borrowings and senior notes and corresponding interest payment from
HKD and USD to RMB and floating-rate interest payments to fixed rate

interest payments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had foreign currency
forward contracts designated as effective hedging instruments in order
to minimise its exposures to foreign currency risk on its HKD bank
borrowings by selling RMB in exchange for HKD at the borrowings

maturity date.

The terms of the cross currency interest rate contracts and foreign
currency forward contracts have been negotiated to match the terms of
the respective designated hedged items and the directors consider that the
cross currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contracts
are effective hedging instruments. The major terms of these contracts are

as follows:



30.

fi B L H )
28 SR MER R A -
F

Notional amount

A 310,000,000 8 70 ( ~F— L4

B A 310,000,000 % 7T)
Buy HKD310,000,000
(2017: Buy HKD310,000,000)

B A 310,000,000 %70 (= F— L4 :

B A 310,000,000 # 1T )
Buy HKD310,000,000
(2017: Buy HKD310,000,000)

B A 387,500,000 TG (—F—L 4

B A 387,500,000 # 1T )
Buy HKD387,500,000
(2017: Buy HKD387,500 000)

HA 500,000,000 76 ( —F— L4

B A 500,000,000 #75)
Buy HKD500,000,000

(2017: Buy HKD500,000,000)
H 70,000,000 76 (ZF—L4F
Buy USD70,000,000 (2017 nil)
B A 175,000,000 F 7 (=%
Buy USD175,000,000 (2017: nil)

430,000,000 £ 0 (ZF—L4F

Buy USD30,000,000 (2017 nil)

B A 20,000,000 70 (= F—H 4

Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)

B A 50,000,000 70 ( —F—L4F

Buy USD50,000,000 (2017 nil)

430,000,000 £ 0 (ZF—L4F

Buy USD30,000,000 (2017 nil)

B A 55,000,000 70 (= F—H4F

Buy USD55,000,000 (2017: nil)

B A 50,000,000 70 ( —F—L4F

Buy USD50,000,000 (2017 nil)

%)

—tF: %)
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30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

K
Maturity

“ETRENA AR

28/04/2020

e S 22112 By N

28/04/2020

“ECRENAZTAR

28/04/2020
ZEZREMAZFAH
28/04/2020
“ERZEE-AZTAA
29/01/2023
ZERZZENA+AH
16/04/2023
“EZA\F-A+AH
16/01/2028
ZZZNE-A+AA
16/01/2028
“E - NE-H+AH
16/01/2028
“EZNF-A+AH
16/01/2028
ZEZZENA A
16/04/2023
ZEZZEEATEH
13/07/2022

Ex

Exchange rates

AR®E 17T 1.1997 T

RMB 1: HKD1.1997

AR LT 11998 T

RMB 1: HKDI1.1998

ARBE1 L5 1.2081 0

RMB 1: HKD1.2081

AR 1785 1.2065 7T

RMB 1: HKD1.2065

NRHE1IE50.1595 F 0
RMB 1: USD 0.1595
ARKE1TCH.0.1582F 7T
RMB 1: USD0.1582
ARH 176501583 F 8
RMB 1; USD0.1583
ARHE1IE50.1593 F 0
RMB 1: USD0.1593
ARHE 1001596 F T
RMB 1: USD0.1596
AR 1IE50.1516 F 8
RMB 1: USD0.1516
AREE 1015120
RMB 1: USD0.1512
ARK1TCH 01511 F 7T
RMB 1: USD0.1511

Cross currency interest rate swaps:

MRS

Interest rate swap

WAERTRERE « 319 ZEEH%E A%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.47%

MEBRTIERE + 3.9 £RERR47%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.47%

HABSITR SR E + 3.1% ZEER%6.33%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.33%

WAERITRERE « 319 ZEEH%E 5%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.25%

IR ERI%3.9% ERERE417%

From fixed rate of 3.9% to fixed rate of 4.17%
B ERI% 3.9% B ER3.65%

From fixed rate of 3.9% to fixed rate of 3.65%
AR 45% RS 5%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.5%
hE R 4.5% ZEEMN%ES.5%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.5%
AR 45% EEERES.5%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.5%
AR 452 RS 5%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.5%
th 52 1% 3.9 2l 7€ F1224.9%

From fixed rate of 3.9% to fixed rate of 4.9%
M 2 12 3.875% 2 172 M % 4.875%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.875%
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30. fiEE@TH®)
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PEYY

Notional amount

FA 30,000,000 %70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD30,000,000 (2017: nil)
FA 50,000,000 70 (ZF—t4F &)
Buy USDS50,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 50,000,000 70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD50,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 20,000,000 %70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
FA 20,000,000 70 (ZF—t4F : &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 20,000,000 70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 50,000,000 %70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD50,000,000 (2017: nil)
FA50,000,000E 70 (ZF—t4F : &)
Buy USDS50,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 50,000,000 70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD50,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 50,000,000 %70 (ZF—L4F &)
Buy USD50,000,000 (2017: nil)
FA 20,000,000 70 (ZF L4 &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
HA 20,000,000 70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
H A 20,000,000 %70 (ZF—L4F : &)
Buy USD20,000,000 (2017: nil)
FA 30,000,000 70 (ZF—t4F : &)
Buy USD30,000,000 (2017: nil)

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2

Maturity

ZZZNE—R+AH
16/01/2028
ZEZZEEATER
13/07/2022
“EZZHEAT=R
13/07/2022
ZZZNE—R+AH
16/01/2028
“EZNE-H+AH
16/01/2028
ZZZ ) E=A+AH
16/01/2028
CERCCEEATER
13/07/2022
ZEZZEEATER
13/07/2022
“EZZHEAT=R
13/07/2022
CERCCEEATER
13/07/2022
“EZNE-H+AH
16/01/2028
ZZZ ) E=A+AH
16/01/2028
ZZZNE—R+AH
16/01/2028
“E - NE=H+AH
16/01/2028

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

%

Exchange rates

ARBE1IEH0.1511 F
RMB 1: USD0.1511
NRM 6501502 E 7
RMB 1: USD0.1502
ARHE17656.0.1507 F 0
RMB 1: USD0.1507
ARHE1IEH0.1471 F 0
RMB 1: USD0.1471
AR TE5.0.1478 %78
RMB 1: USD0.1478
NRHE1765.0.147 £ 70
RMB 1: USD0.147
ARHE1IE5.0.1594 F 0
RMB 1: USD0.1594
ARE e 01511 E 78
RMB 1: USD0.1511
AR¥E17658.0.1511 F
RMB 1: USD0.1511
ARH1IEH0.1512F 7
RMB 1: USD0.1512
AR TE50.1474 %7
RMB 1: USD0.1474
ARHE17658.0.147 £ 70
RMB 1: USD0.147
ARH1IE5.0.1467 F 0
RMB 1: USD0.1467
ARMTEH0.144 F 7T
RMB 1: USD0.144

Cross currency interest rate swaps: (Continued)

GRSy

Interest rate swap

hEE R 459% ZEEMNES.5%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.5%

Hh B TE 715 3.8759% 2 [ 72 1% 4.8%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.8%
th 2 M2 3.875% Z R E M E 4.8%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.8%
HIEERI 5% EHER% S 44%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.44%

o E M 459 B IR ERIHE 5 44%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.44%
€ % 459 2R R 5.37%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.37%

H [ € 12 3.875% 2 B E MK 4.875%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.875%
i [ 22 0% 3.875% £ A1 4.875%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.875%
M € 12 3.875% 2 7€ M % 4.875%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.875%
th 2 1 3.875% 2 [ 2 1% 4.85%

From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.85%
o 2 M 459 B IR ERIHE 5 48%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.48%
hE R 45 % ZRER%S.48%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.48%
HIEERIE 5% EHER%ES.38%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.38%

th 2 M 459 BRI S.55%

From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.55%



B B 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BEB = H LA

For the year ended December 31, 2018

30. fiEEmTH @
X EWERR : 49)

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps: (Continued)

HESH EIRC e % FlRHH)
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates Interest rate swap
HA30000,000%7(“F L %) “FZNE-AHAHE ARHELTCH0.145 %78 o [ 3 4,59 2 2 % 5.55%
Buy USD30,000,000 (2017: nil) 16/01/2028 RMB 1: USD0.145 From fixed rate of 4.5% to fixed rate of 5.55%
HA30000,00 (2%t %) ZFZZ4E-+=H ARHE1TEH0.1506 % T i [ 22 0% 3,875 % £ E A% 4.805%
Buy USD30,000,000 (2017 nil) 13/01/2022 RMB 1: USD0.1506 From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.805%
HA30000,00F(ZF L %) “F-Z4E-A+=H ABHE 1T 50.1505 % 7 fh [ E 12 3.875% 2 1 % 4.805%
Buy USD30,000,000 (2017: nil) 13/01/2022 RMB 1: USD0.1505 From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.805%
HA40,000,000%7( "%t %) “F-E-A+=H ARHE1TE50.1461 %7 o L2 % 3.875% ERIE A% 4.55%
Buy USD40,000,000 (2017: nil) 13/07/2022 RMB 1: USD0.1461 From fixed rate of 3.875% to fixed rate of 4.55%

A 5 A 4 Foreign currency forward contracts:
HA "l #2MA
Buy Sell Maturity

500,000,000 ¥ TG
HKD500,000,000
500,000,000 # JG
HKD500,000,000
500,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD500,000,000
300,000,000 # TG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ TG
HKD300,000,000
200,000,000 # JG
HKD200,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000

e et el B o T
25/01/2023

N B # 458,150,000 TG
RMB 458,150,000

ANE# 456,500,000 —F - Z4E—H +HH
RMB 456,500,000  25/01/2023

ANE 457,899,987 6 —F_=F—H 1 THH
RMB 457,899,987  25/01/2023

NER# 27777000000 —FE-=4—H_+TH
RMB 277,770,000  25/01/2023

ANE#275730,0000C —F-=Z4E—H - +HH
RMB 275,730,000  25/01/2023

ANE#E 277,500,000 —FE_=4F—H_+IH
RMB 277,500,000  25/01/2023

ANE#279,090,000c —F Z4FE—H +HA
RMB 279,090,000  25/01/2023

AR 185,400,000 8 —E_=4F—-H_+HH
RMB 185,400,000  25/01/2023

ANE#¥E277 740,000 —FE_=4F—H_+TH
RMB 277,740,000  25/01/2023

# # Annual Report 2018
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30. fiEEmITH @

RXEWAREH - )

HA
Buy

150,000,000 # 70
HKD150,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ TG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ TG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
200,000,000 ¥ 7T
HKD200,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
150,000,000 # 70
HKD150,000,000
500,000,000 # TG
HKD500,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000
300,000,000 ¥ JG
HKD300,000,000

3t BT A A X R g g I A s
MAeHhREERBEERERWHESA
Ko RZFE—-NANEF+Z_A=Z+—A1>
3t AR A R S g A 4 S A s
B A0 AT (B i A A I AR
136,846,000 76 ( & — L 4F © F L sE A
[ % 229,965,000 70 ) B 1A 45 1A 1 4E AL
S B o B T OHA A T i 2 A R B
648,760,000 TG ( —F—-L4F © 51 AR
104,250,000 7G ) 17 [F] 4 A9 PR 34 I 6 6 50
REZEIEGE -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps: (Continued)

Hil #MA
Sell Maturity

ANE#137 4750000 —F_=4F—H_+IH
RMB 137,475,000  25/01/2023
NE 280,140,000 0 —F - =4F—H "+ HH
RMB 280,140,000  25/01/2023
ANE#278,940,0007C —F - Z4E—H - +HH
RMB 278,940,000  25/01/2023
ANE#E 278,040,000 —FE_=F—H_+TH
RMB 278,040,000  25/01/2023
NER#276,750,0000c —FE-=4—H_+TH
RMB 276,750,000  25/01/2023
ANE#280,350,0007C —F - =4E—H - +HH
RMB 280,350,000  25/01/2023
ANE#280,350,000c —FE _=4fF—H_+IH
RMB 280,350,000  25/01/2023
NE#186,940,0000 —FE_-=4—H_+TH
RMB 186,940,000  25/01/2023
ANE#278,100,000C —F - =Z4E—H +HH
RMB 278,100,000  25/01/2023
ANRW137,77500000 —F - Z4E—H - +AH
RMB 137,775,000  25/01/2023
N ¥ 458,800,000 —E_=4—H_+TH
RMB 458,800,000  25/01/2023
ANE#275,130,000C —F - =Z4E—H - +HH
RMB 275,130,000  25/01/2023
ANE#276300,000c —FE _=4F—H_+IH
RMB 276,300,000  25/01/2023

All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps and foreign currency
forward contracts are designated and effective as cash flow hedges. The
net fair value gain of the above cross currency interest rate swap contracts
and foreign currency forward contracts totalling RMB136,846,000 (2017:
net gain of RMB229,965,000) have been deferred in equity at December
31, 2018. The fair value gain of the hedging instruments amounting to
RMB648,760,000 (2017: loss of RMB104,250,000) were reclassified

from hedging reserve to profit or loss in the same year.
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31. B Bfat

(a)

A

31.

BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Share capital

I £
0.10¥7LZ
@R HE
Number of
ordinary shares T &
of par value Nominal
HK$0.10 each value
T
HKS$’000
Ve Authorised
RoFE—tFE—H—H " At January 1, 2017, December 31, 2017
“F—tEFZA=F—H and December 31, 2018
—F—)\Ft+ZH=1—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
CEITRAE Issued and fully paid
RZF—LF—~H—H At January 1, 2017 5,841,231,105 584,123
TR RS AT 0 (BfFRE ) Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (Note (i)) 66,373,500 6,637
AF—LFETZH=1T—H At December 31,2017 5,907,604,605 590,760
TR AT 0 (ME3E ) Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (Note (i) 30,867,000 3,087
AZE—)ETZH=1—H  AcDecember 31,2018 5,938,471,605 593,847
LA B IRE R Shown in the consolidated financial statements
REZF—NFFZH=F—H  AcDecember 31,2018 RMB’ 000 equivalent 516,783
REF—LHEFZHA=1T—H At December 31,2017 RMB’ 000 equivalent 514,209
Bt 5 - Note:
(i) HE-F-NE+_H=+—H (i) During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued

1A BE - 728 W) R AT {6 A HE 58
730,867,000 (= & — £ 4 :
66,373,500 % ) % % T B 0.1 % 70
9 FBE B3 o 4 1R AT 8 S IR 18 47
it 5 £ T 8.28 % 76 £ 12.528 5 TG
*E""b/\/\ﬁ%70975§/\&%
10.7270) (ZF — L4 1 8281 0
in.szs«%m ?FE?JT:M\R%IM
TEAR¥10.8470)) - EEITH
et 4 B A R =R
EE &

30,867,000 shares (2017: 66,373,500 shares) of HK$0.1 each upon exercise
of share options. The exercise prices of the share options exercised during
the year range from HK$8.28 to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB7.09 to
RMB10.72) (2017: HK$8.28 to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB7.16 to
RMB10.84). The new shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing

shares in all respects.

& s Annual Report 2018

251 I



I 252

Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

31. BEAR KA )

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

fi i

Tl 208 ~ PR iR

(®

B 1

“E-NERZF-LEF
T H =4 BB 6 1
A A R A G E -

I A5V 1B R 52 B 2 B U 2 )
BEUE > Wl AR A AR R
(I ) AR 4% = R K A4 2% 4 Bl
ML MERL T & ¢ (2) Y
SrBLERE TR 5 () SR
HEEEAT TR A IR RAE A LR
AR A A IR BEAT I AR
(¥ B 2 BE B A AL 4 37
A 0 85 ) O ] 47
(d) L85 2 7 B AEE S (e
RGBT A ) IR My AR 2
110 2 R SR O A 1 4 4
BT 5 K of) VR A
B B AR 2 R AT AR R A7 B
F IR T A I A

W R TS 2 B A AT 2 YR B
ZATBCR BHIAE > AR F ]
(CEREIGE R LR
B BT B
1] 48 4 SR Hh A A 3 TR 3
SHEATBCS, «

31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves

Name, nature and purpose of reserves

@)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2018 and 2017 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
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31. BAR Rt )
(b) it )
AR B RR® )

(i)

(ii1)

EASH

REHANRIRA B R
“EENEAAT—H B
LT 3,999,999,000 & & [k
T {E 0.1 ¥4 e 18 % 0 58 B4R
B A o AN PTG
11 TH (L L 57 728 % R A U (4
JB) B RAFN([ R
A A ] I EE R A D) B
JReA AR T Y 2 A A
it -

R-FFNETLAZR A
7 ) i) HL A R IR S
100,000,000 5 7C (FH & 7 A
[ 88,120,000 7T ) i H &
AR -

i 5

WE_ZTELF T+ A
=+ —HILFE > 5iEE
BE R —FKFE2EHEA
AEEE A ERREE
770,000,000 %5 7G > A/ A
T E I S S IR R O S e
et T B ZE A I B B R RE
9 4 S R 1 R HE IR
A [ o R A 2R R
1) B HE F 609 3 £ 91.3% >
[IERE S AOEiE: PN
620,672,000 7 Il 8 7 i B 4
HIVHE £ 1) R A B VR (B o
EESHE > SRRl
it 8 TR 8 5 M 2 M A0
¥ o

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Capital reserve

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. The
difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
Limited (“Juntion Development”), then holding company of

the Group, is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
then shareholders of the Company and charged to capital

reserve.

Special reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Juntion
Development injected additional capital of
HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development in which the non-
controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
of the Company at that date. The Group's equity interest
in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from
60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share
of net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired
over the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as

the contribution from equity owners.
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BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

31. BEAR KA )

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

e ()
AR B RR® )
(v)  HAbfEds

Al ol A 45 A 52 B A A
W JEG 2 ] A A (O 2
UK & PRI HE) 1Y E 1

fsE T -
W AR

R A A B T 125 T B
AT AR AR > %%
W 2 0 2 1) v 5 BB Rt
TR LR B AR Wk R 1098
B R R R R R AR
509 4 1k o T % 5% Bk 4 7
A 16 B 45 AT 0 TR RS 2
HIAE o 5 2 AR AR A T
A SR R A R AR - TR
BUA ) 588 SE T s £y Bt

J& AR RANEA o
(vi) B A

S il 4 ML B 0
FTSL 2 B TR 2 NP 8
Bk 2 48 2 Rt R
g BEE MWK Y E
i o FULA B o ok A I e R
REFTZEH MW TR ZNFE
SHEL RFHAG A §E

MABERGER -
(vii)  FRAEM SR i B

7% 4 BT kB 0 D w1
(Bt 5 43(a) 45 28 ) 7E T 3 Lk

Bl A3 18 ) 9 £5F 35K

31.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the change in net assets attributable
to the Group in relation to changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without obtaining or losing of control.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into

additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective
portion of gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of
hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The
cumulative gain and loss arising on changes in fair value of
the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated
under the heading of hedging reserve will be reclassified to
profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the

profit or loss.
Shares held for share award

The amount represent the payments made to acquire shares
from the market for the share award scheme as disclosed in

note 43(a).
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32, ERLBHE 32. DEFERRED TAXATION
AR A A E R TR E R B IE (A The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
&) &l B d) recognised and movements thereon during the year:
(i
AR
KEREE  WENR
MRS R LaMER  REER HRZBER  Wichholding
Ik AT B Allowance Unrealised tax on
Accelerated — Rairvaue  BHBH Land for  BEEE  pofion tetained
tx  of investment Tax  appreciation  doubtful  Government inra-group  profits to be K 3t
depreciation  properties losses  tax provisions debts  subsidies  purchases  distributed Others Total
NRRTE  ARETT AREFT AREFT  AREFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT  AREFT
RMBO00  RMBOMO  RMBUOO  RMBUW  RMBOM  RMBU)  RMBUW  RMBOW  RMBUOM  RMB'000
(Wika) (kb
(Notea) (Noteb)
REF-tE-A-H At January 1,2017 (88200 (1009%)  TRML LETLSSS 3750 10634 68,179 (9,44 46716 (875,499)
RS (IR )FHA (Charge) cedic o profic o loss (68,536 (130822 766043 207,06 - 0 BN @549 0959 3469
BRIGHEADIRARE Acquisition ofasets and liablities through
RARER) acquisiion ofsubsidiries (Note 33) - - 62982 - - - - - - 62982
e St ey el BN AtDecember 31,2017 36757 63L) LSLULG L8780l 3750 10,609 42970 (89,79 96310 6,154981)
TR (R 7t A (Charge ctedic to proic r Lss (L3260  (LI46) 159 106802 - Q38 A6 (19 o s
FRIGHE AR Acquisition o assets and iabilites through
REHKER3) acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) - - 85,109 - - - - - - 85,709
RN A=A At December 31, 018 (68083) (502400 1822619 290539 3750 807108 57 BT G55

(a)

(b)

R R I BB 18 B T
4 o LB E A T IR 2R RO BB I 2 - RS
BT BOR HE L A O > (AT A 2
3 IR ST IBOIRFHE E J E 4 SE
ST -

A R A1 o B S 7 A T B 2 AL
s 2 s U E N G R E
159% H49 BE 55 B S o TS AT 0 Bk 99 3 2 (A
) BT S 4 ] e

Notes:

(a) This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment
of the government subsidies between the accounting standard and the tax bureau.
Tax bureau treats the government subsidies as an income but for financial reporting
purpose, the government subsidies have been accounted for as deduction from costs

of properties under development for sales.

(b) This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction of
advertising expense. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than
15% of its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried

forward to future years.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

32, BB @)

BB MBORIEE - & TREH
VAR (R0 CHES o DAT 7 st A 25 4l
i T AF A A A T A R AT

32.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial
reporting purposes:

“F—)\E DF L

2018 2017

ANR¥FE AR¥TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R VE & Deferred taxation assets 4,192,962 3,462,687
R AL A B Deferred taxation liabilities (7,746,961)  (6,617,668)
(3,553,999)  (3,154,981)

AE— NFEFHA=Z+—H AEE
HH N R %8336,406,000 6 (—F — &
0 NR¥6,910,760,000 70 ) FIfh HAR B
00 T e 48 AT S R B SR AR A o BB
ANEH7,290,476,000 70 (—F—+L4 : A
R 6,204,464,000 T ) 1Y s 45 HlE RR AR E B
TEYERE o BB AN AT 9 0 A 2R v L A U
RO AR N AR 1,045,930,000 76 (=
T—L4: NR%706,296,000 70 ) 7R
IR SE BT 2 o oA IERR B TE s B4 A LA
TEERI

At December 31, 2018, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of
RMBS,336,406,000 (2017: RMB6,910,760,000) available to offset
against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised
in respect of RMB7,290,476,000 (2017: RMB6,204,464,000) of such
losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining RMB1,045,930,000 (2017: RMB706,296,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will
expire in the following years:

“FN\E —F b

2018 2017

ARETFE AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR )\ 2018 — 1,861
XU 2019 224,698 224,698
TRTRAE 2020 97,861 97,861
TR 2021 161,640 161,640
TR 2022 220,236 220,236
TR 2023 341,495 —
1,045,930 706,296

R 7R b 0 5 A 7 I [ i 3 O
0O OB R )7 L A T O B ) B R
Bl 75120081112 55 > 5% & B TE 0 Bi B R
B B P B A N R AR D
25% A s fE A H] o

PR o 0 A 2 T A5 B 05 > v R
Al H ZF T NE— H— H U i A
BRI BB B TE IR - MR RS A
5 i 2 P Bt P B A R 2 i A RE
150 B 2 48 N R %9 1,285,972,000 7T
(CFE—tHE+_H=1+—H: AR%
1,402,226,000 7 ) FHR R ERIIH » JF 2
s 4 [ e P T I 2 % 438 [ R[] L
I 25 BR A T R A T RE S B ] o

Longfor Group Holdings Limited e #g i & & 1= iz B R A &)

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on
Income” and Guoshuifa {2008} No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident
company directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the Mainland
company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January,
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB1,285,972,000 (31 December, 2017: RMB1,402,226,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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33. BRBOWME A WO ERE 33, ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

R THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
NEE—Z— N\E+_H=+—HILF During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group acquired the
JE > AL BBUE T R A S interests in the following entities:

YomiAREE  lGASE
R,/ HEMRNE SRR

B Equity interest ~ Equity interest
Place of held by the ~ held by the MR
Y24 v 4 incorporation/  Group before Group after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
ANRW T
RMB 000
KEFEEEREARAR Tianjin Jiabo Real Estate Development & i 34% 74,800 (HEa)
Co., Led. PRC NIL (Note a)
ElEEEARAR Yunnan Qianhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. il i 100% 145,157
PRC NIL
AEHHEEREERRAR Chengdu Yuzhaniangyue Enterprise i i 100% 100,000
Co., Ltd. PRC NIL
WHENREEEARAT Jinan Wanke Zhongxiang Real Estate il 20% (Htzkb) 20% (Hfzkb) i
((ErmERRE]) Co., Ltd. ("Jinan Wanke Zhongxiang") ~ PRC (Note b) (Note b) NIL
BRI BB E A A Guizhou Longshunda Investment Co., Ltd. el i 90% 631,875
PRC NIL
MY A EEREARAR Guizhou Yufenghe Investment Co., Led. I i3 90% 3,303,466
PRC NIL
R i A P B A TR Dalian Hengrui Real Estate Development & i3 51% 1,248,690
Co., Led. PRC NIL
WA EEHRAT Jinan Bimin Real Estate Co., Ltd. th B 25% (ko) 192,888
PRC NIL (Note ¢)
RS E AR Nantong Jinhui Real Estate Co., Ltd. i i 40% 480,000
PRC NIL
BT e RERARA R Weihai Jinhou Real Estate Co., Ltd. Gl i 60% 23,000
PRC NIL
REHRE S BEARAT Dalian Huayu Properties Development Led. i 100% 815,857
PRC NIL
bR SR Chengdu Chengshi Chuntian i i 100% 18,503
ERARAT Hotel Management Led. PRC NIL
hE R EEARAR Shenyang Jitian Real Estate Co., Ltd. il i 50% 1,378,059
PRC NIL
i 1 o Shenyang Mingli Real Estate g i 100% 430,001
HRAH Development Led. PRC NIL
RIS R A A R A A Nanning Jinhongsheng Real Estate il B 349 (HEa) 17,000
Development Co., Ltd. PRC NIL (Note d)
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33, BRBORME A Al %R 33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BBt ) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

WORARE OB
WAL/ RHERE R

B Equity interest ~ Equity interest

Place of held by the ~ held by the ARH

WA 2 incorporation/  Group before Group after Total

Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration

ARI T

RMB'000

FRBREREE Qingdao Jiaoao Huacheng Properties il i 100% 710,986

ARAHE Development Ltd. PRC NIL

A EEARAT Hunan Yingke Real Estate Co., Ltd. il & 9% (Mske) 24,500
PRC NIL (Note )

9,654,782
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

RN B 7 By R A% 8 ) S o
ERAE  ARBAEZEZ LA ER
FRAER PN =4 > BAEMEZE
HEE A AR - AR A A
i)y AR

REEZZ—-/NETZA=T—HILEF
B REAEEERSH S ES ST
FT L Y BB RT O R R R CRAEME Jy A
EE A E A AR BRI > AR LM
B USRS > DA B A0 M B
By o BERTAUEHT ORI AT > AT B
T JE B R 2 R 0 SRR — BRI R BT AR
T RT IR i % > 8 I 5 B e AR OR
K e NI 7 K o i K & B
] 2 o A% [ A OR K & 519 M 1L 52
> AR B Z TS R IR
HAR R A S B A 7 o

O B B A
BRE - ARBAREL SRS
f— g s o BRI
BEAE R  HOUHSL A SO
WA -

B AR 5 B LA % 0 ) o e
HAE AEMARZES AR EFGL
P LD ECRNERS 10 g ok )
SRR HE > SICEC B A 4 T I
=

LR IR O B AR 0w S o
HAE - AEMAERATZAFESEN
FERPN=4 > HASMEZERES
SELPERE > SICHC B 2 AR S ) I B
&

BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
three out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.

(b) During the year ended December 31, 2018, pursuant to a revised shareholders’
agreement of Jinan Wanke Zhongxiang, which was previously accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and its joint venture
partners, the Group has obtained control of voting power to govern the relevant
activities of the entity. Unanimous consent from the shareholders of this entity was
required for relevant activities before signing of revised shareholders” agreement.
After signing of the revised shareholders” agreement, relevant activities of the
entity are decided by the shareholders’ meeting and consent with simple majority is
required from the shareholders’ meeting. The Group has 51% voting power in the
shareholders’ meeting, the Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it

is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

(c) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
six out of eleven directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.

(d) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
three out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.

(e) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
three out of four directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.

& s Annual Report 2018

259 I



Ak o T 5 A Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZR)ETAZS T HIAEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018
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33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

WERE-F—LtFET+_H=1T—HIF
BE > AREMUCEEL N ER

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group acquired the
interests in the following entities:

BommiASEE R
HEMBNE  SHRRE
REMARAL,/ Equity Equity
Fr B interest interest held
Placeof ~ held by the by the ARE
i A 42 7 incorporation/  Group before  Group after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
ANRW T
RMB 000
g EEARAR Beijing Jinlongyonghui Real Estate i 26% 26% (3t o)
([de gk ) Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Jinlongyonghui") PRC NIL(Note ¢)
L ERotE EEARAR Beijing Dachengguangyuan Real Estate R 20% 20% (k)
(LR Rk ) Co., Led. ("Beijing Dachengguangyuan") PRC NIL(Note d)
B RYBEHRAR Ningbo Jingfeng Real Estate Co., Ltd. i i 50% 436,275
PRC NIL
oI 7 o B Beijing Chengjianshengmao Real Estate il i 100% 1,627,908
ARREAT Co,, Led. PRC NIL
HEMAPHIEEEMAMAT  Xian Wentian Technology Enterprise Gl i 60% 742,200
Group Ltd. PRC NIL
ERRERBEHRAR Qingdao Xinmengyuan Investment Co., Ltd. il i 100% 159,459
PRC NIL
BEEWLAERNTEEREERE  Chongging Liangjiangxingu Longhu Xinyu i i 51% 579,780
HIRAT Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC NIL
AR G ko A TR A Chengdu Zhongdinglvzhou Real Estate il i 80% 1,094,012
Co., Led. PRC NIL
A AT LA RAR Chengdu Wanjinnanfu Real Estate Co., Led. il i 28% 280,000 (HfzEb)
PRC NIL (Note b)
Bluewater (Hong Kong) Bluewater (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited il i 100% 271,669
Holdings Limited HK NIL
gt ZEEEFRAH Tongxiangshi Anyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. il i 50% 180,000
PRC NIL
%A EEHRAF Tongxiangshi Anhe Real Estate Co., Led. i i 50% 20,000
PRC NIL
B 590 3 7 B B Hangzhou Jinhu Real Estate Co., Ltd. i 26% 26% T (fzEe)
HRAR (&9 ) ("Hangzhou Jinhu") PRC NIL(Note ¢)
O AL E 5 o 7 e Hangzhou Xinchengsongjun Real Estate Gl 35% 35% (ke
FRA T ([he AL ER ) Co., Led. ("Hangzhou Xinchengsongjun") PRC NIL(Note f)
REERBREMERARAR  Fujian Daguang Motor City Development i i 70% 302,281
Co. Led. PRC NIL
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33, BRBORME A Al %R 33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BB ) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Kk EE  REALE
HHIRE SRR

REMbARL, Equity Equity
Fr e interest interest held

Place of held by the by the ARE

I A v 4 incorporation/  Group before  Group after Total

Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration

ARI T

RMB 000

AL TR Gaobeidian Zhongyu Real Estate Co., Led. il I 70% 300,000
REARAH PRC NIL

BREHEEERRARA Ningbo Xinci Development Co., Ltd. il i 70% 210,609
PRC NIL

M EMEAERSEARAT  Guangzhou Bihu Real Estate Co., Led. P i 7% 1,649,551
PRC NIL

RMERRSEEEARAR Hangzhou Lanbao Environmental Industry il I 100% 121,248
Co., Led. PRC NIL

ERERREARAR Ningbo Jiamu Investment Co., Ltd. g i 40% 139,236
PRC NIL

REFEEHRAT Wuhan Jingwen Development Co., Led. il i 52% 80,698
PRC NIL

WS A EEERARAT  Hunan Yibabayi Development Co., Led. il I 80% 123,937
PRC NIL

e Ak Jinan Taisheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. g 20% 20% (3t )

HRAR ([HmEFE]) ("Jinan Taisheng") PRC NIL(Note a)

Tk EEE Jinan Shengtang Real Estate Co., Ltd. P 30% 30% (i)

HRAT (e s ) ("Jinan Shengtang") PRC NIL(Note a)

8,318,863
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33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Notes:
(a) During the year ended December 31, 2017, pursuant to supplementary

shareholders’ agreements of Jinan Taisheng and Jinan Shengtang, which were
previously accounted for as joint ventures of the Group, entered into between the
Group and its joint venture partners, the Group has obtained control of voting
power to govern the relevant activities of these entities. Unanimous consent from
the shareholders of these entities were required for relevant activities before signing
of the supplementary shareholders’ agreements. After signing of the supplementary
shareholders’ agreements, the joint venture partners agreed to follow the Group's
decisions, when exercising their voting rights in the shareholders” meetings. Thus,

the Group is able to exercise control of these entities.

(b) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
four out of seven directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.

() During the year ended December 31, 2017, pursuant to an addendum to the
investment agreement of Beijing Jinlongyonghui, which was previously accounted
for as a joint venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and its joint
venture partners, the Group has obtained effective control of voting to govern the
relevant activities of the entity. Decisions about the relevant activities were made
in the shareholders” meeting and unanimous consent from the shareholders of
the entity were required previously. After the signing of the addendum, relevant
activities of the entity are decided by the board of directors of the company and
consent with simple majority is required from the board of directors. The Group
has the power to appoint six out of eleven directors in the board of the entity, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.
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BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d

(e)

During the year ended December 31, 2017, pursuant to an addendum to the
investment agreement of Beijing Dachengguangyuan, which was previously
accounted for as a joint venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and
its joint venture partners, the Group has obtained control of voting to govern the
relevant activities of the entity. Decisions about the relevant activities were made
in the shareholders” meeting and unanimous consent from the shareholders of
the entity were required previously. After the signing of the addendum, relevant
activities of the entity are decided by the board of directors of the entity and consent
with simple majority is required from the board of directors. The Group has the
power to appoint seven out of thirteen directors in the board of directors of the
entity, the Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a

subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, pursuant to an addendum to the
investment agreement of Hangzhou Jinhu, which was previously accounted for as
a joint venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and its joint venture
partners, the Group has obtained control of voting to govern the relevant activities
of the entity. Before the signing of the addendum, the Group has the power to
appoint five out of nine directors in the board of directors of the entity and relevant
activities of the entity require unanimous consent from the board of directors of the
entity. After the signing of the addendum, relevant activities of the entity require
consent with more than half of the directors in the board of directors of the entity.
The Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a

subsidiary of the Group.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, pursuant to supplementary agreement
of Hangzhou Xinchengsongjun, which was previously accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and its joint venture
partners, the Group has obtained control of voting to govern the relevant activities
of the entity. Before the signing of the addendum, the Group has the power to
appoint three out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity and relevant
activities of the entity require unanimous consent from the board of directors of the
entity. After the signing of the addendum, relevant activities of the entity require
consent with more than half of the directors in the board of directors of the entity.
The Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a

subsidiary of the Group.
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33. ST WO B )R 2 il OO

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

R ) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
“F)N\E ZF b
2018 2017
ANBETFL AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
BOEWIE (BT 12) Investment properties (Note 12) — 2,340,828
I ~ B B (Mt 13) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 41,942 2,594
TR A B IR Prepaid lease payments 4,019,553 5,240,940
RIERTHE 2 (MhE32) Deferred taxation assets (Note 32) 85,709 62,982
BRPEYE Properties under development for sales 11,613,092 12,828,034
JRE B e A B MV Accounts and other receivables,

fiesg KA SO deposits and prepayments 697,213 2,660,664
JRE Wi A 4 T 3 TR Amounts due from the Group — 112,000
EEEE Taxation recoverable — 160,090
SRITH R R & Bank balances and cash 201,310 3,879,269
B AT B e I A+ 5 Accounts and bills payables,

B 4 R ERHE A deposits received and accrued charges (1,369,912) (2,100,719)
aRAR Contract liabilities —  (6,514,277)
AT P SRR K Loans from former shareholders (6,115,308)  (2,232,310)
JEASH I 42 I e Amount due to non-controlling interests (1,815,964) —
JREASH A4 452 [ 0 Amounts due to the Group (1,105,404) (854,149)
JEAT I A A E S E Amounts due to former joint venture partners (1,235,747)  (2,045,002)
JRE A o T Taxation payable — (28,304)
BT Bank borrowings (119,000)  (2,687,735)

4,897,484 10,824,905
W R Less: Non-controlling interests (1,348,103)  (4,039,862)
3,549,381 6,785,043
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BEAGEME

=

REZF— A=, —HILFE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

33. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

—F— )M\ —“FtF
2018 2017

ARETE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Consideration satisfied by:

Cash 6,009,368 7,499,511
Consideration payable within 1 year 1,210,072 819,352
Consideration payable to

non-controlling interests 2,435,342 —
Interests in joint ventures 9,907 698,490

2

B

W B

9,664,689 9,017,353
Less: Loans assignment (6,115,308)  (2,232,310)

3,549,381 6,785,043

Bl A
EftBE
o TR B S MBS EY A R

Net cash outflow:

Cash paid (6,009,368)  (7,499,511)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent
balances acquired 201,310 3,879,269

(5,808,058)  (3,620,242)

EE Y RIS NN N Y S
B WA R E A B ERE
A ST O ) o E M B T R
I % B i o Y U 56 3 R 65 5 B JPT SR
TE B B F o

In the opinion of directors, the acquisitions of these companies does not
constitute businesses. Therefore, the transactions were determined by
the directors of the Company to be acquisition of assets and liabilities
through acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business combination as

defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
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34. O B ) 4 v AR 4

35.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited o & 4 & [ 4% J& 5 R A &)

REE=FZ—-NEFTZA=+T—HILE
FE > ASEI B I P AR R AR AR A R
322,332,000 70 Y5 i 5 5 I T B
R A A (TR 5 5 16 1) B 50 339 M HE I
A E N R 1,842,346,000 T Ui i 75
FE 9 2% G 5 ot 7 B A BN R BE S 409
JRAEE - OB EAE iR L 5 Al T E
AP ARAB e 8 % 42 I i A 00 R T
E2 MK EE% N R%11,013,000CE
B H A A P RERR o

0B WY B 2w i By BE g
(R K& Pe il bE)

WERE-F—-N\F+_H=1T—HIF
BE > AREEME W DT BRI R

34.

35.

ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group acquired
additional 33% equity interest in Nanjing Jiateng Real Estate Co.,
Led (“Nanjing Jiateng”), at a consideration of RMB322,332,000, and
additional 40% equity interest in Jinan Longhu Taixi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd, at a consideration of RMB1,842,346,000,
from the non-controlling shareholders. The acquisitions have been
accounted for as equity transactions and the total difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amounts of the attributable non-
controlling interests acquired of RMB11,013,000 had been recognised

directly in other reserve.

DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group partial disposed

the interest in the following entities:

HEHARE HERAKEE
FRMRHE R b
At ARz, Equity Equity
JL interest interest
Placeof  heldbythe  held by the AR
I 24 7 44 7 incorporation/ ~ Group before  Group after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment disposal disposal  consideration
ARH T
RMB’000
BN TSR R PR A Guangzhou Jinliang Real Estate Co., Led. GlE 100% 87.02% 216,129
PRC
HEHREHEEARA Qingdao Jinhaojiahui Real Estate Gz 100% 70% 30,000
Co., Ltd. PRC
LR REARAR Shanghai Huyin Real Estate Co., Ltd. il 100%  30% (Miita) 2,310,000
PRC (Note a)
P4 10 7 A PR ] Xian Xusheng Development Ltd. i 100% 51% 24,500
PRC
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BEZZ—)FHH=F—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

HERBAAMEMMEL 35 DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN

(RK L PEMIRE) a0

SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF

CONTROL (Continued)
RBE_ZF—LF+A=+—HIL%F During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group partial disposed
BE % G I th 5 LA T RO 36003 HE A - the interest in the following entities:
i HER
KEEFE KEEH
MR S
At AR,/ Equity Equity
Bori%  interestheld interest held
Place of by the by the ARE
VoI ] 44 7 incorporation/  Group before  Group after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment disposal disposal ~ consideration
ARH T
RMB’000
H R EE Qingdao Longtai Jinhui Real Estate i 100% 51% 59,834
HRAT Co., Ld. PRC
FHENEERDE Jiaxing Longhu Jiatao Real Estate Hi g 100% 51% 294,000
BB R v Development Co., Ltd PRC
PR N Tianjin Zhouheng Real Estate G 100% 90% 3,000
GLY Co., Led. PRC
B Ningbo Longsheng Real Estate Hi g 100% 51% 294,000
BB AT PR ] Development Co.,Ltd PRC
FCA HE N I 2 Chengdu Longfor Chenshun il 100% 51% 2,571,821
HIRAH Development Co., Ltd. PRC
AN SRR Fujian Daguang Motor City H 100% 66% 116,831
BRARAF Development Co., Ltd PRC
BUM FE 4 5 s Hangzhou Longshang Real Estate g 100% 25% 750,000
B A A IR ) Development Co., Ltd. PRC (H3Ea)
(MM ) ("Hangzhou Longshang") (Note a)
mgREEE Wouxi Jiacheng Real Estate il 100% 75% 749,700
ARAH Co., Ltd PRC
WRE - Note:
(@ SO B By R AT 0 Al 0 @  The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the

HAE - AEMARRTHZAAERE =
BERPIWS AL B RS
SELPERE > SICHC B 2 AR S ) I B

5

directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
two out of three directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
Group is able to exercise control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary

of the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

36. BLAE i A5 WY 2 vl iy 3
fi (AR L PEHIHE)

HEDR AEEAE R EE AR
DRSS AR MBS B > RIF A
M HA TR - FI - ZEFERD
RS SEN] PAC RN Y (T &
ZH A - CUCRE R E & & E T
Z BB DR A -

WRE-F—-NFE+_H=1+—HILF
J§ > AREEAE S & LIS B A5 R

1 -

Wi 2 7] 447

Name of subsidiary

36.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has sufficiently dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of these companies
and therefore the Group has control over them. Accordingly, these
entities remained as subsidiaries of the Group and the disposal have
been accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between the
consideration received and the net asset values disposed of are considered

insignificant.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group deemed partial

disposed the interest in the following entities:

BiEHEN B AR
A%H A%
RN R

Equity Equity /A
interest interest FENEE
held by held by Capital

the Group the Group BB EA injection

Gl A before after Increased from
Place of deemed deemed inpaidup  independent
incorporation disposal disposal capital  third parties

ARETE  ARKTE
RMB'000  RMB'000

RNEHREARAR Fuzhou Chenrui Investment Co., Ltd. i 100% 60% 10,000 4,000
PRC
O e 2 T s S Jinan Taihui Real Estate Development i 100% 34% 1,280,000 844,800
LY Co., Led. PRC (Ffika)
(Note a)
£ TN Ningbo Hongfu Real Estate Consultancy i 100% 50% 1,000 500
frs SR AT Co., Lud. PRC (i)
(Note a)
HiEEaEE Guiyang Jiaxi Development Ltd. i 100% 51% 10,000 4,900
LY PRC
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fi (R R L PEPIRE) a0
